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·1· · · · · · · · P R O C E E D I N G S
·2· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· We are reconvening our
·3· ·hearing involving 134-138 Babcock Street.· This
·4· ·is an application for a comprehensive permit
·5· ·under Chapter 40B.· The last hearing was
·6· ·December -- Maria is going to go through dates.
·7· ·The last -·8· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Hearing.
·9· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· -- continuing -- what was
10· ·the last hearing, actual hearing?
11· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· The actual hearing was
12· ·November 27.
13· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· November 27.· On December
14· ·4, it was continued until January 17, and
15· ·January 17, it was continued until today's date.
16· · · · · · · At tonight's hearing, we'll get an
17· ·update from Maria Morelli.· We will hear the
18· ·applicant's presentation of revisions to their
19· ·plans, as well as testimony from their arborist
20· ·and geotechnical engineer.· We will also have a
21· ·response to prior questions pertaining to
22· ·traffic and peer review reports.
23· · · · · · · We will then hear testimony from
24· ·various town departments and boards.· And Maria,
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·1· ·I believe that in all but a couple of cases,
·2· ·you'll be simply giving us the report -·3· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Reading them into the
·4· ·record, correct.
·5· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· -- of materials that were
·6· ·received -·7· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Yes, that's right.
·8· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· -- and have been included
·9· ·in the record that's available to the public.
10· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Correct.· Yes.
11· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· And then the board's peer
12· ·reviewers -- in traffic, it's Jim Fitzgerald;
13· ·parking, Art Stadig; and Cliff Boehmer, having
14· ·to do with the architectural component -- they
15· ·will provide us with their latest peer review
16· ·reports.
17· · · · · · · We will then ask for any public
18· ·testimony.· And I just want to remind everyone a
19· ·few ground rules.· If you do wish to speak,
20· ·tonight's hearing is for public record being -21· ·there's a stenographic record.· It's being tape22· ·recorded, because I see a tape recorder, and I
23· ·believe it may or may not also be on -- Ashley is
24· ·shaking her head.· It's on cable, and I suspect
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·1· ·you can see it up there.· So if you do want to
·2· ·speak, speak loudly and clearly.· Start by
·3· ·giving us your name, and give us your address.
·4· ·There is a dais with a microphone over here.· If
·5· ·you would speak into that microphone, and again,
·6· ·speak slowly so that we can pick it up for
·7· ·record.
·8· · · · · · · Listen to what your predecessors say.
·9· ·We don't need to hear the same thing over and
10· ·over again.· If you agree with somebody that came
11· ·before you, just let us know you agree with them.
12· ·If you have additional information that is
13· ·pertinent to the matters that we hear at this
14· ·hearing, we certainly want to hear it.
15· · · · · · · I suspect it's going to be a
16· ·reasonably long hearing, and therefore, I would
17· ·ask your patience, and I would ask for a certain
18· ·degree of brevity from everyone.
19· · · · · · · Lastly, the board, as we have done
20· ·before, will hold a discussion, give our
21· ·thoughts, and we'll carry on from there as is
22· ·appropriate.· Mark reminds me to comment.· There
23· ·have been a substantial amount of materials that
24· ·have been received in the interim period of
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·1· ·time, including most of today, and that those
·2· ·have all been entered into the record, and Mark
·3· ·wants us to acknowledge we have read all of those
·4· ·materials.· So I am reminding everyone.
·5· ·Anything else administratively?
·6· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· No.· I'll probably get
·7· ·to it.
·8· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Okay.· Great.· Maria,
·9· ·please go ahead.
10· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Sure.
11· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Oh, again for the record,
12· ·Jesse Geller, Mark Zuroff, Kate Poverman.
13· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· So Maria Morelli, Senior
14· ·Planner, Department of Planning and Community
15· ·Development.
16· · · · · · · I just want to begin my report
17· ·reminding everyone about the ZBA's charge since
18· ·we did meet last November 27, and I'm actually
19· ·going to pull something from the transcript,
20· ·which served as a summary.· This is the November
21· ·27 transcript of that hearing, Page 137, Lines
22· ·20 to 24, Mr. Geller summed up for the board.
23· · · · · · · We should also point out, excuse me,
24· ·that Mr. Hussey had been a voting member, and
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·1· ·because of his vacation, he was no longer able to
·2· ·serve on the board, and Kate Poverman, the
·3· ·alternate, is now a voting member.
·4· · · · · · · So from the transcript, Mr. Geller,
·5· ·"Three board members want one floor, that is the
·6· ·fifth floor, removed.· One board member does not
·7· ·see it as an issue.· All board members want a
·8· ·minimum setback of 20 feet.· That's at the rear
·9· ·of the Stedman facade.· But they're looking for
10· ·supporting data at the next hearing."
11· · · · · · · So this supporting data really
12· ·pertains to the foundation methods and
13· ·engineering solutions regarding that rear yard
14· ·setback and protection of abutters' trees and
15· ·property, as well as technical testimony from
16· ·the town's arborist and landscape architect
17· ·regarding the adequacy of the setback in the
18· ·rear.· At the time, that setback was ten feet at
19· ·the center and 15 feet on the remaining, say, 60
20· ·percent of the rear property line.
21· · · · · · · So just to speak a little bit about
22· ·that rear yard impact study, it incorporated
23· ·three key analyses.· One was the foundation
24· ·method, tree protection plan review protecting
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·1· ·abutters' trees; second, adequate setback to
·2· ·insure diverse plantings within the setback that
·3· ·could sustain the heavy shade conditions to
·4· ·effectively buffer the massing, as well as
·5· ·adequate setback to avoid impinging on tree
·6· ·canopies on abutting trees; and third, the
·7· ·visual impact, namely height to setback ratio,
·8· ·shadow, access to the sky and light, privacy
·9· ·because of that 13-foot drop at some points in
10· ·grade, and steep slope.
11· · · · · · · So it was really difficult to get
12· ·final reports, say, from our town arborist, from
13· ·our peer reviewer, architectural peer reviewer,
14· ·Cliff Boehmer, without these critical analyses.
15· ·Of course, your decision, as you know, really
16· ·does depend on being based on solid findings.
17· · · · · · · So just an overview of the technical
18· ·data that was asked and when.· In late August, it
19· ·was August 23, Cliff Boehmer did say that he
20· ·wanted to see or recommended that alternative
21· ·foundation methods be considered, or something
22· ·to that effect, as well as a survey of abutting
23· ·properties to understand better what that impact
24· ·would be.· October was the original close, and it
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·1· ·was really late October through January that we
·2· ·received this critical data.
·3· · · · · · · Early October was the official ask for
·4· ·the survey of abutting properties from the ZBA,
·5· ·and October 31, we received that from the
·6· ·applicant.· I do want to say that was conducted
·7· ·in a very expedient and thorough manner.· That
·8· ·was something that the applicant paid for, and
·9· ·because there are 12 abutters, it certainly was
10· ·an extensive survey, and it was very well done.
11· · · · · · · Mid-November, the applicant submitted
12· ·a landscape plan with those setbacks being 10 to
13· ·15 feet.· We were not able to get testimony from
14· ·our town arborist and landscape architect in
15· ·time for the November 27 hearing because of
16· ·their travel schedules.· So it was in early
17· ·December.
18· · · · · · · Now, at that time, we had a hearing
19· ·scheduled for December 4.· It was December 5 that
20· ·we received commentary, the first of three
21· ·letters from the town arborist and landscape
22· ·architect where they stated that they would not
23· ·comment on the adequacy of that rear yard
24· ·setback unless they had a specific alternative
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·1· ·foundation method that would better insure
·2· ·impacts to abutters' property, as well as a tree
·3· ·protection plan.
·4· · · · · · · In January -- again, this was done in
·5· ·a very thorough manner, expediently, and in some
·6· ·cases, the applicant's arborist went above and
·7· ·beyond -- we were able to get that alternative
·8· ·foundation method from their geotech engineer,
·9· ·as well as a tree protection plan and a very
10· ·extensive report from their arborist, and those
11· ·were really critical and very helpful.· We were
12· ·able to get more definitive recommendations from
13· ·town staff, as well as the site and building peer
14· ·reviewer.
15· · · · · · · Now, some administrative details
16· ·pertaining to the schedule.· So this hearing is
17· ·scheduled to close tomorrow, January 30, 2018.
18· ·It is my understanding that the applicant is
19· ·reluctant to provide another extension, and it's
20· ·recommended that you confirm that with the
21· ·applicant at some point during tonight's
22· ·hearing.
23· · · · · · · I do want to provide sort of an
24· ·overview, what we typically have, the stages of
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·1· ·a public hearing on a 40B project.· Depending on
·2· ·what happens this evening, typically, the next
·3· ·stage would be the applicant's request for
·4· ·waivers.· They have submitted something to the
·5· ·building commissioner -- we're not discussing
·6· ·that this evening -- and then, after that, there
·7· ·would be a discussion of conditions, the
·8· ·conditions you wish to put on that project.
·9· · · · · · · So after my report, you may wish to
10· ·read a statement from our 40B consultant, Judy
11· ·Barrett, regarding the process from here on and
12· ·the risks to closing the hearing before we get to
13· ·waivers and conditions, in particular, the risks
14· ·to the developer.
15· · · · · · · Some more admin details.· Since
16· ·October, the applicant has permitted extensions
17· ·to close beyond the 180-day deadline one hearing
18· ·at a time.· The public hearing was continued four
19· ·times since the last hearing, November 27,
20· ·2017.· There were staff meetings with the
21· ·project team, architecture, peer reviewer, and
22· ·staff on November 30 and January 9.· I'd like to
23· ·briefly outline what necessitated these
24· ·continuances.
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·1· · · · · · · As a result of the November 27 hearing
·2· ·and the November 30 staff meeting, the applicant
·3· ·agreed to continue the December 4 hearing to
·4· ·December 11 to allow more time to revise plans on
·5· ·the fifth floor rear.· For logistical reasons,
·6· ·it was continued to December 13.· But in the
·7· ·meantime, on December 5, Tom Brady, town
·8· ·arborist, and Ann Blair, landscape architect,
·9· ·recommended -- they submitted a letter to the
10· ·ZBA requesting that tree protection plan and a
11· ·different foundation method for their review
12· ·during the public hearing before commenting on
13· ·the setback.
14· · · · · · · They also had some criticisms related
15· ·to the types of species, the number of
16· ·arborvitae in that rear yard setback, the heavy
17· ·shade.· And very quickly, actually the next day,
18· ·December 6, the applicant's landscape architect,
19· ·to his credit, submitted a revised landscape
20· ·plan, and that was based on increases in the
21· ·setback at the rear.· I believe those increases
22· ·-- I think it was 15 feet to 20 and 21, and I'm
23· ·sure Mr. Bartash will correct me if I got that
24· ·timing incorrect.
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·1· · · · · · · In response to the revised landscape
·2· ·plan, the very next day, December 7, Mr. Brady
·3· ·and Ms. Blair submitted another letter to the
·4· ·ZBA on that plan, which we can read it in the
·5· ·record at the appropriate time.· Namely, they
·6· ·felt that the increased setbacks were, indeed,
·7· ·an improvement.· The revised selection of
·8· ·species certainly was better, but they still
·9· ·wanted that foundation method narrative and the
10· ·tree protection plan.
11· · · · · · · Then December 6 through the 12th, the
12· ·applicant submitted another plan showing the
13· ·fifth floor stepped back considerably to about
14· ·over 60 feet and the -- but plans were not
15· ·submitted in time for a traffic and parking peer
16· ·review.· So we could have had the hearing on
17· ·December 13, but we wouldn't have had a tree
18· ·protection plan, a foundation method, narrative,
19· ·any of that reviewed, and we certainly wouldn't
20· ·have had technical analyses from our peer
21· ·reviewers.
22· · · · · · · So that brought us into January.
23· ·Unfortunately -- well, fortunately for Kate
24· ·Poverman, she was away on vacation.· We ended up
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·1· ·continuing to January 17 to work with vacation
·2· ·schedules.· Unfortunately, Ms. Poverman was ill
·3· ·on the 17th, and that is why this hearing was
·4· ·continued to the 29th.· The project team was not
·5· ·able to assemble on the 22nd.
·6· · · · · · · So although this appears to be a very
·7· ·protracted schedule, the critical data that was
·8· ·requested, not just by the ZBA, but on the
·9· ·recommendation of its technical advisors, did
10· ·come.· It came in an expedient manner when those
11· ·asks were made, and it was done in a very
12· ·professional and comprehensive manner, and it
13· ·also contributed greatly to the reports that
14· ·staff and our peer reviewer will be giving you
15· ·this evening.
16· · · · · · · So I do want to thank the applicant
17· ·for granting those extensions and everyone with
18· ·patience with the rescheduling, and certainly
19· ·gratitude to the ZBA for reading reams and reams
20· ·of testimony so shortly before the hearing.
21· · · · · · · Just to give you an idea of what kind
22· ·of extension I would look for when you are ready
23· ·to discuss it, Mr. Geller.· Depending on what
24· ·happens this evening, if the next hearing were
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·1· ·to be the request for waivers, we probably could
·2· ·convene on February 12.· We would want Ms.
·3· ·Barrett to be there.· Mr. Geller is away for two
·4· ·weeks -·5· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· I'm away.
·6· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· And you're away.· How
·7· ·about Valentine's Day?
·8· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· It's always a good day.
·9· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· We'll talk about it, but
10· ·my point is -- we'll have to talk about the
11· ·schedule, but I just want to outline that
12· ·sometimes it seems protracted because we have to
13· ·assemble all important parties in the room.· So
14· ·this is not because we want to drag the schedule
15· ·out.
16· · · · · · · In March, we do have town meeting, so
17· ·we're going to get kicked around.· We probably
18· ·won't be in this room.· But if we could have met
19· ·on the 12th, we would have, say, conditions on
20· ·March 7, and then up to two weeks later -- we
21· ·could meet earlier, but up to two weeks later,
22· ·March 21, we would have another round at those
23· ·conditions, and then possibly close the hearing
24· ·that date and have a decision rendered by the
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·1· ·ZBA.· So that's just the project manager in me
·2· ·just fleshing out all those details.
·3· · · · · · · As I said, we had staff meetings on
·4· ·November 30 and January 9, and the project team
·5· ·took your charge very seriously.· Those were
·6· ·very constructive staff meetings.· Looking at
·7· ·your charge, and speaking very concretely about
·8· ·mitigating in-backs to abutters, there are three
·9· ·public realms, and an analysis framework for
10· ·each of those public realms guided the two staff
11· ·meetings we had with the project team, and they
12· ·were key visual studies to help illustrate how
13· ·effective those measures could be to reduce
14· ·those impacts.
15· · · · · · · Just to cut to the chase, I think it's
16· ·helpful to know what you're going to expect,
17· ·since I did start off with the charge.· I'm only
18· ·going to state the facts, and Mr. Bartash will go
19· ·into the plans, and Mr. Boehmer will explain his
20· ·analysis and his conclusions.
21· · · · · · · So regarding the fifth floor, the
22· ·latest plans that you will see tonight show that
23· ·fifth floor stepped back to the midpoint of the
24· ·building.· The testimony from the architectural
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·1· ·peer reviewer, Mr. Boehmer, does not support the
·2· ·elimination of the entire fifth floor, and he
·3· ·will provide a thorough analysis of the
·4· ·project's three public realms and the impacts
·5· ·that are better mitigated for each of those
·6· ·public realms.· Where it stands now, that fifth
·7· ·floor is brought back to about the midpoint of
·8· ·the building about 59 feet from the rear
·9· ·property line, and that's intended to be outside
10· ·of the Stedman Street site line.
11· · · · · · · In regard to the rear yard setback,
12· ·the rear yard setback to the foundation does
13· ·remain 15 to 16 feet for about that 40-foot
14· ·segment at the center -- there's a bump-out -15· ·and the rest of that rear wall, 60 percent of it
16· ·is at 20 and 21 feet.· The entire fourth floor
17· ·has been pulled back.· A portion of it, more than
18· ·half of it, was about 20 to 21 feet, but the
19· ·center portion had bumped out and was 16 feet, so
20· ·that 16- or 15-foot bump-out has been pulled
21· ·back to 20 feet.· And Mr. Boehmer will go through
22· ·what he initially had recommended and his
23· ·reaction in support of that.
24· · · · · · · In regard to protection of abutters'

1-617-542-0039

DTI Court Reporting Solution - Boston
www.deposition.com

YVer1f

PUBLIC HEARING· ·- 01/29/2018

Page 18

·1· ·tree roots and canopies, Mr. Brady has no
·2· ·objection to the 16-foot setback as long as all
·3· ·of his conditions are imposed and the foundation
·4· ·method chosen by the applicant's geotech
·5· ·engineer is executed.
·6· · · · · · · The applicant hired an arborist to
·7· ·prepare that tree protection plan, and actually
·8· ·conducted test pits in early January in the
·9· ·rear, because there is asphalt in the rear yard
10· ·that will be eliminated to examine the actual
11· ·condition of tree roots.· Those test pits did
12· ·involve ripping up asphalt, and Mr. Brady did
13· ·inspect those test pits the day they were
14· ·conducted, and the applicant's arborist was
15· ·present at the time.
16· · · · · · · So, in short, regarding Mr. Brady's
17· ·analysis, I do have three letters to enter into
18· ·the record.· I would like to read all of them.
19· ·One letter does pertain to the old plans, and two
20· ·pertain to the plans where the setback was
21· ·increased.· And in regard to the proposed
22· ·setback regarding impact on those tree canopies,
23· ·Mr. Boehmer will speak to that, as well as how
24· ·any physical impacts are ameliorated.
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·1· · · · · · · Regarding traffic and parking, there
·2· ·was a concern about the sharp 90-degree angle of
·3· ·that driveway, that swivel makes into the
·4· ·garage, and we got reports from our traffic and
·5· ·parking peer reviewers in December.· And rather
·6· ·quickly, the design team revised that driveway
·7· ·in response to those peer review reports, and we
·8· ·were able to have that revised driveway reviewed
·9· ·by Mr. Fitzgerald and Mr. Stadig.
10· · · · · · · The storm water -- we got a storm
11· ·water letter from Mr. Ditto, director of
12· ·engineering and transportation, who is here this
13· ·evening, and in response to some of his
14· ·comments, as well as Tom Brady's comments, he
15· ·saw a detention basin that was maybe south of a
16· ·walkway that was close to a street tree and
17· ·recommended that that be moved north of the
18· ·walkway.· And to the applicant's credit, the
19· ·storm water team actually revised those civils,
20· ·and those plans were also submitted to Mr.
21· ·Ditto, and he's able to speak to them this
22· ·evening.
23· · · · · · · Also, the town has been really busy.
24· ·Just last week, the transportation board
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·1· ·approved Option 5, which would introduce
·2· ·complete streets design to Babcock.· Keep in
·3· ·mind the transportation board did approve this
·4· ·plan, but the next official step would be an
·5· ·approval or acceptance by the select board,
·6· ·which has not taken place.· But because of this
·7· ·major milestone, if you will, I did give that
·8· ·conceptual drawing to our traffic and parking
·9· ·peer reviewers, and they can acknowledge that in
10· ·their reports.
11· · · · · · · And I also consulted with Mr. Ditto
12· ·regarding any changes that might affect sidewalk
13· ·or the traffic studies, and he said nothing
14· ·about the complete streets design at this point
15· ·would affect those studies.· And he can speak to
16· ·that if you have further questions.
17· · · · · · · We do have written testimony regarding
18· ·fire safety from Deputy Chief Dan Carroll.· We
19· ·also have a letter from the building department,
20· ·Deputy Commissioner Michael Yanovitch, regarding
21· ·fire safety.· We have a letter from the chief of
22· ·environmental health regarding trash recycling,
23· ·the trash recycling plan that was submitted by
24· ·the project team for the comments on air
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·1· ·quality, mechanical ventilation.· And again, I
·2· ·mentioned the three letters from Tom Brady and
·3· ·Ann Blair.
·4· · · · · · · So I've already talked about the
·5· ·schedule.· If you feel it's appropriate, you
·6· ·might wish to summarize some of the key points in
·7· ·Ms. Barrett's memo to you, or you can decide if
·8· ·that should be brought up at a more appropriate
·9· ·time in a hearing.
10· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Can I ask one timing
11· ·question?
12· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Sure.
13· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· So Mr. Boehmer asked
14· ·for alternative foundation method descriptions
15· ·and the tree protection plan in August.· When did
16· ·he get it?
17· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· No, that -- so Mr.
18· ·Boehmer had recommended some investigation of
19· ·tree foundation methods.· I don't have the
20· ·correct wording.· It was a recommendation in his
21· ·report.· He did ask for -- he said but we really
22· ·needed more accurate surveys of the grading
23· ·before -- it's important to know that official
24· ·ask came from the ZBA October 2, and it was
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·1· ·actually in response to the official ask from
·2· ·the ZBA on October 2 that we got the survey from
·3· ·the project team October 31.
·4· · · · · · · And that was a really big undertaking,
·5· ·and that was done in an expedient fashion.· But
·6· ·it is, you know, rather late in the process.· It
·7· ·happens.· There's no blame here whatsoever.

I

·8· ·just want to explain the protracted schedule and
·9· ·why this information was so important.
10· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· But we just recently
11· ·got the alternative foundation method
12· ·information; is that correct?
13· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· That came in early
14· ·January, correct.
15· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Thanks.
16· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· So over to you, Mr.
17· ·Chairman.
18· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.· Anything else
19· ·for Maria?· Does anyone have questions?
20· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· No.
21· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you, Maria.· I'm
22· ·going to hold off on Judy's memo.· I think it
23· ·would be more appropriate at the end, should it
24· ·be necessary.
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·1· · · · · · · We'll now hear from the applicant.
·2· ·Peter, you're going to give us a presentation on
·3· ·revisions, plus.· Thank you.
·4· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Thank you.· Peter
·5· ·Bartash with CUBE 3 Studio.· We are the architect
·6· ·on the project.
·7· · · · · · · As Maria indicated, there has been
·8· ·quite a bit of time between the last hearing and
·9· ·this hearing, and so tonight, I have the kind of
10· ·privilege of presenting to you not only the
11· ·information that we would have presented in
12· ·December had we had a chance to come before this
13· ·board, but also some additional information that
14· ·has come out of the extensive work that we've
15· ·done in the interim to kind of further refine and
16· ·improve the project and the plan.
17· · · · · · · So we're excited to share all of this
18· ·with you.· It's a lot of information.

I

19· ·recognize that if I really were to take all the
20· ·seconds we needed, we could be here until
21· ·tomorrow, with that being the case, so I'm going
22· ·to give you the information as kind of
23· ·expediently as I can, but at a comfortable pace.
24· ·If you need me to slow down, please let me know,
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·1· ·and if you're not interested, just please ask me
·2· ·to keep it rolling through.
·3· · · · · · · So that being said, we're going to
·4· ·talk quickly about the changes that were made
·5· ·from the project from late November to early
·6· ·December, how the project has evolved over time
·7· ·to this date.· We'll look at the design updates
·8· ·that we would have presented to you in December,
·9· ·and then talk about the current progress that's
10· ·been made on the project.
11· · · · · · · And when we do get to the section
12· ·talking about the current progress, that's where
13· ·we'll not only look at the building plans, the
14· ·landscaping plan, the site plan, but also look
15· ·at results of the turning analysis, the tree
16· ·protection plan, and the foundation options that
17· ·Maria had spoken to earlier.
18· · · · · · · Description of changes.· So leading up
19· ·to the December hearing, we did remove two
20· ·parking spaces, but we had also removed five
21· ·units from the overall count.· We had adjusted
22· ·the unit mix in order to kind of accommodate some
23· ·of the footprint changes we had made and revised
24· ·some of the square footages of all of the units,
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·1· ·the building as a whole, and removed some square
·2· ·footage from the parking podium.
·3· · · · · · · Prior to that hearing, with the
·4· ·hearing we would have had, we also did update the
·5· ·3D model, all of our site sections to coordinate
·6· ·with our new landscaping plan, to show the
·7· ·revised building footprint and to coordinate
·8· ·with the new fifth floor footprint.· At that
·9· ·time, we had reduced the fifth floor footprint
10· ·in a certain way, which I'll illustrate in a
11· ·second.
12· · · · · · · So if we look at kind of the history of
13· ·the project -- and this is where I really want to
14· ·start in having this conversation tonight -- if
15· ·we go all the way back to the kind of early part
16· ·of May in 2017, and we look at the fact that
17· ·we've gone from 62 units, a project that was
18· ·still 55 feet, eight inches, you know, but a
19· ·significant, you know, 68,583 gross square feet,
20· ·to where we are today, we're at 45 units.· We are
21· ·almost 25,000 gross square feet less than where
22· ·we were when we started, and there has been a
23· ·significant improvement in the distance to
24· ·property lines to the face of the building.
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·1· · · · · · · We've increased the setbacks, we've
·2· ·decreased the FAR, and we've really taken a lot
·3· ·of the feedback we've gotten into consideration
·4· ·as we've moved through the process.· So if we
·5· ·look at how the building massing has evolved,
·6· ·we're about to look at a series of slides that
·7· ·are taken from the same kind of aerial
·8· ·perspective.· We're hovering over Manchester
·9· ·Road and looking kind of southeast back at the
10· ·project site.· And this was the initial proposal
11· ·that was submitted to the ZBA and the first one
12· ·we looked at together.
13· · · · · · · From that meeting, and as a result of
14· ·the feedback that we heard from the community
15· ·and from the board, we did a few key things.· We
16· ·lowered the building elements to visually reduce
17· ·the building height.· We changed the
18· ·architectural style and exterior material pallet
19· ·of the building completely.· We did start to
20· ·reduce the overall footprint, but not to the
21· ·extent that the board was really looking at the
22· ·time.
23· · · · · · · And we had started to step back the
24· ·fifth floor at the rear of the building.· We had
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·1· ·added mansard roofs to improve the site lines
·2· ·from abutters' properties and also to reduce the
·3· ·visual scale of the building, and we had stepped
·4· ·the building back at specific areas to increase
·5· ·the setback in response to some comments about
·6· ·setback.· After that hearing, now we're looking
·7· ·at where we ended up kind of in November.
·8· · · · · · · Now, we made further changes to the
·9· ·roof line adjacent to Babcock Street to improve
10· ·the site lines and again start to diminish the
11· ·visual impact of this scale.· We further reduced
12· ·the fifth floor footprint, especially at the
13· ·northwest wing, in relation to the rear yards of
14· ·the abutters who sit further north on Babcock
15· ·Street and also along Manchester Road and on the
16· ·kind of northern part of Stedman Street, and we
17· ·continued to kind of push the idea of the mansard
18· ·roofs and the language that we had started to
19· ·employ in the previous hearing.
20· · · · · · · So we're still kind of further
21· ·refining the building footprint to the building
22· ·plan and configuration that we would have
23· ·brought to you in December.· And so we continued
24· ·the efforts we had made to reduce the fifth floor
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·1· ·and really consolidated the majority of the
·2· ·fifth floor footprint over the section of the
·3· ·building that runs east and west closest to
·4· ·Babcock Street.
·5· · · · · · · We had moved some of the building in
·6· ·the rear further away from the rear yard
·7· ·property line to achieve 20 feet of setback at
·8· ·the rear in as many areas as possible in response
·9· ·to the board's charge about achieving 20 feet,
10· ·and we had also, again, reduced that kind of
11· ·fifth floor setback.· And so as we looked at the
12· ·building in context here from an aerial
13· ·perspective, it started to really tell, to us,
14· ·at least, somewhat of the story about how this
15· ·building began to start to feel as if it was
16· ·fitting into the fabric that exists in this
17· ·neighborhood.
18· · · · · · · If we look at the scale of that rear
19· ·portion of the building that is kind of closest
20· ·to the neighborhood, it has a very different
21· ·scale and feeling than the portion of the
22· ·building that sits against Babcock Street.· And
23· ·if we look at how the building sits in relation
24· ·to 120 Babcock Street to the south and to some of
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·1· ·the other multi-residence buildings that sit
·2· ·across Babcock Street, we start to see the way
·3· ·that the building is responding to those
·4· ·specific kind of local relationships at very key
·5· ·locations on the site and how all of the feedback
·6· ·we've received has really kind of chipped away
·7· ·at this building in a way that has helped it fit
·8· ·more into its context than the original proposal
·9· ·we had come to the table with.
10· · · · · · · So looking at the design updates in
11· ·the unit mix, this is just a series of data that
12· ·describes the high level picture changes we
13· ·talked about in one of the first slides about how
14· ·we got to 45 units, how we updated the unit mix,
15· ·and what the gross square footages are.· It's
16· ·part of the package just to be part of the
17· ·record, but I won't go through and read every
18· ·single note.
19· · · · · · · This is the revised ground floor plan
20· ·that coordinates with the massing that we just
21· ·looked at that we would have presented on
22· ·December 18, and so you can see really -- rather
23· ·than going through all the detail about this,
24· ·because we have evolved the project from this
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·1· ·point of view, all I want to do is point to the
·2· ·things that were identified by the board and by
·3· ·some of the peer reviewers that we've since
·4· ·addressed so we can understand how we got to
·5· ·where we are today.
·6· · · · · · · Most specifically, at the rear of the
·7· ·property along that rear yard facing Stedman
·8· ·Street, we were still showing 15 feet, 10 inches
·9· ·of setback for about a 45-foot, 46-foot chunk of
10· ·the building, and there were concerns about the
11· ·impact on the trees that do sit on that rear
12· ·property line or just outside of the rear
13· ·property line.
14· · · · · · · There was concern about proximity to
15· ·the rear yard and the impact on site lines from
16· ·the abutters' rear yards and also shadow impacts
17· ·as a result of our building being 15 feet, 10
18· ·inches from the rear property line.· So that's
19· ·something that we did look at, and that's
20· ·something I'm going to talk about a little bit
21· ·later.
22· · · · · · · The driveway width was shown at 18
23· ·feet on this plan and also represented a 9024· ·degree turn to get into the garage and then
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·1· ·another 90-degree turn to travel down the drive
·2· ·aisle within the garage.· So that's an area that
·3· ·we focused on.· The peer reviewers did come back
·4· ·and indicate to us that two vehicles may have
·5· ·issues passing each other in opposite directions
·6· ·of travel, and that there were some concerns
·7· ·about the actual width of the driveway.
·8· · · · · · · And really, those from a planning
·9· ·standpoint looking at the parking garage were
10· ·the key things that we thought we need to get
11· ·this right, and we need to figure this out.· So
12· ·I'm not going to talk anymore about that for the
13· ·time being.
14· · · · · · · So when we look at the second floor,
15· ·what's really shown here is just some changes
16· ·that we made to the unit mix that filtered
17· ·throughout the plan in order to accommodate the
18· ·increased setback at the rear.· All it really
19· ·represents is some shifting of the demising and
20· ·the fact, most importantly, that we did take the
21· ·entire kind of north-south leg of the building
22· ·and move that portion of the building east
23· ·towards the rear front property line, which is
24· ·kind of the technical term for this property
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·1· ·line here, in order to maintain our parking at
·2· ·the first floor, but also to provide that
·3· ·critical setback at the rear yard, which had
·4· ·been a huge issue that we had been advised of
·5· ·kind of from the start of the project.
·6· · · · · · · The third floor just kind of carries
·7· ·what you saw on the floor below, with the
·8· ·exception of some changes in unit demising so
·9· ·that we could get our three-bed units in that we
10· ·need to provide.
11· · · · · · · And when we get up to the fourth
12· ·floor, it's important to look and notice that,
13· ·as Maria had indicated, the bump-out at this
14· ·rear property line does exist in this plan at the
15· ·fourth floor.· That is something that will
16· ·change as you see the current plans, but I wanted
17· ·to point out to you that that was here when we
18· ·were going to be talking about this plan.
19· · · · · · · And then at the fifth floor, you'll
20· ·see that we had cut back the floor in a way that
21· ·kind of created a little bit of a dead space past
22· ·the trash chute, but was in response to this
23· ·notion of trying to consolidate the building
24· ·massing and height in this really one location
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·1· ·in the center of our site.· There's just a roof
·2· ·line that corresponds with that plan.
·3· · · · · · · And so just flipping through really
·4· ·quickly, the red dashed line indicates where we
·5· ·were on November 27, and all of the black lines
·6· ·indicate where we were on December 18 when we
·7· ·would have come to the board.· So you can see the
·8· ·portions of the building that have shifted in
·9· ·the rear, and also here in the front, you can see
10· ·that that kind of telegraphs all the way up
11· ·through each floor of the building.
12· · · · · · · You could see the changes that we made
13· ·to the fifth floor that we have been looking at
14· ·in a couple of different views, and obviously to
15· ·the roof plan, which corresponds with that fifth
16· ·floor.
17· · · · · · · So looking at the building sections,
18· ·one of the things that the building department
19· ·and the planning staff had asked us to clarify is
20· ·the methodology for calculating the building
21· ·height.· Because this site does straddle two
22· ·zones, it is a little bit less clear than just
23· ·looking at a zone and determining the
24· ·methodology based on what's spelled out in the
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·1· ·zoning ordinances.
·2· · · · · · · And so we are here, looking at two
·3· ·different methodologies.· In the M zone, you
·4· ·know, we're taking an average of grade points
·5· ·around the site and running them through a
·6· ·calculation to come to a mean grade, and in the T
·7· ·zone, we're taking the mean height of the lowest
·8· ·lot line and then adding a quarter of a setback
·9· ·to the closest point of the building to the
10· ·lowest lot line to establish the mean grade of
11· ·the project.· And between those two numbers, the
12· ·lowest mean grade was actually found in the T
13· ·district at an elevation of, I believe, 58.25 or
14· ·50 -- let's see, I have it here -- 54.65.
15· · · · · · · So when we look at the mean grade in
16· ·the M district, which we found to be 55.8, the T
17· ·district would yield the greatest height for the
18· ·building as a methodology for determining an
19· ·average grade plane.· And for the purposes of
20· ·this conversation with the board, and for all of
21· ·our data that we've presented, the heights that
22· ·we're representing in the project use the
23· ·strictest methodology to determine the mean
24· ·grade, which is the basis for then establishing
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·1· ·the building height.· Do you have any questions
·2· ·on that?· I know that's -·3· · · · · · · So looking at the building section,
·4· ·and this was really -- this was a key point of
·5· ·emphasis in a lot of our conversations with the
·6· ·board and also with planning staff and in the
·7· ·peer review architect's notes that set lines
·8· ·from the rear yard on Stedman Street.· Those were
·9· ·critical, not only from the ground floor in the
10· ·backyards themselves, but also from the second
11· ·floor of those homes and from any sort of dormers
12· ·and how this building would be perceived in that
13· ·regard.
14· · · · · · · And so it was key, first of all, for us
15· ·to make sure that we pushed back the fifth floor
16· ·to get it out of that site line, but also to
17· ·consider how we would potentially improve shadow
18· ·impacts in those rear yards if we were to
19· ·increase the setback at the rear yard.
20· · · · · · · So in this case, what we're showing
21· ·here is the results of the kind of closest point
22· ·being that 15 feet, 10 inches to the property
23· ·line, the resulting kind of site lines in that
24· ·case that show that you would not see that fifth
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·1· ·floor from that location, but that also starts
·2· ·to describe how, you know, the roof really does
·3· ·take up and shield that uppermost flooring.· It
·4· ·gives you kind of a two and a half or three-ish
·5· ·story looking facade that faces you from the
·6· ·rear yard, because we're taking the parking
·7· ·garage itself and recessing it into the ground
·8· ·to be slightly above the elevation of Babcock
·9· ·Street, which does create this retaining
10· ·condition at the rear.
11· · · · · · · That condition is something that was
12· ·the subject of the investigation regarding the
13· ·foundation methodology and will be addressed
14· ·further on as we get to that point of discussion.
15· ·But really those were kind of the key factors
16· ·looking at the setbacks here and looking at how
17· ·this could relate to the rear yards on Stedman
18· ·Street.
19· · · · · · · And really the key is that the further
20· ·the building is from the rear property line, the
21· ·better the site lines are to open sky from the
22· ·rear yards of Stedman Street, and the less -- the
23· ·further the building is from the property line,
24· ·the less impacts there would be in terms of
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·1· ·shadow at specific times of the day for the homes
·2· ·on Stedman Street.· So that was a really key
·3· ·point for us to pay attention to.
·4· · · · · · · As we look at another cross section,
·5· ·which is taken kind of south to north through the
·6· ·project site, we see a similar sort of analysis
·7· ·and understanding of how the building relates to
·8· ·views from the rear yards behind those homes
·9· ·further north on Babcock Street, but also that
10· ·do sit against Manchester Road.
11· · · · · · · So the individual shown on the right12· ·hand side of this section is standing in those
13· ·backyards looking south toward the lower portion
14· ·of the project that is only four stories, and
15· ·again, you can see kind of the relationship from
16· ·an individual point of view back up to that
17· ·building.· And we'll show that in perspectives,
18· ·but this is just the technical analysis behind
19· ·that.
20· · · · · · · What's really difficult to read at
21· ·this scale but is clear on the drawings that we
22· ·submitted in the digital versions of these PDFs
23· ·is the fact that all of these heights that are
24· ·measured in these sections are taken from the
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·1· ·mean grade, which we established using the T
·2· ·district, and the highest point of the roof
·3· ·structure.· And so at the case of this rear
·4· ·portion of the project, we're talking about 45
·5· ·feet of height for the lowest portion of the
·6· ·building and 55 feet, 8 inches height for the
·7· ·tallest portion of the building, which is that
·8· ·five floor section that runs kind of east-west
·9· ·and is closest to Babcock Street.
10· · · · · · · This is the section taken through that
11· ·taller portion of the project.· So you can see in
12· ·the rear that kind of lower portion that we were
13· ·just cutting through, and now we're showing the
14· ·residents just north of the project further up
15· ·Babcock Street and the relationship between our
16· ·proposed project, 120 Babcock Street, the
17· ·abutter who is immediately north of the project,
18· ·and then the existing grade that does travel
19· ·further north up Babcock Street.
20· · · · · · · This is a very technical drawing that
21· ·describes a typical wall section we would expect
22· ·along that condition at the rear yard.· We
23· ·originally prepared this in order to illustrate
24· ·for the board how we imagined that this part of
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·1· ·the project would be built.· At the time we
·2· ·prepared this, we made some assumptions about
·3· ·what would be the recommendations from a
·4· ·geotechnical engineer, though no geotechnical
·5· ·engineer had at that point weighed in on a
·6· ·project.
·7· · · · · · · And since the time that we developed
·8· ·this information, we have had the benefit of
·9· ·their input, and that portion of the
10· ·presentation does speak a little bit more, I
11· ·think succinctly, to these conditions, so I'm
12· ·not going to get into any sort of technical
13· ·detail about what this drawing represents
14· ·because we'll talk about it later.
15· · · · · · · Looking at the elevations of the
16· ·project, this is the front elevation that faces
17· ·Babcock Street.· It's a little difficult to see
18· ·in this slide because it is a very subtle change.
19· ·But one of the key recommendations from the peer
20· ·review architect in response to the board's
21· ·concern about the fifth floor was for us to take
22· ·a second look at how the roof meets the lower
23· ·wall, and so we completely revised the detail at
24· ·that upper floor and pushed the roof further in
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·1· ·on that upper floor footprint, which gives the
·2· ·appearance or effect that the roof is set in
·3· ·rather than overhanging the lower floors and has
·4· ·an impact on the visual scale and height of the
·5· ·building from Babcock Street.
·6· · · · · · · Here, when we're looking at the side
·7· ·elevation, we've carried that same sort of
·8· ·detailing all the way along the fifth floor
·9· ·portion of the building.· At the fourth floor
10· ·portion of the building, we still do have a
11· ·condition where the mansard roof overhangs the
12· ·exterior wall and creates kind of a soffit.
13· · · · · · · It is more consistent with that sort
14· ·of expression at that scale and height that we
15· ·see in this style of architecture.· It creates
16· ·this shadow that helps reduce the visual height
17· ·of the building and actually gives it a little
18· ·bit more of a residential character as we get
19· ·toward that portion of the project.· So we kept
20· ·that detail the same, but we did, however,
21· ·eliminate a bulk of the mass that was over this
22· ·rear portion of the project in this iteration.
23· · · · · · · You'll note that we are -- you can
24· ·kind of see it through, in and around the
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·1· ·landscaping.· These black rectangles are
·2· ·actually the louvers for the mechanical venting
·3· ·of the garage.· Just because you see a louver in
·4· ·the elevation doesn't mean that it's a fan
·5· ·blowing exhaust out.· Ninety-five percent of
·6· ·these louvers are just that; they're louvers
·7· ·that allow for kind of the natural passive
·8· ·exchange of air into and out of the garage.
·9· · · · · · · There would be mechanical equipment
10· ·within the garage, the footprint itself, in two
11· ·rooms that we have designated that I'll speak to
12· ·in a second that are the locations for that
13· ·equipment.· All of that equipment is kind of
14· ·internal to the garage, and when it's activated,
15· ·it helps move air from one section of the garage
16· ·to another in the event that it senses emissions
17· ·levels that reach a certain threshold in order
18· ·to make sure that the emissions levels stay
19· ·within the code-mandated requirements for what
20· ·those levels can be within the garage.
21· · · · · · · Here, we're looking at the rear
22· ·elevation, and so -23· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Oh, I'm sorry.

I

24· ·spaced out for a minute.· Can you go back and

1-617-542-0039

DTI Court Reporting Solution - Boston
www.deposition.com

YVer1f

PUBLIC HEARING· ·- 01/29/2018

Page 42

·1· ·describe what is being done to make sure that the
·2· ·air in the garage stays within code levels?
·3· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Yeah.· So the full
·4· ·details of the system aren't designed.· They're
·5· ·not even close to being designed.· That's not
·6· ·something that gets designed until the middle of
·7· ·kind of design development, which is the second
·8· ·of three major steps in the documentation
·9· ·process.
10· · · · · · · But conceptually, what happens is
11· ·there are a series of sensors throughout the
12· ·garage that tie back to a series of what are
13· ·basically fans.· And these fans within the
14· ·garage, if they sense that the emissions levels
15· ·are at a certain point, those fans turn on, and
16· ·they just encourage the circulation of air out
17· ·through these louvers that we have scattered
18· ·around the perimeter of the building.
19· · · · · · · Typically, what happens is you get
20· ·some natural cross ventilation because these are
21· ·passive louvers, meaning that air can move
22· ·freely into and out of the garage.· And it's only
23· ·in the case that there are a significant number
24· ·of vehicles that are running or that there's
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·1· ·kind of someone who's, let's say, parked sitting
·2· ·in their car for a longer period of time that
·3· ·these levels might build up to this point that
·4· ·this fan system would need to be activated to
·5· ·move air through the garage.
·6· · · · · · · In our case, the way that we typically
·7· ·look at this is somewhat of a hybrid system.
·8· ·Because of our proximity to lot lines, we're
·9· ·limited on the number and size of openings that
10· ·we can have at the garage.· So we can't just do,
11· ·let's say, a naturally ventilated garage because
12· ·we can't comply with the code requirements, and
13· ·we need these mechanical systems to supplement
14· ·that, though it's not just a fully mechanical
15· ·system that would involve an air intake and a
16· ·whole other host of provisions that we're not
17· ·interested in for this project.· Does that help
18· ·answer your question?
19· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Thanks.· Yes.
20· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Sure.· So from the rear
21· ·of the building looking at the elevation, we're
22· ·looking at this in kind of the flat 2D
23· ·perspective, so you're seeing the fifth floor of
24· ·the building beyond that's kind of showing up.
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·1· ·The bulk of the project from the rear point of
·2· ·view is this lower elevation, which we'll see a
·3· ·little more clearly in the prospective, but
·4· ·you'll note that we've obviously proposed not
·5· ·only the fence, but also some other landscaping
·6· ·along here that will be spoken to in a little bit
·7· ·more detail when the landscape architect reviews
·8· ·the landscape plan here with the board tonight.
·9· · · · · · · Here, we're looking at the south
10· ·elevation that faces 120 Babcock Street, and so
11· ·Stedman Street is off to the left-hand side of
12· ·the page and Babcock Street is to the right.· And
13· ·you can see, again, that initial condition we
14· ·had where the garage door was 90 degrees to the
15· ·-- or actually, it was parallel to the driveway,
16· ·so you would have had to turn 90 degrees to get
17· ·into the garage.
18· · · · · · · So similar to how we looked at the
19· ·massing -- and I'm going to flip through these
20· ·really quickly -- the red dash line indicates
21· ·where we were, and then the actual elevation is
22· ·the elevation that we just looked at.· So you can
23· ·see we kind of squeezed in the uppermost floor,
24· ·and I mentioned it's a subtle detail, but it's an
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·1· ·important detail from an architectural and
·2· ·visual point of view.
·3· · · · · · · Here, you can see the changes we made
·4· ·at the rear lot line where we moved the building
·5· ·in and also reduced the fifth floor footprint.
·6· ·Similarly, you'll only see kind of some subtle
·7· ·changes at the uppermost floor because of the
·8· ·detail that we changed, but you won't see some
·9· ·significant changes from this point of view.
10· ·And then, again, from the south elevation, you
11· ·see the same sort of corresponding increase to
12· ·the rear setback and increase to the -- or
13· ·decrease to the overall fifth floor footprint.
14· · · · · · · So looking at how that's kind of
15· ·rippled through the perspectives, we have a
16· ·similar sort of comparison here to talk about on
17· ·the left-hand side the difference between May 10
18· ·and November 27, and then on the right-hand side
19· ·the difference from November 27 to December 18,
20· ·the red line indicating where we were, and then
21· ·the building actually showing the image
22· ·indicating where we are.
23· · · · · · · Here, we're looking again also at the
24· ·intersection of Freeman Street and Babcock
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·1· ·Street, and you can see the changes that have
·2· ·been made in both relocating and reallocating
·3· ·the massing and adjusting the way it sits on the
·4· ·site.
·5· · · · · · · Now, here, we're back closer to
·6· ·Stedman Street looking across the rear yards
·7· ·diagonally to the northwestern corner of the
·8· ·project, and we used -·9· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Peter, can you go back
10· ·for one second to the previous slide?
11· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Sure.
12· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· So in terms of
13· ·comparing five, ten to, you know, the last one,
14· ·how much is it actually pulled in?· You see the
15· ·big red, you know, dotted line sticking out, and
16· ·it's much further in.· What's the difference in
17· ·terms of feet between the apex on the left and
18· ·that on the right?
19· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· So the way that we could
20· ·look at that is actually by looking at the
21· ·setbacks, which are really what drove those
22· ·changes.· And so originally, you can imagine the
23· ·first presentation, we were talking about what
24· ·was effectively a zero lot line setback on the
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·1· ·front of the property, and we were looking at a
·2· ·five-foot, one-inch setback along the southern
·3· ·property line.
·4· · · · · · · So in this case, you're actually
·5· ·looking at a little bit over 20 feet to this
·6· ·building facade here.· So you're talking about
·7· ·an increase of at least 15 feet from where it was
·8· ·to where it is now in this location to
·9· ·accommodate the garage and also the driveway on
10· ·the left-hand side.· And then we've moved the
11· ·front facade elevation to be in line with 120
12· ·Babcock Street, which if I'm remembering
13· ·correctly, was roughly 12 or 12 and a half feet
14· ·from the front property line.· So that
15· ·represents a 12 and a half foot increase in that
16· ·front yard setback.· So that's kind of the
17· ·difference between those two.
18· · · · · · · And so when you look at the right-hand
19· ·image, you notice that the difference between
20· ·the previous and current proposals is very
21· ·minor, and again, it's only because we've taken
22· ·that upper floor and set it in by about a foot
23· ·and a half more now to accommodate the new detail
24· ·that seemingly lowers the visual height of the
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·1· ·building.
·2· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Thanks.
·3· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· On those sketches, you're
·4· ·not showing the change of the garage entrance on
·5· ·that; is that correct?
·6· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· That's correct.· Yes.
·7· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· So will we be seeing
·8· ·that?
·9· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· We'll be seeing it in
10· ·plan, and I'll explain why and how that's come
11· ·about and where we are.· But correctly, at the
12· ·time that these images were developed, that
13· ·wasn't even contemplated.
14· · · · · · · So here, the same sort of comparison
15· ·previous to new and then previous to new once
16· ·again on the right-hand side.· And then looking
17· ·at the actual perspectives, we're just going to
18· ·take a quick spin through all of the
19· ·perspectives that we've seen previously that
20· ·show the project in the state that we would have
21· ·presented it on December 18, had we come before
22· ·the board at that date.
23· · · · · · · So here, actually, we're looking
24· ·straight down Freeman Street at the pocket park
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·1· ·that sits in between the entrances and exits to
·2· ·Freeman Street and Babcock Street, what would be
·3· ·the front of the building.· Here, we're at the
·4· ·location where Freeman Street intersects Babcock
·5· ·Street, and we're looking kind of -- we're
·6· ·looking southwest at the front elevation of the
·7· ·building.
·8· · · · · · · Here, we're a little bit further north
·9· ·on Babcock Street looking south.· Here, we're
10· ·over on Manchester Road, and we're looking
11· ·through the rear yards that sit behind the homes
12· ·that front on Babcock Street toward the
13· ·northern-most elevation of the building.
14· · · · · · · Here, we're a little bit closer in to
15· ·the fence and to that rear yard condition, and
16· ·you can see some of the existing retaining walls
17· ·in that location and the natural changing grade
18· ·as the grade rises up toward the building.· Hence
19· ·the reason that the lower level of the building
20· ·starts to be partially screened by the natural
21· ·grading, and then further by the landscaping
22· ·that we're proposing so that you're really -23· ·here, you're looking at that first kind of
24· ·residential floor in this view.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Don't move.· How accurate
·2· ·are your depiction of the trees?
·3· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· So that's a great
·4· ·question, because what we've done is not only
·5· ·did we go out to the site and kind of photograph
·6· ·all of the existing trees earlier in the year
·7· ·when they had vegetation on them, but we spent at
·8· ·least two weeks going through and developing all
·9· ·of the landscaping and vegetation here in a way
10· ·that it would closely resemble what's there
11· ·today.
12· · · · · · · We actually in our earlier images to
13· ·the board had neglected to show a lot of that
14· ·imagery because we didn't want to be criticized
15· ·for artificially shielding the building based on
16· ·the existing vegetated kind of canopies and
17· ·bufferings that were there.
18· · · · · · · So what we've done is we have
19· ·represented what would be kind of the leafy
20· ·summer condition, but we also have a series of
21· ·images that show what this would look like in the
22· ·winter as well when all those leaves are gone, so
23· ·you can kind of compare and contrast between the
24· ·two.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Will we actually see the
·2· ·size of the trees on all of these renditions?
·3· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· In the sense that?
·4· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Well, if you go back
·5· ·numbers of slides -- and I didn't want to stop
·6· ·you at that point -- you're showing site
·7· ·perspectives from Stedman and from Manchester
·8· ·looking up at the building, and there are a
·9· ·number of trees that are shown there.· In
10· ·addition to your proposed plantings, you're
11· ·showing trees off the site -12· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· That's correct.
13· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· -- from the abutting
14· ·neighbors, and I'm asking how accurate those
15· ·are.
16· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· As accurate as we could
17· ·possibly get them.· We spent a great deal of time
18· ·insuring that accuracy.
19· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· We're not taking public
20· ·comment right now.· Thank you.
21· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· So here, we're also
22· ·looking again through that existing vegetation
23· ·back at the building.· Here, we're now starting
24· ·to swing around onto Stedman Street.
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·1· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Do you have any
·2· ·photographs that you used as the basis for
·3· ·these?
·4· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Not with us as a part of
·5· ·this presentation, no.
·6· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Thanks.
·7· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Here, we're standing in
·8· ·the rear yard, theoretically in the rear yard of
·9· ·one of the homes on Stedman Street that sits
10· ·directly behind the project, looking up that
11· ·hill, looking at the fence and the property, and
12· ·looking again at the building in the distance
13· ·beyond.
14· · · · · · · Here, we're looking down the driveway
15· ·in between two homes that sit on Stedman Street,
16· ·looking again back at the property and kind of in
17· ·this area of the rendering, which is really
18· ·difficult to see because of the existing tree
19· ·canopy.· You do see this is where 120 Babcock
20· ·Street exists, just to give you a sense of kind
21· ·of the orientation here looking back at the
22· ·project.
23· · · · · · · Here, we're back on Babcock Street
24· ·again looking north and demonstrating that the
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·1· ·facade of the building is in line with the facade
·2· ·of 120 Babcock Street, with the exception of the
·3· ·bump-out, which we have chosen to keep on the
·4· ·project because of its residential character and
·5· ·the fact that it does help this building feel
·6· ·more residential and less commercial, and we
·7· ·feel it's important for the architectural
·8· ·character to keep that bump-out.
·9· · · · · · · And now, we're back in kind of that
10· ·original view we were looking at as we started to
11· ·look through some of the massing comparisons.
12· ·This is just a view again from Freeman Street
13· ·looking west in between 120 Babcock Street and
14· ·the proposed building on the right.
15· · · · · · · So here, we're going to flip through a
16· ·series of the same views, but in more of a winter
17· ·condition, which removes a lot of the kind of
18· ·leaves and natural screening that we could
19· ·expect from the existing vegetation beyond the
20· ·project site itself.
21· · · · · · · So here, we're looking through those
22· ·same -- this is the same view that we were
23· ·looking at through the Manchester yard so you
24· ·can understand kind of where that uppermost
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·1· ·story is and how the building sits in relation to
·2· ·grade and how the grade kind of marries up to the
·3· ·elevation of the podium itself.
·4· · · · · · · Here, we're in that same view from the
·5· ·rear yard of the Stedman Street abutters looking
·6· ·back up toward the rear of the project.· Note, I
·7· ·think most importantly, that you don't see the
·8· ·fifth floor because of the view in the site
·9· ·lines, the way it's designed.· And really what
10· ·you see are these first two residential floors
11· ·and then that third-most uppermost residential
12· ·floor that's nestled within the mansard roof
13· ·condition and has a series of dormers that allow
14· ·us to get windows in there and kind of create
15· ·liveable space at that level.
16· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Is that where the balcony
17· ·is?
18· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· So the balcony is
19· ·actually up above this level and set back from
20· ·the edge of the roof.
21· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Oh, okay, so it's set
22· ·back into the fifth floor?
23· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· That's correct.
24· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Peter, does this --

1-617-542-0039

DTI Court Reporting Solution - Boston
www.deposition.com

YVer1f

PUBLIC HEARING· ·- 01/29/2018

Page 55

·1· ·would you be able to see the air conditioning
·2· ·mechanicals from this view?
·3· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· No.· Actually, it is in
·4· ·this model.· It was in this model that was used
·5· ·to generate these views, and you can't see it
·6· ·because it is set far enough back from the edge
·7· ·that it's not visible.
·8· · · · · · · When we get to our current progress
·9· ·drawings, we're going to talk about some of the
10· ·changes that Maria had spoken to at the fourth
11· ·floor.· This section of the bump-out in this roof
12· ·condition is where we've further modified the
13· ·project to give ourselves at least 20 feet all
14· ·the way along the top of the building, the reason
15· ·being this portion of the building is the
16· ·portion that casts the most shadow onto the rear
17· ·yards at Stedman Street, and it's really the
18· ·uppermost floors that have that impact on the
19· ·shadow patterns at the rear yards.
20· · · · · · · So by creating a greater setback all
21· ·the way along the entire top of the floor, we've
22· ·taken the area that's created the most
23· ·significant impact and tried to mitigate that by
24· ·reducing the footprint, without necessarily
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·1· ·causing a series of other changes to the lower
·2· ·floors and to the parking level that would have
·3· ·dramatically altered the parking count and some
·4· ·of the density in the projects.· We're trying to
·5· ·kind of balance some of those concerns with the
·6· ·technical aspects of the project itself.
·7· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· By the way, is that fence
·8· ·part of your proposal?
·9· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· It is part of the
10· ·proposal, yes.
11· · · · · · · Here, we're looking north along
12· ·Babcock Street.· So we'll talk briefly about
13· ·shadow studies.· The board had asked that we
14· ·recreate all of the shadow studies to be current
15· ·with the existing or proposed project, and so we
16· ·went through and did all of that.· Anything in
17· ·red is new, and anything that's dark gray is old.
18· ·It's a lot clearer to see on a computer screen,
19· ·and a lot harder to see on this screen
20· ·particularly.
21· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· You're going to have to
22· ·point that out to me because I'm not following.
23· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Sure.· So on the left24· ·hand side of the image -- and all of these

1-617-542-0039

DTI Court Reporting Solution - Boston
www.deposition.com

YVer1f

PUBLIC HEARING· ·- 01/29/2018

Page 57

·1· ·studies are set the same way in the sense that

-

·2· ·- what you're looking at on the left-hand side is
·3· ·a morning view at 7:00 a.m., on the right-hand
·4· ·side is a view later in the day at around 9:00
·5· ·a.m., and then there are two other corresponding
·6· ·views on this day, which is March 21, that show
·7· ·the shadows at noon and then again in the
·8· ·evening.
·9· · · · · · · So imagining that the sun tracks from
10· ·east to west and carries south -- so it starts
11· ·here, it travels down and lands up on the left12· ·hand side of the page -- what you're noticing is
13· ·the morning sun here.· And so this portion that
14· ·we're showing in this red here is new shadow
15· ·that's being created by the project that doesn't
16· ·exist today.
17· · · · · · · In the case of the kind of midmorning
18· ·look, so by 9:00, this area you can see is the
19· ·new shadow that's being created that isn't there
20· ·today.· But you'll note that there's a portion of
21· ·the shadow that we're creating that is falling
22· ·within a shadow that's already being casted by
23· ·120 Babcock Street.· So there's kind of a
24· ·relationship between all of the shadow patterns.
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·1· · · · · · · The other thing that isn't being
·2· ·represented in these images is any of the
·3· ·shadows that come as a result of the existing
·4· ·tree canopy or other vegetation around the site,
·5· ·it's very difficult to get that sort of
·6· ·information here, and it kind of takes away from
·7· ·what we're really looking at, which is the true
·8· ·impact of the shadows that we are adding to the
·9· ·neighborhood.· So there might be existing
10· ·shadows that are created by those trees that
11· ·were just overlapping on top of, but we're
12· ·taking any of those existing shadows from the
13· ·trees off the table and looking purely at the
14· ·impacts from building at the moment.
15· · · · · · · So then when we get to a noontime
16· ·condition in March, you can see that we're
17· ·adding shadow in these locations here, and then
18· ·we're adding some shadow in these locations.
19· ·But, for example, the existing shadow here that
20· ·would already have fallen from 120 Babcock
21· ·Street is not being replaced or exacerbated by
22· ·what we're doing.· We're just replicating that
23· ·shadow condition.
24· · · · · · · And I think the greatest example of
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·1· ·this is when we look really late in the evening
·2· ·in March when the sun is kind of lowest toward
·3· ·the horizon and casts the longest shadows, and
·4· ·you can see that because of the existing
·5· ·elevations and shadows of the structures that
·6· ·are already there today.· The area of new shadow
·7· ·that's created by the project is this sliver
·8· ·right here that didn't already have shadow
·9· ·today.· So there's kind of a relationship
10· ·between how all of these shadows interact from
11· ·existing to new and proposed.
12· · · · · · · So then looking at June -- again,
13· ·these are very short windows or intervals
14· ·throughout the day, so we're just kind of seeing
15· ·how the sun tracks and changes.· We're doing the
16· ·same thing.· We're looking at that same sort of
17· ·additional impact from that shadow, and, again,
18· ·in the afternoon and in the evening.
19· · · · · · · Here, we're looking at September when
20· ·the sun is starting to get lower again in the
21· ·sky, and we're looking at early morning,
22· ·midmorning, midday, and then looking at evening.
23· · · · · · · And then we head to December -- we're
24· ·almost at December.· So here, we have December.
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·1· ·We look at kind of morning and -- we've had to
·2· ·take a measurement a little bit later in the
·3· ·morning because the sun comes up above the
·4· ·horizon a little bit later, and it sets a little
·5· ·bit earlier.· So at the end of the day, we've
·6· ·moved our time up to really capture the most
·7· ·extreme shadows at the extreme times of the
·8· ·year.
·9· · · · · · · You can see here, for example, that
10· ·this area is the new shadow that we're creating
11· ·that kind of slots in between all of the existing
12· ·shadows from the existing structures.· Now,
13· ·we're looking at midmorning, midday, kind of
14· ·middle afternoon, and then evening.
15· · · · · · · So talking about the site -- these are
16· ·just some placeholders that are here for
17· ·reference if we need them that are unchanged
18· ·from all of the other eight times that we've
19· ·looked at this project.· This is that updated
20· ·survey that was completed in the end of October,
21· ·and that was used as a basis for a lot of the
22· ·changes that we did make to all of the modeling,
23· ·all of the prep plans, all of the information for
24· ·the project.
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·1· · · · · · · We basically took the old model that
·2· ·we had, pretended that it didn't exist and
·3· ·started from scratch using this data to rebuild
·4· ·that model to confirm and compare.· Our old model
·5· ·was within a reasonable degree of accuracy to
·6· ·what this survey showed, but we wanted to make
·7· ·sure that the information we presented to you
·8· ·was completely and wholly tied to the technical
·9· ·data that we were provided by the survey crew who
10· ·went out there and took these measurements on
11· ·site.· So we incorporated all of that into all of
12· ·our materials.
13· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Peter, my understanding
14· ·is that based on recent reviews of plot plans and
15· ·surveys, it was determined that some of the
16· ·abutters' property ended closer to -- further in
17· ·on the Babcock property than was previously
18· ·known, and that about 208 feet, as I recall, were
19· ·lost, if you will, as being the abutters'
20· ·property rather than the Babcock property.· How
21· ·does that affect, if at all, any of this?
22· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· That's a great question.
23· ·So what you're referring to is a difference in

-

24· ·- when surveyors measure a site like this and
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·1· ·understand and try to determine where the
·2· ·boundaries are, they take realtime data that's
·3· ·used in GPS coordinates and tracking to confirm
·4· ·metes and bounds that are within actual deeds,
·5· ·and they're also looking back at historical land
·6· ·records to determine between those two sources
·7· ·where the property line is located.· In this
·8· ·case, the instance that you're referring to was
·9· ·uncovered from looking at an historical map that
10· ·indicated the lot lines were potentially in
11· ·different locations.
12· · · · · · · So this survey was updated to reflect
13· ·the proper location of that rear lot line, and
14· ·the current progress plans that we're about to
15· ·see do reflect that actual condition.· So we've
16· ·made adjustments to the project based on that to
17· ·maintain the setbacks.
18· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· This reflects a land
19· ·court decree, I believe.
20· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Yes.· That's correct.
21· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Okay.· Great.· Thank
22· ·you.
23· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· So this is the civil
24· ·engineering plan that dovetails, not only to the
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·1· ·revised kind of plans that we've been looking
·2· ·at, but also to that property line condition in
·3· ·all of the storm water reporting that we've
·4· ·looked at.· There's not a great deal of
·5· ·information here that is worth us kind of
·6· ·getting into right now because it's all captured
·7· ·by the building plans themselves or by the
·8· ·landscape plan, but it is the layer of analysis
·9· ·the civil engineer has done to confirm all of the
10· ·assumptions that we've made on the architecture
11· ·and landscape side.
12· · · · · · · So leading up to that December 18
13· ·plan, this was the revised landscaping plan that
14· ·we would have presented that did address some of
15· ·the concerns about the tree species at the rear
16· ·of the property, addressed the diversity of
17· ·planting types and kind of the overall character
18· ·of that landscaping plan.
19· · · · · · · We've since changed this a little bit
20· ·more to correspond with the current plans, so we
21· ·won't spend anymore time looking at it or
22· ·talking about it, but our landscape architect
23· ·will talk more about this as we look at the
24· ·current plan.· And this was kind of a listing of
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·1· ·all the plantings that were being considered at
·2· ·that time.
·3· · · · · · · So current project progress site.
·4· ·Here's our site plan that we've been working
·5· ·with, as well as the corresponding survey.· And
·6· ·here, you can start to see that change to the
·7· ·geometry of the driveway entry, which we'll talk
·8· ·about in a second.
·9· · · · · · · This is all of the kind of technical
10· ·analysis that was done on the civil engineering
11· ·side to respond to peer review comments, and
12· ·also to Peter Ditto's comments as well.· So the
13· ·notes and analysis on this plan are something
14· ·that have been a result of extensive discussions
15· ·between engineering departments to insure that
16· ·the project can comply with the requirements and
17· ·standards of the Town of Brookline.
18· · · · · · · Looking at building plans.· So one of
19· ·the questions that was asked before is about
20· ·this driveway reconfiguration.· So we'll see the
21· ·auto turn analysis that supports this conclusion
22· ·in a moment.· But we widened the driveway width
23· ·to be a little bit more than 20 feet, and I say a
24· ·little bit more because it varies, depending on
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·1· ·where you take that measurement, and 20 is its
·2· ·minimum width.
·3· · · · · · · So we have a minimum width of 20 feet
·4· ·to enter the property now.· And we've also angled
·5· ·the garage under the edge of the building above
·6· ·here to allow for a smoother turning movement
·7· ·for cars entering and exiting into the garage.
·8· ·As a result, we've actually been able to
·9· ·increase our mail and package room a little bit,
10· ·which will serve the property well functionally
11· ·over the course of its life cycle.
12· · · · · · · But we've also been able to, for the
13· ·most part, maintain our parking.· So in this
14· ·plan, we are still proposing 36 total spaces,· 34
15· ·of which are accommodated using the
16· ·semiautomatic lift system.· There's one
17· ·dedicated van space and one dedicated accessible
18· ·space, which is a ratio of .8 spaces per unit.
19· · · · · · · We've also, as I had mentioned,
20· ·adjusted the rear footprint of the building to
21· ·accommodate the revised property line location
22· ·so that we are maintaining the 20-foot setback,
23· ·the 15-foot 10 setback, and the 21-foot setback
24· ·along the length of that rear property line.
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·1· · · · · · · We've enlarged and reconfigured the
·2· ·trash room and location to correspond with
·3· ·changes to the building above, but also in
·4· ·response to questions from the Health Department
·5· ·and from Pat Maloney about the trash service
·6· ·program.· So all of our planning here has been
·7· ·based on equipment analysis, capacity analysis,
·8· ·and reviewed and confirmed by both our engineer
·9· ·and the town itself that has looked at and
10· ·reviewed all of that information.
11· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Peter, just a quick
12· ·question.· Any deviation from like, say, the
13· ·standard stall widths, is there a certain
14· ·percentage of compact spaces?· Any comment on
15· ·like the type of parking spaces that you have?
16· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· That's a good question.
17· ·All of the actual widths, the lengths of all of
18· ·these spaces, exceed the minimum requirements
19· ·from the Town of Brookline.· We actually have a
20· ·question in to the manufacturer right now to
21· ·understand the exact widths of the parking
22· ·spaces once they're built.· They're specified to
23· ·be at 8 foot 5 inches, but all of these lifts are
24· ·and can be custom manufactured within a few
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·1· ·inches, so we're trying to confirm from them
·2· ·exactly what that width is going to be.· That's a
·3· ·question that Maria had asked us earlier this
·4· ·morning and something that we started to look
·5· ·into today, and it's information we'll provide
·6· ·to the board in a followup.
·7· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Thank you.
·8· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· So looking at the upper
·9· ·floor plans -- we're here at floor two -- you can
10· ·see that that bump-out at the first floor
11· ·carries up to the second floor, and we're still
12· ·at our 45 total units.· We have 20 studios, 13
13· ·one-beds, 7 two-beds, and 5 three-beds
14· ·distributed throughout all of our residential
15· ·floors, a total residential gross square footage
16· ·of 42,878 square feet, which dovetails with the
17· ·net rentable square footage of 34,855 square
18· ·feet.
19· · · · · · · The third floor you can see is similar
20· ·to the second floor, though, again, we've
21· ·swapped out a few of the units to accommodate a
22· ·larger unit, a three-bed unit, on this floor.
23· ·This is where we really see -- I'm going to flip
24· ·between the third and the fourth floor plan to
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·1· ·illustrate this change.
·2· · · · · · · So if we pay attention to the rear of
·3· ·the property, and we look at the third floor
·4· ·plan, you'll note that we've taken that bump-out
·5· ·off on the fourth floor so that the fourth floor
·6· ·is a clean 20 feet at a minimum, up to 21 feet at
·7· ·the south side from that rear property line.
·8· ·This area of the project was having the greatest
·9· ·-- of all of the project's impacts, it was having
10· ·the most impact on shadows for the abutters
11· ·along Stedman Street and the most impact on
12· ·their view lines to open sky.· So we chose to
13· ·concentrate the adjustments to the project in
14· ·that location to address some of those concerns
15· ·and to try to move in that direction.
16· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· So Peter, sorry for all
17· ·of these interruptions.
18· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Not at all.
19· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· The change was made,
20· ·and it affected the impact of shadows that are
21· ·throughout.· Do you have any sort of measurement
22· ·of that?· I mean, it was put back four feet, so
23· ·there are four feet less of shadows cast on the
24· ·neighbors around the plantings?
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·1· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· So the extent that the
·2· ·shadow is cast is -- it changes based on the time
·3· ·of day and the time of year, but I think this -·4· ·so you could imagine that shadows on March 21 at
·5· ·9:00 a.m. in the morning for a building that has
·6· ·15 feet ten inches versus 20 feet, right,
·7· ·they're going to be proportionately -- they'll
·8· ·change proportionately.· So anything we change
·9· ·in the height would have a proportional impact
10· ·on the difference in the shadow sort of casting
11· ·length at that time of day.
12· · · · · · · So the way to talk about that without
13· ·talking about the minutia of how that changes is
14· ·to say if you looked at -- if you mentioned the
15· ·sun were at a 45-degree angle shining down on the
16· ·building, the distance that the shadow is cast
17· ·from the building would be equal to its height.
18· ·So if we had 50 feet at that location, it would
19· ·be a 50-foot shadow; if we had 45 feet, it would
20· ·be 45-feet.· So there's kind of a proportionate
21· ·change in shadow distance to height.· Does that
22· ·help answer your question?
23· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Absolutely, yeah.
24· ·Thank you.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· So here, we're looking
·2· ·at the fifth floor plan, and one of the
·3· ·requirements of 40B, and specifically with
·4· ·regard to the program of this project, is that we
·5· ·need to provide at least ten percent of our units
·6· ·as three-bed units.
·7· · · · · · · In order to make the adjustment to the
·8· ·fourth floor to accommodate that increased
·9· ·setback, we need to relocate one of our three10· ·bed units to the fifth floor here.· So we've
11· ·actually taken this line of the building at the
12· ·fifth floor and moved it about four and a half or
13· ·five feet further to the west than it was in the
14· ·plan that we would have shown you on December 18,
15· ·and we've recaptured this space behind the trash
16· ·room as building support space.· That's for use
17· ·by building management, because we know that
18· ·they're going to need a space like that at some
19· ·point in the future.
20· · · · · · · The deck itself here measures roughly
21· ·13 feet by about 11 feet, meaning that it is a
22· ·reasonable size for residents to use from within
23· ·the building.· It's set back far enough from the
24· ·edge of the roof that it is not visible directly

1-617-542-0039

DTI Court Reporting Solution - Boston
www.deposition.com

YVer1f

PUBLIC HEARING· ·- 01/29/2018

Page 71

·1· ·as a line of sight from the rear yards of Stedman
·2· ·Street, but it also is not large enough to be
·3· ·counted as part of our kind of landscaped or
·4· ·usable open space in the project.· So any of the
·5· ·calculations that we submit in the waiver
·6· ·analysis don't include this as a measure of open
·7· ·space for the project from a technical
·8· ·standpoint.
·9· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· This is still a common
10· ·deck to the entire building?
11· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· That's correct.· And
12· ·here, we're looking at the roof plan.· And to
13· ·your question, Kate, about the rooftop units and
14· ·mechanical units, we could expect this type of
15· ·configuration where they're clustered in the
16· ·center of the building away from the edges of the
17· ·roof so that they're out of site lines, but we've
18· ·also, actually, added in rooftop screening
19· ·around these as well, not only to channel sound
20· ·upward, but also to completely eliminate the
21· ·possibility of any sort of visual impact.
22· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· What sort of screening?
23· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· It's just a typical kind
24· ·of -- it's like a louvered screening that stands
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·1· ·off of the roof, and it comes just slightly above
·2· ·the height of the mechanical unit themselves.
·3· ·So it's about 42 inches to the top of the screen,
·4· ·and it's in a material that's consistent with
·5· ·the rest of the building.· It's like a fiber
·6· ·cement siding sort of look, yeah.
·7· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Thank you.
·8· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Is there only one
·9· ·elevator?· It has only one elevator?
10· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· That's correct.· There's
11· ·only one elevator.
12· · · · · · · So looking at the auto turn analysis
13· ·briefly, the cars in blue that we're going to
14· ·look at are cars that are entering.· The cars in
15· ·red are cars that are exiting.· We'll look at one
16· ·and then the other and then both.
17· · · · · · · This is a turning analysis that looks
18· ·at a standard passenger car and the movements it
19· ·would be expected to undertake if it were making
20· ·a right-hand turn into the property from Babcock
21· ·Street or a left-hand turn into the garage and
22· ·then parking in any one of the spaces throughout
23· ·the garage itself.
24· · · · · · · Here, we see the same sort of
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·1· ·maneuvering that would be required for a vehicle
·2· ·that was exiting a space and then exiting the
·3· ·garage itself and turning left or right onto
·4· ·Babcock Street.· And here, we look at both of
·5· ·those paths of travel at the same time and see
·6· ·that the previous conflicts that one would have
·7· ·expected between vehicles entering and exiting
·8· ·at the same time have been eliminated by the
·9· ·changes in the geometry at the garage door, and
10· ·also by the changes in width at the driveway
11· ·entry.
12· · · · · · · There was a proposal, or a suggestion,
13· ·I should say, that we should consider looking at
14· ·revising the plan to accommodate some sort of
15· ·loading or service area beyond the driveway
16· ·apron in this location.· Both our traffic
17· ·reviewer, the peer reviewer, as well, advised
18· ·against putting that sort of condition in place
19· ·here.
20· · · · · · · From a design standpoint or from a
21· ·site standpoint, there are a lot of challenges
22· ·to doing that, but from a safety standpoint, it
23· ·would have created the potential for some unsafe
24· ·conditions in this location to have the sort of
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·1· ·turning maneuvers and sort of access that we
·2· ·would have needed to get to that location, so we
·3· ·chose not to include that within the project.
·4· · · · · · · So now, we actually have the landscape
·5· ·plan itself.· This is representative of the
·6· ·current progress plan that we've looked at.· Our
·7· ·landscape architect is on hand to speak to this
·8· ·in any level of detail if the board has questions
·9· ·about specific species or plantings.
10· · · · · · · But most specifically, the planting
11· ·plan was adjusted and revised in response to the
12· ·board's comments, the peer review architect's
13· ·comments, and also coordinated with
14· ·recommendations from both the project team's
15· ·arborist and the town's arborist with regard to
16· ·the types of trees and species and plantings
17· ·that would have the least impact on the kind of
18· ·hydrology and microclimate of the site and its
19· ·relation to all of the other kind of surrounding
20· ·trees and existing bushes and so forth.
21· · · · · · · And here is kind of a schedule of the
22· ·types of plantings that are proposed, as well as
23· ·the fencing that's proposed for the project
24· ·itself so you can kind of get a sense of what
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·1· ·some of that is.
·2· · · · · · · So talking about tree protection just
·3· ·briefly, so here -- what you're noticing here
·4· ·are the tree locations that were identified, not
·5· ·only by our survey crew, but also by the abutters
·6· ·who did their own independent survey of where
·7· ·these trees are located outside of the project
·8· ·site, and then the roof protection zones that
·9· ·were identified by the arborist that was
10· ·retained by the abutters to evaluate potential
11· ·impacts to those trees.
12· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· One second, Peter.
13· ·Sorry.· Excuse me.· Those are actually mine, and
14· ·the other arborists are a larger representation.
15· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· So Howard, our arborist,
16· ·was just speaking and indicating that -- what
17· ·we've actually done is we've -- the abutters'
18· ·arborist presented a roof protection zone that
19· ·was larger based on a series of technical
20· ·methodology about determining root protection
21· ·zones that I can get into if we want to talk
22· ·about it, but I won't go there if we don't want
23· ·to talk about that.
24· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Well, someone's going
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·1· ·to have to at some point.
·2· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Sure.· It's essentially
·3· ·a function of the diameter of the caliper of the
·4· ·tree itself and a multiplier based on that
·5· ·caliper that says if a tree is X number of inches
·6· ·wide, the root protection zone is Y number
·7· ·inches around.· And there are varying resources
·8· ·within the landscaping and kind of tree industry
·9· ·about where that number comes from.
10· · · · · · · Our arborist had a different take on
11· ·what that measurement should be.· So the circles
12· ·you see here are less than what was shown in the
13· ·abutters' arborist circles, but are greater than
14· ·what's really shown as the actual critical root
15· ·protection zone that's identified by the
16· ·synthesis of those standards.
17· · · · · · · And I think no matter who you talk to,
18· ·any of the arborists I've heard speak about this
19· ·issue, even my own understanding of it, there is
20· ·-- it's not a kind of one for one rule of thumb,
21· ·where there's a black and white answer on
22· ·exactly what that zone is.· So what we've done is
23· ·we've taken what we feel is a conservative look
24· ·for what that zone of influence is for where
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·1· ·these root protection zones should be or could
·2· ·be.
·3· · · · · · · From this study, and from an
·4· ·understanding of where the areas of impact
·5· ·really would be located, and that's kind of in
·6· ·this zone along the rear of the project, we've
·7· ·used that to say here's where we need to do our
·8· ·site analysis in our actual test pits.
·9· · · · · · · And so we've done those three test pit
10· ·locations that are indicated in yellow to
11· ·determine the actual presence of roots at those
12· ·locations and whether or not there would be an
13· ·impact or a potential impact to those roots that
14· ·we need to be aware of so we could gear kind of
15· ·the foundation options and any of the
16· ·construction methodology to protect those trees
17· ·and the root systems in those locations.
18· · · · · · · Howard is here to speak about this in
19· ·a little bit more detail.· But essentially, what
20· ·this is is a visual analysis.· When we talk about
21· ·the crowns of these trees and the canopies
22· ·themselves, parts of these trees do overhang the
23· ·proposed project site, even though the trunk of
24· ·the tree itself is located off of the project
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·1· ·site.
·2· · · · · · · And so there are a series of
·3· ·guidelines and recommendations that need to be
·4· ·followed that indicate that this project can't
·5· ·do damage to those trees or hurt or kill those
·6· ·trees in any way as a result of the construction
·7· ·or the project itself, but that it can undertake
·8· ·some measure of pruning or adjustments to those
·9· ·trees in a way that corresponds with the
10· ·proposed construction.
11· · · · · · · And so what this is is a detailed
12· ·survey and photos of each of those trees and an
13· ·indication of the areas that would be subject to
14· ·those types of pruning or sort of adjustments to
15· ·accommodate some of the new building that we're
16· ·talking about here.
17· · · · · · · For example, looking at this slide -18· ·and I won't read this for every single slide, but
19· ·I'll use this to set the table for the others -20· ·the yellow arrows indicate areas where reduction
21· ·pruning is possible following the guidelines
22· ·provided, and the guidelines provided refer to
23· ·the guidelines that were provided in the
24· ·arborist's report that we submitted to the town
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·1· ·for record, and also to the ZBA and for all the
·2· ·peer reviewers to comment on.
·3· · · · · · · The red arrow indicates with the top
·4· ·of an adjacent stem emanating from a clump of elm
·5· ·trees grows through the crotch of the maple, and
·6· ·so that stem should be removed, and that's with
·7· ·regard to the impact those trees are having on
·8· ·each other.· And the white arrow indicates where
·9· ·a large scaffold limb may need to be removed if
10· ·reduction pruning would be too severe.
11· · · · · · · So really what this is is a series of
12· ·options that would be available to the project
13· ·team and the construction team as they're on
14· ·site working on the process of constructing the
15· ·building, and all of these suggestions comply
16· ·with the list of requirements that are set forth
17· ·in the tree protection plan that was submitted
18· ·to the ZBA and to the town for review.· So this
19· ·is indicating for you graphically how all of
20· ·those requirements would translate to real life
21· ·impacts on those trees and those locations.
22· · · · · · · And so we can see these are the same
23· ·trees we were looking at in the plan location,
24· ·and we're looking here at some of the results
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·1· ·from the actual test pits themselves in each
·2· ·location, looking at some of the existing roof
·3· ·conditions that were located there.· And again,
·4· ·the furthest north and the furthest north test
·5· ·pit.
·6· · · · · · · So I suspected -- tree roots typically
·7· ·tend to grow in the direction that water is
·8· ·available.· And when you have asphalt paving on a
·9· ·site that doesn't allow direct percolation into
10· ·the soil for natural rainwater, it's less likely
11· ·that a tree's roots would grow in that direction
12· ·because they don't really serve much of a
13· ·purpose to get the water or other nutrients that
14· ·the tree is going to need.
15· · · · · · · That said, there are a few roots that
16· ·were identified as part of this analysis, and
17· ·those roots have been cataloged and tagged as
18· ·part of the tree protection plan and are subject
19· ·to all of the protections and requirements of
20· ·the tree protection plan that is proposed as a
21· ·part of our arborist's report.
22· · · · · · · So this is where we get to talking
23· ·about foundation options, which is really the
24· ·way that, from a construction standpoint, we
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·1· ·respond to all of the data that we've gathered to
·2· ·date.
·3· · · · · · · The areas in yellow, again, are those
·4· ·areas of protection that we need to be concerned
·5· ·about, and Option Number 1 is the typical way
·6· ·that one of these types of foundations would be
·7· ·achieved.· It's what's called an open cut
·8· ·excavation.· And essentially, there's an angle
·9· ·that the grade can be cut back to where the soil
10· ·naturally stabilizes itself and prevents the
11· ·hole or excavation from kind of caving in on
12· ·itself, and that angle is called the angle of
13· ·repose.
14· · · · · · · And so in this condition -- in this
15· ·option, in order to get the foundation wall
16· ·installed as we're proposing it, we would need
17· ·to cut back the slope at about roughly a 4518· ·degree angle, so that would get us roughly a
19· ·12-foot area of excavation.· And as you can see,
20· ·that has a pretty significant overlap with some
21· ·of the areas we've identified as possible
22· ·locations of roots for these other trees and
23· ·areas that we want to be really sensitive in.
24· · · · · · · Instead, this is the second option
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·1· ·that we are proposing, and this is the preferred
·2· ·option that the project wants to use moving
·3· ·forward.· It involves what's called a temporary
·4· ·excavation support.
·5· · · · · · · And essentially what you do is instead
·6· ·of cutting back this large angle at the backside
·7· ·of the project, you install a series of what are
·8· ·called piles in the ground, and then you install
·9· ·-- you dig a very narrow trench, and you install
10· ·what's called lining in between the piles, and
11· ·that serves to temporarily hold back the earth
12· ·that sits on the other side of that foundation
13· ·cut, and then you remove all of the soil from the
14· ·inside of that wall so that you can install your
15· ·foundation and backfill.
16· · · · · · · So instead of having a 12-foot
17· ·excavation cut, here, we're looking at a two- or
18· ·a three-foot excavation cut from where the
19· ·foundation wall will actually be located.· So
20· ·suddenly, the area of impact in relation to
21· ·those critical zones or areas is reduced
22· ·significantly by taking this approach to
23· ·constructing the foundations at the rear of the
24· ·property.
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·1· · · · · · · It's a less natural way to build a
·2· ·foundation, it's a more expensive way to build a
·3· ·foundation, but it is also the appropriate
·4· ·approach in order to do as much as we can
·5· ·possibly do to protect the existing vegetation
·6· ·along that property line, and it involves the
·7· ·least amount of impact to the kind of rear yard
·8· ·itself and the existing conditions of that soil.
·9· · · · · · · So that's all 112 slides that get us
10· ·to where we are today, happy dance.· Are there
11· ·any questions the board might have?
12· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Yeah, one question.· If
13· ·in the course of this more expensive temporary
14· ·excavation, you were to kill a tree, what would
15· ·you do?
16· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· I'm just looking to -17· ·that's mostly -- I think that's more of a legal
18· ·than an architecture question.· So I don't know
19· ·if there's someone else on the project team that
20· ·would be better qualified to answer that.
21· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· It is part of the tree
22· ·protection plan, though, isn't it?
23· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· I believe it is.
24· · · · · · · MR. ENGLER:· For the record, Geoff
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·1· ·Engler from SEB.· If we were to kill a tree, the
·2· ·owner of that tree would have the same recourse
·3· ·against my client that they would if somebody
·4· ·was building a single-family house and they
·5· ·killed a tree.· You're not allowed to kill trees
·6· ·off other people's property, so it would go
·7· ·through that course of action.· I don't know if
·8· ·that answers your question, but -·9· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· It's not making me happy.
10· ·I would prefer to have a position where you agree
11· ·to replace a tree or -12· · · · · · · MR. ENGLER:· Well, our position is
13· ·this.· We submitted a very detailed report from
14· ·our arborist that would make the entire
15· ·construction team adhere to a very rigorous
16· ·construction mitigation plan that would be
17· ·imposed specifically to protect and preserve
18· ·vegetation within the areas of interest, and
19· ·that would be a condition of the permit and would
20· ·be overseen by an arborist and by the general
21· ·contractor.
22· · · · · · · And the town would have recourse if
23· ·those procedures were not implemented and
24· ·followed.· And if they are implemented and
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·1· ·followed, as they should be, then our position
·2· ·is the trees in question will be preserved, as
·3· ·our arborist has researched, and as McPhail.
·4· ·Because our client is willing to go to this very
·5· ·expensive construction approach, the area of
·6· ·disturbance will be significantly less.
·7· · · · · · · So that's our position.· That's why
·8· ·we're going to the lengths that we're going so
·9· ·that trees don't get damaged.· We were asked the
10· ·question what happens if they do.
11· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Do you want to follow up?
12· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Well, as we all know,
13· ·things happen.· And I know, based on my limited
14· ·reading of Massachusetts laws, both statutory
15· ·and case law, the individual whose tree was
16· ·damaged without their permission is entitled to
17· ·things like triple damages, etcetera.· What I
18· ·think would -- and this may be what Mark is
19· ·referring to -- is I think we'd hate to see a
20· ·situation where an abutter's property was
21· ·damaged, and the response is sue us in court.
22· · · · · · · MR. ENGLER:· Well, if that was my
23· ·response, I did not mean it to be or intend it to
24· ·be so callous, and I apologize for that.· But
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·1· ·clearly, listen, it doesn't take a genius to
·2· ·figure out that the protection of these trees
·3· ·has been one of the most important issues to the
·4· ·abutters, really throughout the entire process,
·5· ·and it's not an issue that -·6· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I would agree with
·7· ·that, and I acknowledge all the steps you have
·8· ·taken, but like I said -·9· · · · · · · MR. ENGLER:· Right.· So we're not
10· ·saying, well, too bad or sue us or whatnot.

I

11· ·mean, we would expect, as I said, the conditions
12· ·in the permit to be as such that we would have to
13· ·adhere to that, you know, and there's steps that
14· ·we have to take.· But, you know, just to play -15· ·well, I think my answer stands on its own.· I'll
16· ·let my -17· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Why don't you just say
18· ·what you're looking for him to tell you -19· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Okay.· Go ahead.
20· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· -- because that's why I
21· ·asked the question.· What I wasn't looking for is
22· ·an answer, well, everybody's got rights to do
23· ·what they have to do under Mass. law.· What I was
24· ·looking for is in spite of your dutiful care in
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·1· ·doing it the way you're planning on doing it,
·2· ·that something could happen, and if it does, I
·3· ·would expect, and I would hope, that your
·4· ·attitude would be if it happens, and a tree dies
·5· ·because of us, that we'll take steps to
·6· ·remediate that.
·7· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· Yeah.· I think -- for the
·8· ·record, Robert Allen.· So I think there's a
·9· ·couple of things.· I think in reality, Mark, that
10· ·if a tree were to die, it's not as a result of
11· ·this two-foot trench that we're building,
12· ·because, arguably, that would be damage to the
13· ·root system, and the tree is not going to die
14· ·like that.
15· · · · · · · I think if a tree -- something were to
16· ·happen, it would be as a result of our
17· ·contractor, a truck swinging the wrong way or
18· ·something like that -19· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Anything could happen.
20· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· -- and we're going to be
21· ·insured, we're going to make sure our
22· ·contractors are insured and bonded.· So I can't
23· ·help but to think that, like any other
24· ·situation, this isn't going to be any different
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·1· ·relative to causing injury to somebody else's
·2· ·property.· But yeah, I think we've put together a
·3· ·pretty significant tree plan that will prevent
·4· ·any trees from dying, short of negligence by the
·5· ·contractor or something like that.
·6· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· And I acknowledge that a
·7· ·tree doesn't die overnight.· It takes years,
·8· ·perhaps, to die.
·9· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· Yeah.
10· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· It's similar to storm
11· ·water management.· I mean, if after you've built
12· ·the building, you find out that the neighbor's
13· ·basement is getting flooded because of a change
14· ·in the soil conditions, that you'll have to deal
15· ·with it, and you'll deal with it in a civil and
16· ·normal way, as any neighbor would in similar
17· ·circumstances.
18· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· Yeah.· Listen, I can only
19· ·tell you that I think if you look at my client's
20· ·way he's handled everything, he hasn't one time
21· ·taken the cheap route out.· We had guys during
22· ·that cold spell digging up our backyard to
23· ·insure what roots were there so Tom Brady could
24· ·come out and actually look in the hole so he
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·1· ·could make sure that the board got the best
·2· ·possible result for the tree planting.· And then
·3· ·this particular way of pouring the foundation is
·4· ·one of the most expensive ways to do it.
·5· · · · · · · So I anticipate that that won't be any
·6· ·issue.· My client hasn't stepped away from
·7· ·anything or shortchanged any part of this
·8· ·process and wouldn't do it to a neighbor.
·9· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· And I'm not saying that
10· ·the attitude is take it or leave it.
11· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· No.· I know.
12· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· All I'm saying is that in
13· ·my way of assuring these people that the
14· ·developer is going to be responsible, and we'll
15· ·deal with issues as they come up in a civil way,
16· ·because we could read the statement in a
17· ·different way, and I'm trying to avoid that.
18· · · · · · · MS. ALLEN:· Yeah, and I think it's
19· ·helpful to know that this property is going to
20· ·continue to be owned.· We're not flipping this
21· ·into condos.· My client will continue to own it,
22· ·as he owns the property right next door.· So he's
23· ·not going anywhere, and his family has been
24· ·there for 80 years.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· I think what I'm trying
·2· ·to address is the construction process and the
·3· ·fact that this is going to be -- no matter how
·4· ·it's managed, and hopefully it will be managed
·5· ·well, it will be a disruption.
·6· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· It certainly will.
·7· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Mr. Chairman, I'm not
·8· ·going to read the letters now.· I'll wait for the
·9· ·question and answer period to end.· But I just
10· ·want to remind you that Mr. Brady did write a
11· ·series of three letters, and the third letter
12· ·does recommend some conditions that really speak
13· ·to means and methods, as well as continued
14· ·involvement in Mr. Brady.· So perhaps at some
15· ·point, a discussion of conditions.
16· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· At the appropriate time,
17· ·yeah.
18· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· That would be great.
19· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Right.· And let me also
20· ·point out that your point is a good one, Mark,
21· ·and that is certainly a fit topic for
22· ·discussion, should we get to conditions.
23· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· I just wanted to get some
24· ·information.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Yeah.· Understood.· I had
·2· ·a question about the pickup location for trash.
·3· ·I know where your trash room is, but walk me
·4· ·through it.
·5· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· All right.· I'm going to
·6· ·go back to the plan.· Give me a second here.· So
·7· ·right now, with the way that the trash is planned
·8· ·to be picked up by the private company that's
·9· ·going to haul it offsite, their truck would
10· ·essentially come in at a very specific time
11· ·that's coordinated with the property manager
12· ·onto the driveway apron.· The dumpsters would be
13· ·wheeled out to that truck, they would be picked
14· ·up by that truck, and then that truck would exit
15· ·the property and leave.
16· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· So it's within the
17· ·driveway?
18· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· It's within the
19· ·driveway.
20· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· And a truck of that size,
21· ·what would the area take up, approximately?
22· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· (Indicates.)
23· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· It would extend to about
24· ·there?
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·1· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Yeah.· It's about half
·2· ·or so.
·3· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· And your experts see a
·4· ·difference between trash pickup versus package
·5· ·drop-offs.· And I think I know what the answer is
·6· ·going to be, but tell me the difference, because
·7· ·you cited a safety concern over -- Mr. Boehmer
·8· ·had suggested, well, maybe this is a great
·9· ·location for you to have package deliveries.
10· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Yeah.· So the reason
11· ·that I said that that's a concern specifically
12· ·is because if, let's say, a vehicle were to try
13· ·to pull into a small loading zone here and then
14· ·have to back out into this location or kind of do
15· ·some turning and maneuvering in this location,
16· ·it could cause a series of ripple effects on how
17· ·this driveway is functioning or how people are
18· ·accessing or leaving the garage.
19· · · · · · · And so really if we're talking about,
20· ·let's say, a package, I think there's a
21· ·difference between the time it takes to drop off
22· ·a package and the time it takes to pick up a
23· ·dumpster, first of all.· But also, when we're
24· ·talking about designating and working with the
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·1· ·property manager, not only to control the time
·2· ·the trash is picked up, but also the area where
·3· ·that truck is parking in the driveway, it's
·4· ·thought out in a way that will have the least
·5· ·impact on the actual functioning of the existing
·6· ·driveway and garage, as it's designed.
·7· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· So it's the inability to
·8· ·control a schedule?
·9· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Yeah.
10· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Okay.· That's what I
11· ·thought.
12· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· So going back to that
13· ·in terms of trying to get times that are least
14· ·inconvenient, Maria, you probably know what time
15· ·trash pickup can start.· Under the bylaws, it's
16· ·7:00.
17· · · · · · · MS. MORELLO:· You know, sometimes we
18· ·do actually stipulate that in the conditions,
19· ·and I don't believe that Mr. Maloney specified
20· ·that, but we can look at some other conditions in
21· ·sensitive areas and provide something for your
22· ·consideration when you review conditions.
23· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· My concern is that even
24· ·if it's as early as possible, you're going to
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·1· ·have commuters interfere with that trash pickup,
·2· ·or vice versa, depending on how you look at it.
·3· ·Unless it's like midnight, which it never will
·4· ·be, there's not going to be a good time to
·5· ·totally block the driveway.· At what point do we
·6· ·discuss other safety concerns, which Jesse
·7· ·alluded to in terms of trucks, of dropping off
·8· ·packages?· Is it at a different point?
·9· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· So we will have traffic
10· ·peer review, so I think your questions are
11· ·probably best reserved for traffic peer review.
12· ·We also have Mr. Ditto, who's the director of
13· ·engineering and transportation here this
14· ·evening.
15· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Peter, I have one more
16· ·question.· Can you go to the shadow study?

I

17· ·think it was June that you were using for summer
18· ·periods.
19· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· The 1st of June is here.
20· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Okay.· Do you know where
21· ·O'Brien Park is?
22· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Is that the small park
23· ·that sits at the foot of Freeman Street?
24· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I'm trying to find out
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·1· ·where it is.
·2· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Oh.· I know there's a
·3· ·park here.· I don't know that it has any specific
·4· ·name.
·5· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Allison, that's O'Brien
·6· ·Park?
·7· · · · · · · MR. ?:· Yes, the current old Edwin
·8· ·O'Brien.
·9· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· So it sits -10· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· And where is it within
11· ·this?
12· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· So if you look at the
13· ·right-hand image, the mouse hand is circling
14· ·right here.
15· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Okay, right there, and
16· ·that is covered in shadow.· That already exists?
17· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Correct.
18· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.· Anything
19· ·else?
20· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Not at the moment, no.
21· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I'm trying to think how
22· ·to phrase this accurately.
23· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· That doesn't sound very
24· ·good.
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·1· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· So obviously, any
·2· ·building is going to cast a shadow, and one of
·3· ·the concerns, which we'll get into more later,
·4· ·is the shadows that are going to be cast on the
·5· ·plantings.· At what point -- how far back would a
·6· ·building have to be for it to not cast shadows in
·7· ·a 15- or 20-foot area?· I mean, it would have to
·8· ·be pretty far back; isn't that correct?
·9· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· I don't think that that
10· ·would be -- you couldn't say that it would never
11· ·cast a shadow in that area, unless it were not a
12· ·building.
13· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Right.· So take the one
14· ·on the left where -- thank you.· So here, the
15· ·building throws a shadow there, right?
16· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Um-hmm.
17· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· So the only way -- and
18· ·presumably, that's where the plantings are going
19· ·to be, right?
20· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Correct.
21· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· At least some of the
22· ·new plantings.· Now, the only -- my
23· ·understanding is the only way there would not be
24· ·a shadow thrown on the area is if the building
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·1· ·were moved back, you know, way back.
·2· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· We have to remember this
·3· ·is -- the sun action and shadow fall is not a
·4· ·static thing.· So the reason I say that there's
·5· ·really no way to answer that question is because
·6· ·if you then look at a little earlier in the day,
·7· ·let's say, right, the shadows are much more
·8· ·extreme because of the sun angle relative to the
·9· ·horizon.· So where at -10· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Got it.
11· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· -- 9:00, you move at 20
12· ·feet and you don't have a shadow, you'd have to
13· ·move it 300 feet in order to not have a shadow at
14· ·5:00 in the morning, let's say.
15· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I mean, Kate, there's a
16· ·logic to your question, which is in order to
17· ·avoid shadow, how far would you have to push the
18· ·building, which is -19· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Right, or would you
20· ·have to pull it, right, which is what people
21· ·said.· That's what I wanted to clarify in my
22· ·mind.
23· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· The important part, I
24· ·think, is that at some point during the day or
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·1· ·maybe a significant part of the day, there is
·2· ·sunlight so that the plantings get enough to
·3· ·live.
·4· · · · · · · MR. ENGLER:· Actually, that was the
·5· ·point I was going to make, is our arborist and
·6· ·our landscape architect clearly picked species
·7· ·based on shadowing and other existing conditions
·8· ·and anticipated conditions.· It would be
·9· ·foolishness to pick a whole pallet that needs to
10· ·have sunlight ten hours of the day, I mean, and
11· ·that all die.· So clearly, our experts are -- and
12· ·I know they conversed several times and
13· ·conversed with the town.· The species that have
14· ·been selected for that specific area will thrive
15· ·under the anticipated conditions.
16· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· It might be helpful for
17· ·them to have a brief discussion saying what sort
18· ·of shadow analysis they did, saying, you know,
19· ·it is going to be in the light X, Y, Z times for
20· ·this part of the year.
21· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· I think they're taking
22· ·that into consideration, but you should ask the
23· ·arborists, theirs and ours.
24· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· And there's also
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·1· ·testimony from Mr. Brady.
·2· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Right.· That's what I
·3· ·meant by arborist.
·4· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Okay.· Thank you.
·5· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Anything else?
·6· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I'm all done.
·7· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.· Do you need a
·8· ·break?
·9· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· It's almost two hours.
10· ·Let's take a quick break, five minutes.
11· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· We're going to take a
12· ·five-minute break.· Anyone who needs to, you
13· ·have permission.
14
15· · · · · · · (Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.)
16
17· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Okay.· For the next
18· ·portion of our hearing, we're going to have
19· ·entered into the record testimony from town
20· ·departments.· And Maria, I understand you have a
21· ·number of letters -22· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· I do.
23· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· -- to enter into the
24· ·record, and also, there may be some questions.
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·1· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Correct.· So we had
·2· ·testimony submitted from Deputy Chief Daniel
·3· ·Carroll of the Brookline Fire Department.· It is
·4· ·dated January 17, 2018 to the ZBA.
·5· · · · · · · "To Whom It May Concern: The plans as
·6· ·presented for the proposed building at 134
·7· ·Babcock Street are in accordance with all
·8· ·applicable code regarding fire safety related
·9· ·matters.· Access to all sides of the building are
10· ·not required due to the fact that the structure
11· ·will be fully sprinklered.
12· · · · · · · "Construction site safety will be
13· ·addressed by the developer being required to
14· ·adhere to NFPA 241, safeguarding construction,
15· ·alteration and demolition operations.· The
16· ·developer will be required to hire a third-party
17· ·approved by this office to formulate the plan
18· ·and review the onsite operations as construction
19· ·progresses.· The third-party is required to
20· ·report any conflicts with the plan to this
21· ·office.· We can require guard service 24/7 for
22· ·site security.
23· · · · · · · "There has also been concern raised
24· ·about firefighters having to stretch hose up to
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·1· ·200 feet.· Though not desirable, this is done on
·2· ·a daily basis in the fire service.
·3· · · · · · · "I acknowledge that there is great
·4· ·concern amongst the neighbors to this proposed
·5· ·development.· However, there is no legal basis
·6· ·for the fire department to oppose the
·7· ·development, regardless of the neighbors'
·8· ·feeling that it is unsafe.· We can only make
·9· ·decisions based on the codes authorized by the
10· ·legislature."
11· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I want to take each one of
12· ·these.· Questions about the fire report, fire
13· ·safety?
14· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· There was one issue I
15· ·didn't make -16· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· If you want to jump in,
17· ·Kate, go ahead.
18· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I will jump in.· Thank
19· ·you.· There was reference to fire suppression
20· ·systems for the semi-automated vertical parking,
21· ·stacked parking in Walker's 1214 request.· Are
22· ·there any details relating to that, and, if not,
23· ·I would like them.
24· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· If you're directing that
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·1· ·to me, that is noted in my list of things that
·2· ·are outstanding, so we can make a note of it for
·3· ·conditions or the plans.
·4· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Okay.· Thank you.
·5· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Anything else?
·6· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· The fire inspector or
·7· ·chief or assistant chief, whoever wrote that, if
·8· ·I understand it correctly, he's finding that
·9· ·subject to possibility of requiring further
10· ·oversight that the building as proposed meets
11· ·applicable codes and is safe?
12· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Right.· And keep in mind
13· ·that when construction drawings are submitted -14· ·you know, they can't get a building -- the
15· ·project team cannot get -- the applicant can't
16· ·get a building permit.· There is a fire review
17· ·then where you have more detailed drawings.
18· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· I'm just curious, because
19· ·I know this has come up in discussions, that
20· ·during the construction process, is there now a
21· ·change code that requires sprinklers?
22· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Yeah.· So I can speak to
23· ·that.· That actually brings us to the building
24· ·department's letter, and, if you're ready, I can
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·1· ·read that.
·2· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Well, if that includes
·3· ·it, then by all means.
·4· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· All right.· So this is
·5· ·from Deputy Building Commissioner Michael
·6· ·Yanovitch, dated January 17, 2018.
·7· · · · · · · "Chairman Geller and Members of the
·8· ·Board of Appeal, please accept this letter as
·9· ·the building department's response to a request
10· ·for comments regarding the proposed project at
11· ·134 Babcock Street.· We were specifically asked
12· ·about the type of structure being constructed
13· ·and fire safety during construction.
14· · · · · · · "NFPA 1/527 CMR Massachusetts Fire
15· ·Prevention Regulations, along with 780 CMR, the
16· ·Massachusetts State Building Code, set forth the
17· ·requirements for access to buildings and
18· ·structure, as well as the method and materials
19· ·for construction.· We review and approve plans
20· ·based on the code as it is written.
21· · · · · · · "Some attention has been directed
22· ·toward the recent fire in Waltham, as well as a
23· ·number of fires in Massachusetts communities.
24· ·The Waltham fire is like comparing apples to
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·1· ·oranges due to the fact that that fire was a
·2· ·result of arson.
·3· · · · · · · "Site access after hours will be
·4· ·addressed during the application process.· The
·5· ·other structure fires in the state and beyond
·6· ·were constructed using the podium framing
·7· ·method, or five over one, five stories over one
·8· ·story of non-combustible construction.
·9· · · · · · · "These fires have been investigated,
10· ·and the causes have been due to a number of
11· ·issues, and including, but not limited to,
12· ·timing of putting fire sprinkler and fire alarm
13· ·in service.
14· · · · · · · "Municipalities close to Boston,
15· ·including here in Brookline, now require NFPA
16· ·241 plans or construction site safety plans.
17· ·The 241 plan calls attention to the hazards that
18· ·sometimes lead to construction site fires and
19· ·requires the property owner to devise a plan to
20· ·decrease or eliminate those hazards.· These
21· ·plans address many of the issues around
22· ·construction site and fire safety during
23· ·construction.
24· · · · · · · "The Brookline building and fire
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·1· ·departments participate in the construction fire
·2· ·safety partnership, along with our counterparts
·3· ·in Cambridge, Boston, Waltham, and other
·4· ·municipalities.· For anyone concerned with
·5· ·building and fire codes as they are currently
·6· ·written into law, the state has an appeal
·7· ·process in place and state boards that hear
·8· ·appeals based on existing codes and the issuance
·9· ·of permits."· The end.
10· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.· Followup?
11· ·No.· Great.· Next?
12· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· So we have a letter from
13· ·Patrick Maloney, who is the chief of
14· ·Environmental Health Services.· This is a review
15· ·of the trash and recycling plan, as well as some
16· ·issues regarding mechanical ventilation and air
17· ·quality.· This is dated January 26, 2018 to the
18· ·Zoning Board of Appeals.
19· · · · · · · "Please be advised that this
20· ·department has reviewed the above-noted project
21· ·plans and offers the following recommendation.
22· · · · · · · "The plans propose four two yard
23· ·dumpsters for the building trash, rubbish and
24· ·recycling, two containers for rubbish and two
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·1· ·containers for recycling.· The rubbish and
·2· ·recycling is proposed to be picked up biweekly,
·3· ·that is at least two times per week.· This is
·4· ·acceptable to the Health Department.
·5· · · · · · · "The trash, rubbish, and recycling
·6· ·will be compacted by Wastequip C-33X compactor.
·7· ·The room will be enclosed with noise reducing
·8· ·sheetrock.· The department recommends the
·9· ·compactor use a low decibel motor.· The pickup
10· ·location will be at the garage entrance at the
11· ·side of the property.· The department defers to
12· ·the town engineer's office regarding the safety
13· ·of the proposed loading zone on the property.
14· · · · · · · "The rubbish and recycling storage
15· ·room must be maintained in compliance with state
16· ·sanitary housing code requirements.· The plans
17· ·do not address ventilation and air quality
18· ·issues associated with the interior vehicle
19· ·parking garage.· Documentation is needed to note
20· ·the ventilation will not cause air quality issue
21· ·to the property and abutters.
22· · · · · · · "To insure compliance, the developer
23· ·should also present air sampling results during
24· ·occupancy that not significant carbon monoxide
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·1· ·fumes are contributing to the area environment
·2· ·and are in compliance with the state air quality
·3· ·standards.· The Health Department would request
·4· ·to revisit the issue of rubbish and recycling
·5· ·compliance when the property is 90 percent
·6· ·occupied to insure appropriate measures are
·7· ·adequate."
·8· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Questions?
·9· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· No.
10· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· All right.· I have three
11· ·letters from the town arborist in town, and I'm
12· ·going to start with back to the first one,
13· ·December 5.· Now, keep in mind this related to
14· ·the first -- an earlier iteration of plans with a
15· ·narrower setback, that was a setback of 10 to 15
16· ·feet, with the landscape plan before it was
17· ·revised to what you see today.· This is just for
18· ·the record, since it wasn't admitted earlier.
19· · · · · · · This is from Tom Brady, town arborist
20· ·and tree warden, and Ann Blair, landscape
21· ·planner and architect, dated December 5, 2017.
22· · · · · · · "Tom Brady and Ann Blair were asked to
23· ·review documents related to proposed plantings
24· ·and the impact on existing trees on abutting
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·1· ·properties at Stedman Street for the proposed
·2· ·development at 134-138 Babcock Street.· We made
·3· ·a site visit and went over the following
·4· ·documents."
·5· · · · · · · I'm not going to read them, unless you
·6· ·wish for me to, but they are posted online.
·7· ·That's it for that.
·8· · · · · · · "The following are our observations.
·9· ·Impact on abutters' trees.· As indicated in the
10· ·information prepared by Natural Path Urban
11· ·Forestry Consultants, there are a number of
12· ·trees on the abutters' properties varying in
13· ·size close to the property line with 134-138
14· ·Babcock Street, and it is likely that their root
15· ·zones will be affected by excavation for the
16· ·proposed building giving the disturbance
17· ·required for the below grade parking and storage
18· ·and the tightness of the site.
19· · · · · · · "The applicant should submit a
20· ·detailed tree protection plan demonstrating how
21· ·they will protect plantings anticipated to be
22· ·impacted by construction.· This should be given
23· ·to the planning department, who will forward it
24· ·to Tom Brady for his review and comment.
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·1· · · · · · · "The rear yard setback for the
·2· ·proposed building is between 11 and 16 feet.
·3· ·There are several construction means and methods
·4· ·that could help mitigate the effect on the
·5· ·abutters' trees close to the property line.
·6· ·More information on proposed construction needs
·7· ·and methods would be necessary to assess their
·8· ·effectiveness.· For example, could sheet piling
·9· ·be utilized during the construction of the
10· ·foundation to limit the impacts of excavation on
11· ·the root zones of the abutters' trees.
12· · · · · · · "Proposed plantings at 134-138 Babcock
13· ·Street.· The new plans against the proposed six14· ·foot-high wood board fence along the western
15· ·property line, the back of the building, are all
16· ·needle leave evergreen trees, except for one
17· ·magnolia.· That's the Loebner Magnolia, Wichita
18· ·Blue Juniper, Columnar Norway Spruce, Baby Blue
19· ·Eyes Spruce, Emerald Green Arborvitae, and
20· ·Mission Arborvitae.
21· · · · · · · "The setbacks will accommodate the
22· ·spread of these narrow evergreens.· The one
23· ·magnolia might be problematic over time.· But
24· ·our real concern is the lack of sun in this area.
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·1· ·According to the Missouri Botanical Garden
·2· ·website (see attached) all of these trees
·3· ·require either full sun or full sun to part
·4· ·shade, and that would not be the condition here,
·5· ·given the height of the building, the narrowness
·6· ·of the space, and the six-foot fence adjacent.
·7· ·This will make for a very top-growing
·8· ·environment.
·9· · · · · · · "We also anticipate that the
10· ·evergreens will not have much of an effect, at
11· ·least initially, as they are being planted at
12· ·five- to six-foot height or six- to seven-foot
13· ·height up against the six-foot fence.· Some of
14· ·the trees are shown being planted close enough
15· ·together to create an immediate stream, but
16· ·others are shown at up to 13 feet on center,
17· ·leaving gaps in between.
18· · · · · · · "We are also concerned about the new
19· ·plantings shown for the northern and southern
20· ·property lines, especially if the six-foot-high
21· ·wood board fence continues around the site.· It
22· ·is not clear from the drawings if that's the
23· ·case.
24· · · · · · · "All of these plantings should be able
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·1· ·to withstand significant shade, and the current
·2· ·plan list does not reflect that.· The plantings
·3· ·at the front of the building will receive sun
·4· ·from the east and south, and are more likely to
·5· ·thrive.· Otherwise, the plant list includes a
·6· ·number of basic plants and looks viable with
·7· ·regard to maintenance.
·8· · · · · · · "Loss of existing trees on site.
·9· ·Trees should be replaced on a per caliper inch
10· ·basis.· If the space does not permit such effort
11· ·on the site, then the replacement of trees could
12· ·be planted in the public way, as approved by the
13· ·Parks and Open Space Division.
14· · · · · · · "Protection of street trees.· The
15· ·applicant should be advised that no one may
16· ·prune or remove a tree located in the public
17· ·right of way, other than the tree warden or their
18· ·designee.· This is true even if the tree impinges
19· ·on one's property.· Please let us know if you
20· ·have any questions."
21· · · · · · · So then quickly thereafter, the
22· ·applicant's landscape architect supplied a
23· ·revised plan with increased setbacks, and in
24· ·response on December 7, 2017, Ann Blair and Tom
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·1· ·Brady submitted this letter to the ZBA.
·2· · · · · · · "Tom Brady and Ann Blair received
·3· ·revised drawings today for the proposed
·4· ·development at 134-138 Babcock Street.· The
·5· ·revisions were made in response to our initial
·6· ·comments dated December 5 and 17th.· The revised
·7· ·drawings we reviewed were provided by Hammer &
·8· ·Walsh Design and include these three sheets.
·9· · · · · · · "We very much appreciate the
10· ·applicant's responsiveness in addressing our
11· ·concerns and feel that the changes to the plant
12· ·list, both in the species and in the height of
13· ·the evergreen trees, as well as the increase in
14· ·the width of the planted area on the west side of
15· ·the building are real improvements.
16· · · · · · · "We remain concerned about the amount
17· ·of shade, especially along the western,
18· ·northern, and southern sides of the building,
19· ·making this a challenging growing environment,
20· ·but feel that the proposed planting plan is a
21· ·much better response to the future conditions.
22· · · · · · · "Our earlier comments on the need for
23· ·a tree protection plan for trees on abutters'
24· ·properties, more information on construction
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·1· ·needs and methods that could be employed to
·2· ·mitigate disturbance, loss of existing trees on
·3· ·site, and protection of existing street trees
·4· ·still stands.· Please let us know if you have any
·5· ·questions."
·6· · · · · · · There are also some conditions that
·7· ·can be put on so that during the first two years
·8· ·of planting, they're closely monitored, and
·9· ·that's to insure that once they're first
10· ·planted, they have a very good chance of
11· ·thriving, and that is also -- that was conveyed
12· ·to me by Tom Brady.
13· · · · · · · So the most recent letter was
14· ·delivered January 17, 2018, and this was in
15· ·response to the requested information regarding
16· ·the foundation method and the tree protection
17· ·plan.
18· · · · · · · "Tom Brady and Ann Blair were asked to
19· ·review documents relating to proposed plantings
20· ·and the impact on existing trees on abutting
21· ·properties at Stedman Street for the proposed
22· ·development at 134-138 Babcock Street.· Ann
23· ·Blair and I made a site visit in November and
24· ·went over the following documents" -- which I
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·1· ·won't repeat here.
·2· · · · · · · "The following are my observations.
·3· ·Impact on abutters' trees.· As indicated in the
·4· ·information prepared by both consultants, there
·5· ·are a number of trees on the abutters'
·6· ·properties varying in size, close to the
·7· ·property line with 134-138 Babcock Street.· It
·8· ·is likely that their root zones will be affected
·9· ·by excavation for the proposed building, given
10· ·the disturbance required for the below grade
11· ·parking and storage and the tightness of the
12· ·site.
13· · · · · · · "The discrepancy in the two reports
14· ·with regard to the tree protection zone relates
15· ·to the extent a tree in urban conditions will
16· ·have a root zone, which has been reduced or
17· ·modified due to environmental factors, such as
18· ·soil conditions.
19· · · · · · · "I would note that both reports
20· ·reference two separate and distinct industry
21· ·standards for calculating the appropriate
22· ·distance that the tree protection zones should
23· ·extend from the trunk of the tree.· Both of these
24· ·standards are recognized as accepted
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·1· ·methodologies.· The language in the two reports
·2· ·makes clear arguments for each methodology.
·3· · · · · · · "It is critical that wherever the tree
·4· ·protection zone is designated in the conclusion
·5· ·of the process, the means and methods for
·6· ·demarcating and enforcing these zones are
·7· ·spelled out in detail.· These details should
·8· ·include procedures and protocols to be followed
·9· ·should there be an intrusion into the protected
10· ·area.
11· · · · · · · "I was pleased to see the temporary
12· ·excavation support option put forth by McPhail
13· ·Associates.· A bit more information on proposed
14· ·construction means and methods would be
15· ·necessary to insure the trees were protected
16· ·during this process.· For example, if the sheet
17· ·piling were installed using standard
18· ·construction practices, there may very well be
19· ·some conflict between the canopy of the trees
20· ·and the construction equipment.· Care must be
21· ·taken to insure no harm is done during the
22· ·installation process.
23· · · · · · · "To insure the required protective
24· ·measures are adhered to, proper oversight is
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·1· ·critical, and it would be prudent to require an
·2· ·arborist to be part of the construction
·3· ·management team.· A pre-construction meeting
·4· ·should be required to review sequence and scope
·5· ·of the protective measures to be taken
·6· ·throughout the project, which are necessary to
·7· ·protect the abutters' trees to the maximum
·8· ·extent possible.
·9· · · · · · · "Subsurface detention basin.· Drawing
10· ·C-200 and C-300 shows subsurface detention basin
11· ·to be located to the south of the front walkway.
12· ·This will put the structure in direct conflict
13· ·with the root zone of the public shade street
14· ·located on the sidewalk.· Please relocate this
15· ·structure to the north side of the walkway,
16· ·where ample room is available and no root zones
17· ·and conflicts will be present.
18· · · · · · · "Protection of street trees.· The
19· ·applicant should be advised that no one may
20· ·prune or remove a tree located within the public
21· ·right of way, other than the tree warden or their
22· ·designee.· This is true even if the tree impinges
23· ·on one's property.· Please let me know if you
24· ·have questions."
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·1· · · · · · · And I also want to point out that in
·2· ·response to this letter from Tom Brady, the
·3· ·project team did revise their drawings to move
·4· ·the subsurface detention basin to the north of
·5· ·the front walkway, and this was reviewed by
·6· ·Peter Ditto.
·7· · · · · · · Before you ask questions, I realize
·8· ·after the applicant's presentation, you did not
·9· ·ask the applicant if this is a formal submission
10· ·plan of record.
11· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· So we did not.· Is it?
12· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Yes.
13· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.· Questions on
14· ·Tom Brady's -15· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· No.· It's hard to ask
16· ·questions of somebody who's not here.
17· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· But are there questions
18· ·that relate to his letters?
19· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I want to -- I guess
20· ·whether or not we need more information about
21· ·the proposed foundation methods.· My question is
22· ·whether or not that is still the case.
23· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· I think they addressed
24· ·it.
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·1· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· There was a question.
·2· ·How did he phrase it in terms of using a
·3· ·particular -- can I see the letter -- relating to
·4· ·the sheet piling.· "If sheet piling was
·5· ·installed using standard construction practice,
·6· ·there may very well be some conflict between the
·7· ·canopy of trees and the construction equipment."
·8· ·So I can't decipher that on my own to determine
·9· ·whether or not that's been satisfied.
10· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· So care must be taken to
11· ·insure no harm is done during the installation
12· ·process.· You know, I think we can get that
13· ·fleshed out.· Now, keep in mind that Mr. Brady is
14· ·providing objectives for conditions.
15· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Okay.
16· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· And we do need to
17· ·provide language that is specific that is
18· ·approved by him, which I will draft with him. And
19· ·I think it would be much more clearer to actually
20· ·see the condition, because this is predicated on
21· ·a condition, I believe.· And so perhaps
22· ·something specific in writing that is -- that
23· ·could help.
24· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Predicated on a
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·1· ·condition relating to protection of trees?
·2· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Yes, absolutely, because
·3· ·the whole objective here is to protect trees
·4· ·during the construction installation process.
·5· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· So reading between the
·6· ·iterations of letters and your report, I take it
·7· ·that Mr. Brady is saying that his concerns about
·8· ·survivability of plantings that exist have been
·9· ·or may be addressed by the proposed method of
10· ·construction?
11· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· The survivability of the
12· ·abutters' trees.
13· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Correct, of the existing
14· ·trees?
15· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Yes.
16· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Right?
17· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Yes.
18· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· And he's saying subject
19· ·to including within any decision the conditions
20· ·that he recommends?
21· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Correct.· So there is no
22· ·support for a 16-foot setback without all of
23· ·those conditions.
24· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Right.· Okay.· In terms of
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·1· ·comments that pertain to whether newly-planted
·2· ·trees or existing trees can survive, given shade
·3· ·or light, whatever exists -- I know that based on
·4· ·the revisions, we've been told there will be a
·5· ·better chance because there's more light -- has
·6· ·Mr. Brady weighed in on that?
·7· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Well, that was in the
·8· ·December 7 letter, so he -- in his last letter,
·9· ·there was no change.· There wasn't -- it was in
10· ·his December 7 letter, "We remain concerned
11· ·about the amount of shade, especially along the
12· ·western, northern, and southern sides, making
13· ·this a challenging growing environment, but feel
14· ·that the proposed planting plan is a much better
15· ·response to future conditions."
16· · · · · · · Now, I might also add I've discussed
17· ·this further with him and said, you know, what
18· ·kind of conditions can you put on this project.
19· ·Is there any kind of extra care when -- because
20· ·when plants are first planted, it's a very
21· ·vulnerable time.· There might be extra care
22· ·given.· During, say, like the first two years
23· ·when they're taking root, he'd want them to
24· ·flourish.· He'd want them to have a better chance
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·1· ·of surviving.
·2· · · · · · · And so that was a recommendation that
·3· ·you probably see in the draft conditions
·4· ·regarding some two-year oversight within the
·5· ·first plantings.· It is going to require care.
·6· ·So this is a shady condition, but he's not saying
·7· ·that the plants won't survive.
·8· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· You seem like you want to
·9· ·say something.
10· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I always do.· So he says
11· ·that the current plan, or the plan as of that
12· ·time, is a better response, but to some degree,
13· ·that's standing with faint praise.· So he's
14· ·basically still saying that some of the plants
15· ·that are suggested are still going to have a
16· ·difficult time surviving with the level of shade
17· ·that is going to be existing.· So my question is
18· ·aren't there trees or plants that can be picked
19· ·that do really well in the shade, and why not
20· ·just pick those?
21· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· I don't know that any -22· ·and I'm not an arborist by any stretch, but I
23· ·don't think there are trees that inherently love
24· ·shade.· I think there are some species that
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·1· ·tolerate shade better than others.· And that was
·2· ·the goal of the revised landscape plan, to
·3· ·choose plantings that would have a better chance
·4· ·of -·5· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· It would be nice if he
·6· ·would more specifically weigh in on that.
·7· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Yeah.
·8· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Okay.
·9· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Yeah.· I would like to
10· ·have him propose conditions that will alleviate
11· ·his concerns.
12· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Fine.
13· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· All set, Maria?
14· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Yes.
15· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· So we have Peter Ditto
16· ·hiding somewhere in the room.· All the way in the
17· ·back.· Nice.· I'm sure we'll have any number of
18· ·questions for you.
19· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· My name is Peter Ditto,
20· ·director of Engineering and Transportation, and
21· ·I'm here to report on the storm water management
22· ·plan for this site.
23· · · · · · · This project proposes three what we
24· ·call best management practices, and they involve
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·1· ·two groundwater recharge systems, a subsurface
·2· ·detention basin, and a trench drain, which goes
·3· ·to a proprietary treatment plant before it goes
·4· ·to the infiltration system.
·5· · · · · · · Calculations show that there is a
·6· ·slight decrease in impervious services, and
·7· ·that the peak flows and volume is less for the
·8· ·post-construction plan existing conditions.
·9· ·Favorable soils, as well as a depth of almost 20
10· ·feet to groundwater, makes the site a good
11· ·candidate for an infiltration system.
12· · · · · · · Utilities and grading plan, C-300,
13· ·shows that the infiltration units and detention
14· ·basin is within several feet of the foundation
15· ·of the building.· The fact that this first floor
16· ·is a slab on grade takes away from that issue,
17· ·and actually, the bottom of the infiltration
18· ·system will be five feet below the finish grade
19· ·of the first floor.
20· · · · · · · At this point in time, the conceptual
21· ·site plans, dated November 17, 2017, meet both
22· ·the requirements of the town's storm water
23· ·management bylaw, as well as Mass. DEP design
24· ·standards.· And that's it.
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·1· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Did you have another
·2· ·paragraph, Peter, on your letter?
·3· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· Yeah.· That had to do with
·4· ·revised setbacks to the rear of the building and
·5· ·whether that would have any impact in the storm
·6· ·water plan, and it doesn't.
·7· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Okay.· And you also
·8· ·reviewed the latest update to the storm water
·9· ·report, namely, there was a minor calculation,
10· ·as well as moving the detention basin in the
11· ·front yard to the north of the walkway.
12· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· Right.· Yeah, there was -13· ·I want to say it's 208 square feet, which I think
14· ·is what you talked to earlier, the bust in that
15· ·rear property line.· And I did look at Mr.
16· ·Brady's request to slide that detention basin,
17· ·and there's lots of room on the front of the site
18· ·to do that.
19· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Okay.· Thank you.
20· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Peter, did you review the
21· ·Noblin report that was prepared and submitted?
22· ·It had a number of questions, in particular
23· ·about soil conditions, impact from construction.
24· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· Yeah.· I got that today.
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·1· ·looked at, but I haven't got any comments on it
·2· ·yet.
·3· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· I did share that with
·4· ·the building commissioner, Dan Bennett, and his
·5· ·reaction to that was that there's a review where
·6· ·if there is any water table issues, the building
·7· ·code has requirements should there be those
·8· ·conditions.· So he felt that that was best
·9· ·addressed when the final construction drawings
10· ·are submitted.
11· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Go ahead, Kate.
12· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· So Mr. Noblin makes a
13· ·comment that what the applicant should provide
14· ·or what we need is a plan showing the drain and
15· ·piping layout, slopes, subbase filter fabrics,
16· ·etcetera.· Now, is this what you're referring
17· ·to?
18· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Well, I think I should
19· ·make it clear.· That is something from the public
20· ·comment that was -- and any of those things -21· ·requirements for that -- as Building
22· ·Commissioner Bennett said, that would be dealt
23· ·with in compliance with building code
24· ·requirements, and that is something that happens
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·1· ·at the building permit stage.
·2· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Do you agree with that,
·3· ·Mr. Ditto?
·4· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· Yes.
·5· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Peter, do you have a
·6· ·comment about the ventilation within the garage?
·7· ·The stated concern in particular by the
·8· ·neighborhood is that the -- whether rightly or
·9· ·wrongly, that the function of the louvers will
10· ·effectively force all of the noxious fumes back
11· ·to Stedman Street.
12· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· I'm not an expert on that.
13· ·I'd rather not comment.
14· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Okay.· Do we -15· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· So, first of all, we do
16· ·have two traffic parking here who can speak to
17· ·the code, and also -18· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I believe he did,
19· ·actually.
20· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Right, and I don't know
21· ·how much -- I think that, as Mr. Maloney stated,
22· ·there wasn't much information regarding the -- I
23· ·think one ask that I would have is a little more
24· ·information about the ventilation so that we can
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·1· ·get a proper response from staff and technical
·2· ·advisors.
·3· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Yeah, yeah, and I believe
·4· ·Art did actually speak to it at the last hearing,
·5· ·but I wanted to raise it with Peter, since he's a
·6· ·technical guy.
·7· · · · · · · Peter, do you have a comment on the
·8· ·transportation board's vote on complete streets
·9· ·along Babcock Street and any impact?
10· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· The complete street policy
11· ·wouldn't affect anything that's going on on the
12· ·site.
13· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Do you have any
14· ·concerns about the possible safety impact of
15· ·bicyclists having to go around trucks that would
16· ·be parked in front of the building if there were
17· ·no alternative place for them to go?
18· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· I have a little concern
19· ·with that, but I'd rather have -- if we're
20· ·talking trash trucks, for instance -21· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I'm just thinking UPS,
22· ·etcetera, all the Amazon stuff.· The trash
23· ·trucks I sort of see as a separate issue.
24· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· You know, it's -- the
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·1· ·transportation board approved an option last
·2· ·week, and it's going to be appealed, I
·3· ·understand, so we may be back to square one.· But
·4· ·the design that was approved, I'm comfortable
·5· ·with, you know, that situation that you just
·6· ·cited.
·7· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Thank you.
·8· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Anything else?
·9· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Not from me.
10· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Kate?
11· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Regarding the -12· ·remember, Mr. Maloney's letter stated that a
13· ·trash truck would be backing in to the -14· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· Right.
15· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· -- to the driveway, and
16· ·he defers to you regarding the safety of that.
17· ·Would you like to comment specifically on that?
18· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· Yeah.· I'm not in favor of
19· ·it.· I support curbside collection at that site,
20· ·rather than pulling up and backing in.
21· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Do you have any opinion
22· ·about the advisability of having a loading zone
23· ·as an extension of the driveway?
24· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· On the site itself?
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·1· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· No.· Let's be careful.
·2· ·It's loading area on the site -·3· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· In the area.
·4· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· -- not a loading zone.
·5· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Thank you very much.
·6· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· Yeah, I don't like the
·7· ·idea.
·8· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Why?
·9· · · · · · · MR. DITTO:· One, I think it's ugly,
10· ·and two, its operation -- that driveway is not
11· ·the widest driveway in the world, and I think
12· ·it's a little too narrow to have that type of
13· ·operation on that side of a driveway.
14· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Thank you.
15· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.· Maria,
16· ·anything else from town boards departments?
17· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· No.
18· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Other comments?· No,
19· ·okay.· So next, we're going to call on our
20· ·traffic peer reviewer, Jim Fitzgerald, who will
21· ·give us his peer review report on the revised
22· ·plan.
23· · · · · · · MR. FITZGERALD:· Again, my name is Jim
24· ·Fitzgerald.· I'm with Environmental Partners
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·1· ·Group, and we've done the traffic peer review.
·2· · · · · · · Vanasse & Associates responded to our
·3· ·initial peer review findings from August 22,
·4· ·2017 in a document dated November 17, 2017.
·5· ·We've reviewed that document from November, as
·6· ·well as supplemental plans that were provided to
·7· ·us, dated January 17, 2018.
·8· · · · · · · So just to run through the comments
·9· ·that we had and the responses we received, first
10· ·off, we had questioned some of the traffic data
11· ·that was provided initially.· Accounts were
12· ·taken in January, which tends to be a lower than
13· ·average month for traffic.
14· · · · · · · So in response to that, the applicant,
15· ·VAI, revised the traffic volumes that were
16· ·analyzed in the traffic models to reflect a
17· ·seasonal adjustment factor increasing the
18· ·traffic volumes to an appropriate level.· At the
19· ·same time, they actually reduced the amount of
20· ·units, since the development had changed at the
21· ·time from 62 down to 50 units.· So their revised
22· ·numbers were based on 50 units, instead of the
23· ·current 45.
24· · · · · · · The new traffic volumes were analyzed,
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·1· ·and we found that there was little to no change
·2· ·from the results that were provided in the
·3· ·initial February 2017 document by VAI.· Just to
·4· ·point out that the analyses that were performed
·5· ·appeared to be conservative in nature, since the
·6· ·trip generation was performed without including
·7· ·any sort of reductions for transit uses or to
·8· ·reflect the existing site traffic that's
·9· ·generated by the existing usage, as well as the
10· ·fact that the number of units had decreased
11· ·further.
12· · · · · · · Next, we had requested further
13· ·information having to do with how the future
14· ·traffic volume networks were established.· These
15· ·future traffic volumes reflect other
16· ·developments in the area.· The backup was not
17· ·initially provided for all those developments,
18· ·and in VAI's revised document, they provided
19· ·documentation on how those numbers were derived,
20· ·and we've reviewed them.· It appears to be
21· ·reasonable.
22· · · · · · · Again, the analyses performed are
23· ·conservatively high, since these numbers were
24· ·not reduced to reflect alternative modes of
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·1· ·transportation, such as trans ed or bicycling,
·2· ·walking, etcetera.
·3· · · · · · · Next, regarding site distance, we had
·4· ·pointed out in our initial peer review findings
·5· ·that it appeared that there was adequate
·6· ·stopping site distance provided from the site
·7· ·driveway, provided that some of the brush
·8· ·overgrowth and trees along the back edge of
·9· ·sidewalk along the northern property line were
10· ·to be trimmed back a bit.
11· · · · · · · The revised site plan relocated the
12· ·driveway slightly southerly, which helps things
13· ·a little bit, allowing a little bit more
14· ·distance for visibility, but still, we continue
15· ·to recommend that there would be some clearing
16· ·along that back edge of the sidewalk along that
17· ·northern property line.
18· · · · · · · The driveway configuration has changed
19· ·a little bit from the initial review.· At first,
20· ·as was mentioned earlier, it was a real zigzag of
21· ·a configuration where traffic would enter in
22· ·from Babcock, turn 90 degrees to the right, and
23· ·then 90 degrees to the left.· We had some
24· ·concerns with this configuration, not only the
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·1· ·fact that the vehicle templates -- the vehicles
·2· ·weren't going to be able to pass each other when
·3· ·traveling in opposite directions, but also from
·4· ·the standpoint of visibility of those oncoming
·5· ·vehicles.
·6· · · · · · · Since that time, the configuration has
·7· ·been revised to provide a much less severe
·8· ·angular alignment, improving the circulation and
·9· ·site line significantly from what was originally
10· ·proposed, so it appears to be adequate at this
11· ·point.· The driveway width has been identified
12· ·as being 21 feet wide on the January 17 plans
13· ·that were recently provided, which complies with
14· ·the town minimum.
15· · · · · · · We had a comment having to do with
16· ·driveway apron along the sidewalk.· We had
17· ·suggested that the elevation of the driveway
18· ·apron be that of the sidewalk to try to minimize
19· ·the inconvenience of pedestrians.· We had
20· ·received a response that that was the intent,
21· ·that it's not intended that the height of the
22· ·sidewalk be transitioned lower to the height of
23· ·the roadway, but we still have not seen driveway
24· ·apron details to prove that.· So those should be
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·1· ·provided as the design is finalized.
·2· · · · · · · Lastly, the issue of loading zone and
·3· ·trash pickup was something that we had also
·4· ·commented on.· Initially, we were under the
·5· ·impression that the trash pickup was going to
·6· ·take place on street.· It sounds like it's now
·7· ·being anticipated to take place on the driveway.
·8· ·Obviously, this will impact vehicles getting in
·9· ·and out of the parking garage, so identifying
10· ·what times that trash pickup takes place to
11· ·minimize impacts to vehicles trying to get in
12· ·and out of the property would be critical.
13· · · · · · · Certainly, we don't want to have
14· ·vehicles stopped out heading -- along the
15· ·roadway waiting to get in, waiting for the trash
16· ·truck to move.· I would anticipate it would take
17· ·some time for the truck to maneuver into this
18· ·position, for people to get out, go through the
19· ·garage, to the opposite side of the garage, get
20· ·the trash receptacles, bring them to the truck
21· ·back and forth.· So the timing would be critical.
22· · · · · · · Although this is not an ideal
23· ·situation, having trucks backing into the
24· ·driveway like this, I would anticipate it would
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·1· ·be even worse to have those trucks stopped on the
·2· ·roadway, especially with the latest complete
·3· ·streets configuration that's being considered
·4· ·along southbound Babcock with a real narrow
·5· ·travel lane of nine feet and a bike lane of five
·6· ·feet, so that's 14 feet.· There's not much space
·7· ·there for another vehicle to pass by a large
·8· ·trash truck.
·9· · · · · · · So when it comes to loading, that also
10· ·is an issue.· We certainly would not want
11· ·vehicles to stop along the roadway and block
12· ·bicycles or vehicles from getting by.· Even if
13· ·it's a UPS truck, that would be an issue.· So we
14· ·would recommend some consideration for
15· ·addressing that.
16· · · · · · · And that is the end of our review for
17· ·traffic.
18· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Any questions?
19· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Yeah.· Let me go right to
20· ·that.· What is your recommendation for
21· ·alleviating that?
22· · · · · · · MR. FITZGERALD:· It's not an easy -23· ·there's not an easy solution here, given the
24· ·limited space that's in front of the building to
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·1· ·the back edge of the sidewalk.· We did look at a
·2· ·sketch that was initially drawn out to consider
·3· ·that loading area alongside the parking garage
·4· ·entrance.
·5· · · · · · · Of course, at that time, we were also
·6· ·looking at the original zigzag configuration
·7· ·with 90-degree bends.· The combination of 90·8· ·degree bends, in addition to having vehicles
·9· ·trying to maneuver into that tight space was not
10· ·good.· So we had a real issue with that.
11· · · · · · · It almost seems as if the most space
12· ·that's available for a vehicle to stop and load
13· ·or unload would actually be in that driveway,
14· ·but as Peter pointed out earlier, it's a real -15· ·it is a tight space.· But directly in front of
16· ·the building, this would be very ugly, this
17· ·would be very ugly, but it -- directly in front
18· ·of the building would have space for something
19· ·like that -- not that I'm recommending it.· I'm
20· ·just pointing out where there is available
21· ·opening.
22· · · · · · · I know at one point, there was
23· ·consideration for having a separate driveway
24· ·along the northern side of the parcel, and I
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·1· ·believe that is no longer in the works.· We've
·2· ·got very limited space there with the way that
·3· ·everything is currently shown.
·4· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· is it possible that a
·5· ·delivery truck can pull into the driveway, stay
·6· ·to the far left, and still allow in and out
·7· ·traffic from the building?
·8· · · · · · · MR. FITZGERALD:· No.· There is some
·9· ·excess space in the corner right where the
10· ·driveway starts meandering at a 45-degree bend
11· ·to the right to head towards the garage.· There
12· ·is some excess space over there.· It is possible
13· ·that that might be able to be extended a little
14· ·bit to fit maybe a passenger vehicle, but if
15· ·you're talking about a truck, you would need
16· ·some substantial space.
17· · · · · · · And then the question of how do they
18· ·get in and how do they get out, and can they see
19· ·vehicles as they make this maneuver comes into
20· ·question.
21· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Would you recommend any
22· ·sort of safety steps, such as mirrors, or do you
23· ·see them necessary in terms of helping vehicles
24· ·going in and out of the building to adequately
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·1· ·see each other, or are there angles sufficient
·2· ·that that's not necessary?
·3· · · · · · · MR. FITZGERALD:· Right now, the way
·4· ·it's drawn, it's not really necessary.
·5· ·Originally, when we were dealing with 90-degree
·6· ·bends, we were recommending electronic signage
·7· ·that would alert a driver of a vehicle coming in
·8· ·the opposite direction, but this 45-degree angle
·9· ·is much less severe than what was originally
10· ·shown.
11· · · · · · · So at this point, that would not be
12· ·necessary for the circulation in and out of the
13· ·garage.· Now, if there were to be loading areas
14· ·provided in tight, tricky spots, that might be
15· ·something to consider, but not for the vehicles
16· ·entering and exiting the parking garage.
17· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· How about going down to
18· ·the "L" where -- well, first, I'd like you to
19· ·comment on the proposed -- the drawings, the
20· ·turning radii of the machinations vehicles have
21· ·to do at that end to get in and out of the
22· ·parking spaces and whether -- do you see those as
23· ·realistic or just complicated?
24· · · · · · · MR. FITZGERALD:· I would actually
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·1· ·defer that to Art, because he'll be getting into
·2· ·further -·3· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Oh, he will be?
·4· · · · · · · MR. FITZGERALD:· Yes.
·5· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Oh, great.
·6· · · · · · · MR. FITZGERALD:· Yeah, yeah.· He'll be
·7· ·getting into the parking garage component.
·8· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Okay.· Then I don't
·9· ·have anymore questions for you.
10· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Okay.· Does the applicant
11· ·at this point want to respond to anything that
12· ·Mr. Fitzgerald has commented on?
13· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· No.
14· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· No, okay.· Thank you.
15· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· I'd just ask the
16· ·applicant to bring back the slide of the turning
17· ·radii.
18· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· And now, we'll call on
19· ·Art Stadig from Walker Parking Consultants, who
20· ·is our parking peer reviewer.
21· · · · · · · MR. STADIG:· If you could just hold up
22· ·slide 97, that would be great.· Thank you.
23· · · · · · · Good evening.· Art Stadig with Walker
24· ·Consultants, parking peer reviewer.· We have
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·1· ·reviewed drawings that were available on the
·2· ·website back in December, and then, in addition,
·3· ·the turning maneuvers that were submitted on the
·4· ·17th of this month, as shown up on the screen
·5· ·right now.
·6· · · · · · · The parking facility would normally
·7· ·require with the transit parking overlay
·8· ·district an approximate ratio of -- or 63 spaces
·9· ·with an approximate ratio of 1.4 spaces per
10· ·unit.· The project actually provides
11· ·considerably less, 36 spaces and approximately
12· ·.8 spaces per unit.
13· · · · · · · Based on our research for what we see
14· ·in this area, we feel that a parking supply in
15· ·the range of .7 to .9 has been found to be
16· ·adequate in this area, and certainly, what
17· ·they're providing generally falls within that
18· ·range.
19· · · · · · · Earlier in the discussion, the
20· ·architect indicated there were openings in the
21· ·walls of the parking facility.· They certainly
22· ·wouldn't be enough to qualify as an open parking
23· ·structure, which would require ventilation.
24· ·Really no details on the drawings which indicate
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·1· ·exactly how that's going to occur.· I don't see
·2· ·that that would be any issue being developed
·3· ·later on in the design, but it's something to
·4· ·note.
·5· · · · · · · Normally, with parking facilities, we
·6· ·may see that the air is drawn into the middle and
·7· ·actually evacuated through the top of the
·8· ·building or up higher in the elevation and then
·9· ·drawn in through -- the natural ventilation
10· ·would be drawn in.· So it's just a comment, not
11· ·to say it can't be done in another way, but
12· ·that's just something to consider.
13· · · · · · · I won't belabor, but the drawing that
14· ·is shown here, we've taken a look at the turns
15· ·and the entry, exit.· As Jim had indicated, we
16· ·find this acceptable.· This is much better than
17· ·what it was, and the drive lane width of
18· ·approximately 21 feet should allow this to work.
19· · · · · · · To address the previous question that
20· ·you had, is there adequate dimension within the
21· ·parking facility to function properly, the main
22· ·east-west drive lane that you first get into is
23· ·approximately 24 feet wide, considering the
24· ·mechanical semi-automated units that are there.
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·1· ·And those, if I scaled correctly, are showing a
·2· ·larger size of that particular vendor at a
·3· ·19-foot length.
·4· · · · · · · I see no problem with that particular
·5· ·area.· When you turn the corner and go into the
·6· ·north-south section, it does get a little bit
·7· ·narrower because of the setback requirements to
·8· ·the west of the project.· The drive lane there is
·9· ·22 feet, but that can be adjusted probably with
10· ·some minor changes in the design or adjustments
11· ·in the design.
12· · · · · · · Also, to just note that the
13· ·manufacturers can adjust the sizes of these
14· ·automated systems, so a 19-foot dimension in
15· ·length could be an 18- or 17-foot if allowed by
16· ·the amount of compact cars that are allowed by
17· ·zoning.
18· · · · · · · So those things can be adjusted.· I do
19· ·not see any issue with how this functions or
20· ·works with the geometry.· The parking space
21· ·sizes appear to be in the range of about eight
22· ·and a half feet.· That could be adjusted to be
23· ·slightly larger, and that's pretty normal for
24· ·this type of facility.
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·1· · · · · · · Also, just one quick note is with the
·2· ·turning radius, the vehicle shown there is shown
·3· ·to be a 19-foot long by seven-foot wide, which is
·4· ·a behemoth vehicle.· And so even though it works
·5· ·with that, it is extremely conservative with the
·6· ·turns that they have shown there, and we don't
·7· ·see any particular issue with that.
·8· · · · · · · As indicated, the facility uses a
·9· ·semi-automated vertical puzzle parking system to
10· ·get stacked vehicles.· This system is employed
11· ·in the area and is used in other communities
12· ·extensively.· You're going to see this a lot more
13· ·in this area, as it's being proposed on a lot of
14· ·projects.
15· · · · · · · The only minor comment -- you had an
16· ·earlier question or comment -- was -- and I had
17· ·indicated in my writeup that attention should be
18· ·paid to the fire suppression system.· Really,
19· ·it's not an issue that can this be -- can there
20· ·be a proper fire suppression system in their
21· ·sprinkler system.
22· · · · · · · What happens with these -- in my
23· ·consultancy and how I advise people is that
24· ·sprinkler heads have to get behind the units and
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·1· ·into the side to spray laterally in, which
·2· ·requires that these units be pushed out into the
·3· ·drive lane to make that happen.· So this needs to
·4· ·be accommodated one way or the other in the
·5· ·dimensions of the project and/or with the
·6· ·dimensions of the units that are provided.· It's
·7· ·just something to point out that needs to be
·8· ·addressed and figured out along with the
·9· ·process.
10· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· So Mr. Stadig, do you
11· ·think -- that, obviously, should be done now
12· ·because it could affect perhaps some zoning
13· ·compliance?
14· · · · · · · MR. STADIG:· Yes.· That's my final -15· ·the 288 spaces are fine, and then my final point
16· ·would be the compliance of parking dimensions to
17· ·meet zoning will require further review.
18· · · · · · · You know, since we're scaling these
19· ·drawings, and it is getting down to that level of
20· ·precision to take a look at this, I think that
21· ·those adjustments can be made.· I think it can be
22· ·worked out, but I just can't say definitively
23· ·without having real accurate, let's say, AutoCAD
24· ·dimensions or working that through with the
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·1· ·architect.
·2· · · · · · · The other point would be allowing for
·3· ·smaller units by City Lift, for example.· There
·4· ·isn't really an exact correlation with the size
·5· ·of the vehicle and the length of the vehicle as
·6· ·you meet normal zoning requirements.· How these
·7· ·automated systems work and the space that's
·8· ·provided in there that works perfectly fine and
·9· ·functions isn't exactly a one for one basis with
10· ·dimensions that are in zoning.
11· · · · · · · Having said that, though, there's no
12· ·reason to believe that this wouldn't work
13· ·perfectly fine for the residents and would have
14· ·satisfactory results.
15· · · · · · · So that's the end of my report.· If
16· ·there's any specific questions, I would be more
17· ·than happy to try to answer them.
18· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Well, some of these may
19· ·be for the developer.· For example, do we know
20· ·how many or what percentage of compact cars is
21· ·being suggested or proposed?
22· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· Zero.
23· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Zero, okay.· Excellent.
24· ·And as part of your assignment, did you examine

1-617-542-0039

DTI Court Reporting Solution - Boston
www.deposition.com

YVer1f

PUBLIC HEARING· ·- 01/29/2018

Page 146

·1· ·what sort of demand there was for parking in the
·2· ·area and how that would be affected, both by the
·3· ·ratio of parking in this project, as well as the
·4· ·fact that parking was being eliminated for the
·5· ·cars at 120 Babcock?
·6· · · · · · · MR. STADIG:· I did not look at the
·7· ·neighborhood.· I only looked at the demand that
·8· ·we would typically see for this type of
·9· ·development in this area with a proximity to
10· ·modal alternate options or alternatives, and
11· ·generally what's usual and customary here, and
12· ·that's based on looking at census data, and also
13· ·just our experience in this and other projects.
14· · · · · · · It is a good point that there are
15· ·currently 42 spaces on the development site.
16· ·The elimination of those will affect the supply
17· ·demand characteristics in the neighborhood,
18· ·there's no question, but that is not what we're
19· ·reviewing, you know, for this proponent's
20· ·project here.
21· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I do just want to note
22· ·for the record that the proponent was -- this is
23· ·not directed towards you, Mr. Stadig, but the
24· ·proponent was asked to analyze or examine what
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·1· ·the effect of eliminating those spaces would be,
·2· ·and the response that I recall is that it would
·3· ·be necessary for them to park on the street or
·4· ·find other spaces to park, and that is really not
·5· ·an option in Brookline.· You can't park on the
·6· ·street at night, and there are very few spaces
·7· ·available for renting or otherwise.· So I just
·8· ·want to state that I'm not entirely happy with
·9· ·that response.
10· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Other questions?
11· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· No.
12· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· No.· Thank you.
13· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Any comments about
14· ·loading areas or lack of loading areas?
15· · · · · · · MR. STADIG:· I think I would just echo
16· ·again what Jim had stated, that there is really
17· ·not that much room.· If a delivery truck pulled
18· ·in, a package car, etcetera, there would be -- it
19· ·would have to park fairly perfectly to stay out
20· ·of the way of allowing entry and exit for
21· ·vehicles into the parking garage.
22· · · · · · · So in my view as a parking consultant,
23· ·I would think that loading and rubbish loading
24· ·would be better served on the street and for all
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·1· ·the ramifications that that has.
·2· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.· Kate, you
·3· ·look like you want to followup.
·4· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Yes, it is a followup,
·5· ·and this, again, is probably best addressed by
·6· ·the applicant.· But one of the neighbors
·7· ·commented that with the new building, the
·8· ·current method in which trash was disposed of by
·9· ·120 Babcock would not work anymore, and I'm
10· ·wondering in terms of the health and safety
11· ·standpoint how that is going to be dealt with.
12· · · · · · · MS. MORELLO:· So Mr. Maloney, at one
13· ·of our staff meetings he did attend, and he was
14· ·able to speak to our property management, who
15· ·has been attending all of these sessions, and he
16· ·requested a trash and recycling narrative for
17· ·120 Babcock, which was submitted to him, which
18· ·he is reviewing.
19· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Okay.· So that will be
20· ·submitted to us at some point?
21· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Well, that's a question
22· ·for Mr. Geller, because that is a separate
23· ·property.· I mean, it really isn't within the
24· ·purview.
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·1· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· It is, but one of the
·2· ·things we look at also is the effect that it is
·3· ·in effect -- I would argue that the impact the
·4· ·building is having on health and safety is
·5· ·something that is within our purview.· So the
·6· ·fact that the building is eliminating the
·7· ·current trash removal method is relevant.
·8· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I think you can ask the
·9· ·question.· I don't think we can go too far into
10· ·amenities that impact 120.
11· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Developer, are you
12· ·going to address the issue of how the trash is
13· ·going to be handled at 120?
14· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· So as Maria had
15· ·indicated, this was discussed with the planning
16· ·staff and specifically commented on by Mr.
17· ·Maloney, who did make that comment directly to
18· ·the property manager, who then referred that
19· ·comment to the trash management company, which
20· ·would be handling the trash contracts for both
21· ·buildings.
22· · · · · · · In both cases, both for 134 Babcock,
23· ·but also 120 Babcock, the property management
24· ·and trash removal companies need to make clear
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·1· ·to the health department in Brookline that the
·2· ·removal methodology and approach is consistent
·3· ·with all of Brookline's standards.· So it's not
·4· ·something that they can just wipe their hands up
·5· ·and walk away.· And that's already in process.
·6· · · · · · · It was suggested also by Mr. Maloney
·7· ·that the discussion around 120 Babcock Street be
·8· ·held separate from these proceedings and let the
·9· ·two be kept separate.
10· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Thank you.
11· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Does the applicant want
12· ·to respond to anything that Mr. Stadig has
13· ·commented on?
14· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· No, thank you.
15· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· No, okay.· Thank you.
16· ·We're going to next call on Cliff Boehmer, who
17· ·is going to speak on site and building design
18· ·issues.· He is the board's peer reviewer for
19· ·these matters.
20· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· If you'll allow me to,
21· ·I've got a brief slide presentation that's
22· ·designed to really create the context of how we
23· ·landed where we are now.· Certainly, there are a
24· ·couple of issues that have come up over the
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·1· ·several months that we've been working on this,
·2· ·and I hope this will help clarify.
·3· · · · · · · Before I do that, I hope you'll allow
·4· ·me to drift a little bit into, I think, a
·5· ·correction from some of the discussion
·6· ·previously about what the developer has proposed
·7· ·for tree protection, specifically the piling
·8· ·system.· In fact, what they've proposed is not a
·9· ·sheet piling system.· What they've proposed is a
10· ·drilled pile and wooden lag system.· And they're
11· ·very different.
12· · · · · · · The drilled pile of wooden lag is
13· ·actually, I think, a much superior solution for
14· ·protecting trees.· Sheet piling, as the name
15· ·suggests, are large sheets that are driven into
16· ·the ground to allow -- they're interlocking
17· ·sheets that are driven into the ground, kind of
18· ·blindly into the ground.· Once they're in place,
19· ·you can excavate on the excavation side of the
20· ·piling.
21· · · · · · · What they're proposing is a system
22· ·that actually allows them to do a more gentler
23· ·excavation and deal with tree roots as they hit
24· ·them with excavation -- more gentler excavation
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·1· ·as opposed to sheet piles that would go down, not
·2· ·really knowing what they were going to hit.
·3· ·Whether they're rocks, bricks, tree roots,
·4· ·whatever, they get driven down and then you
·5· ·excavate.
·6· · · · · · · So I'm bringing that up because that's
·7· ·a big difference, and that is what's on the
·8· ·table, and I just want to make that clear.
·9· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I appreciate that.
10· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· The other area where I
11· ·was going to drift off more into the realm of
12· ·experiential knowledge as opposed to degree
13· ·knowledge, I'll hold off for a second, but I am
14· ·going to hit on it, but it will be quick.
15· · · · · · · So I'm going to try to go very quickly
16· ·so we can get to questions that you might have.
17· ·I'm not going to repeat Peter's 140-page slide
18· ·show.· I think everybody has these images pretty
19· ·well ingrained in their minds.· But certainly,
20· ·if I'm saying things that really aren't -- that
21· ·you're not getting the image drawn to your mind,
22· ·let me know, and we can find images that are
23· ·supporting what I'm talking about.
24· · · · · · · So again, I'm going to really quickly
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·1· ·go through this.· So this is going back all the
·2· ·way to August 23.· I think what I really want
·3· ·people to understand is how we got to where we
·4· ·are now, because way back on August 23 -- this is
·5· ·a copy of the slide from my presentation -- I was
·6· ·talking about eliminating or significantly
·7· ·decreasing the size of the top floor,
·8· ·eliminating or significantly decreasing.
·9· · · · · · · Increase all setbacks with possible
10· ·exception south side.· Note that at this point,
11· ·we did not have the setbacks we have now.· The
12· ·building filled out the site to a far greater
13· ·degree and was fully five stories all the way
14· ·around the building, which is something that has
15· ·changed.
16· · · · · · · Also back on August 23, we were
17· ·looking at the front of the building.· We talked
18· ·about eliminating the garage entry, create a new
19· ·less commercial look, taking queues from other
20· ·Babcock structures, having residential
21· ·structures instead of garage doors as a featured
22· ·entry to the building, and consider closer
23· ·relationship to the neighbor to the south.
24· · · · · · · As we know, what this building
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·1· ·represents -- and this is in the letter that I
·2· ·submitted last week -- that this building is an
·3· ·extension of larger buildings that are coming
·4· ·from that direction from the south.· This is kind
·5· ·of one more ratcheting of larger scale buildings
·6· ·in that direction.
·7· · · · · · · Continuing way back -- we're still in
·8· ·August -- preserving the continuity of the
·9· ·Babcock streetscape, creating a suitable street
10· ·wall for the park across the street were
11· ·suggestions, and work with neighbors to design
12· ·realistic options for landscape screening
13· ·protection or improvement of existing hard
14· ·scape.· Clearly, that's where we've been going
15· ·in a lot of recent discussions, is having more
16· ·confidence in the ability to have effective
17· ·landscape buffers.
18· · · · · · · So then by the time we were in
19· ·October, as things were morphing -- as the plan
20· ·was morphing, and there were some increases and
21· ·setbacks back in October, my suggestion was at
22· ·that point really concentrate the fifth floor,
23· ·that where we really needed to mitigate was in
24· ·this realm, the area, you know, clearly
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·1· ·recognizing that there are a lot of abutters,
·2· ·and there are a lot of visible elevations of the
·3· ·building, even though they're different -·4· ·they're characterized different.
·5· · · · · · · This is clearly the area that needed
·6· ·the most mitigation.· And this was my suggestion
·7· ·back in October: concentrate here, cut the front
·8· ·of the building off to create that relationship
·9· ·vis-a-vis setback with adjacent 120, and drop
10· ·the height of that section of the building.
11· · · · · · · Now we're back in November, so jumping
12· ·ahead when I didn't even have time to do anything
13· ·other than scribble on top of their drawings,
14· ·was mixing in landscaping, really changing the
15· ·character of that.· I think what really got me
16· ·going on that was a discussion about what's
17· ·really the curb appeal of the building, that
18· ·clearly, that was a neglected part of the
19· ·project, and yet that's where there were a lot of
20· ·impacted neighbors.
21· · · · · · · And at that point, there had been an
22· ·increase in setback.· I was suggesting an even
23· ·larger increase in setback.· And at that point,
24· ·the building had moved forward.· There had been a
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·1· ·lot of iterations, as you know.· The building had
·2· ·moved forward, and I pushed back and said well,
·3· ·actually, I don't think you should push it back
·4· ·into that realm that was, in my opinion, coming
·5· ·under control more effectively than the other
·6· ·elevations on the building.
·7· · · · · · · These were also back in November,
·8· ·representing that notion of pushing the building
·9· ·back, getting it back in line with 120.· This was
10· ·another -- this is even later now.· This was
11· ·before the current drawings, looking at -- and
12· ·before we had as many iterations of discussions
13· ·about tree preservation.
14· · · · · · · At that point, I was observing that
15· ·actually the degree that they pulled it back as
16· ·far as visibility from the Babcock Street -- I'm
17· ·sorry, the Stedman Street neighbors, it really
18· ·-- the degree with which they pulled it back
19· ·actually wasn't even necessary, strictly from a
20· ·view corridor, view of the sky, shadow impact.
21· ·And yet I thought there could be some advantage
22· ·to pulling it back even further.· That was back
23· ·after reviewing December drawings.
24· · · · · · · This was a sketch that accompanied
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·1· ·that that suggested that -- represented an
·2· ·understanding that the parking level was
·3· ·relatively immutable.· You can't have
·4· ·requirements about a number of parking spaces
·5· ·and parking ratio and then not have a floor plan
·6· ·that could really accommodate that.
·7· · · · · · · So the idea on the table at that point
·8· ·during one of our sessions or staff meetings was
·9· ·to leave that footprint the same, only pull it
10· ·back on two, three, and four, and if you had to
11· ·regain that space again, you could pull this out
12· ·without actually having shadow or view impact on
13· ·the Stedman Street side.
14· · · · · · · This is probably my least popular
15· ·idea, but this is the other one where I'm going
16· ·to wander into a realm of where I've had a lot of
17· ·experience.· I don't have credentials to back up
18· ·all these opinions.· I do think there is an
19· ·advantage to having an area where even smaller
20· ·delivery vans could pull in, and particularly,
21· ·now that we have even more space here, could pull
22· ·in, be out of the way, back in, and go out into
23· ·Babcock Street headfirst.
24· · · · · · · I won't comment on what this wall -- I
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·1· ·think this could be an absolutely beautiful
·2· ·wall.· It doesn't have to be an ugly wall.· It
·3· ·can be as nice as the proposed retaining wall.
·4· ·So that's the last I'll say on that subject.
·5· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· That is predicated on an
·6· ·easement.
·7· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· It is.
·8· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· So that could be a 40A
·9· ·situation.
10· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· On what?· I didn't hear
11· ·what you said.
12· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· The zoning relief for
13· ·the neighboring property.
14· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· Like I said, it's my
15· ·least popular idea ever, so I'll drop this
16· ·subject.
17· · · · · · · So this was a final quick diagram that
18· ·summarized a couple -- kind of where I am at this
19· ·point, which is really looking at where we stand
20· ·today.· We did have a working session on January
21· ·9, where I saw the plans, at least, that were
22· ·going to be presented tonight.
23· · · · · · · At that point, it was made obvious to
24· ·me that actually, by pulling that edge back on
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·1· ·the extended area, the bump-out on the back that
·2· ·we call it, that goes for about 40 percent of the
·3· ·width of the building, actually pulling back
·4· ·that edge on the fourth floor really did solve
·5· ·the same -- it did mitigate the shadow issue and
·6· ·mitigated the view of the open sky.· They did
·7· ·pull back a little bit.
·8· · · · · · · It's kind of off the screen here, but
·9· ·that was where I was saying you could pull back
10· ·to, by my rough estimate, and not lose square
11· ·footage or come back into view if they pulled it
12· ·back four or five feet in that zone but left that
13· ·area in that bump-out.
14· · · · · · · So that's where we are today.· I call
15· ·those 1/17 revisions because that was -- we
16· ·thought the hearing was going to be sooner than
17· ·now.· So those are the only slides I have, I
18· ·believe -- yeah, those are the only slides I
19· ·have.
20· · · · · · · So what I was proposing to do in
21· ·addition to answer any questions that you might
22· ·have, or if you want me to confirm things that
23· ·we've heard tonight or not confirm them.
24· ·Otherwise, I'll quickly go through the main
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·1· ·points of my report rather than reciting it.
·2· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Yes, please.
·3· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· So I'll talk about
·4· ·public realm, which, as you know, has been a
·5· ·steady theme of mine in reviews of Babcock
·6· ·Street.· We'll start with that one at this point.
·7· ·And I'll be pretty short, but please get back to
·8· ·me if you want more backup to this.
·9· · · · · · · It's my opinion at this point that the
10· ·Babcock Street public realm as far as the
11· ·massing of the building, the architecture, the
12· ·design of the building, its relationship to its
13· ·adjacent neighbor, that I feel it has
14· ·effectively been tied in to the landscape, and I
15· ·do believe that on that side of the building,
16· ·having a full five-story elevation is
17· ·appropriate, given the streetscape and given
18· ·what's across the street.
19· · · · · · · There are some -- I've read everything
20· ·right up through today that's been submitted.
21· ·I'm aware of issues associated with some
22· ·afternoon shadows cast onto the park across the
23· ·street, and I've reviewed the shadow studies.
24· ·It is true, particularly in the later afternoon
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·1· ·when the sun is really swinging around,
·2· ·depending upon the season, the new structure
·3· ·would cast shadows that have never been on that
·4· ·park before.· That is true.
·5· · · · · · · However, in my opinion, there's an
·6· ·offsetting value that that park -- that the
·7· ·building -- by putting a face on that side of the
·8· ·park, I think it gives a kind of quality to that
·9· ·park that it currently lacks.· And it becomes
10· ·more of an urban setting, for sure, because of
11· ·the -- when you look at what's across the street
12· ·now.· So it does provide definition there.
13· · · · · · · Stedman Street public realm.· That is
14· ·the one that we've really been working on the
15· ·hardest.· The point of the slide show, I think
16· ·was to remind everyone how we got here, which I
17· ·think was -- as is the case with incremental
18· ·change, when you're trying to work towards a
19· ·goal, you often are in a situation of really
20· ·diminishing returns.
21· · · · · · · And we're at that place now, where by
22· ·moving the building a tiny bit one way or the
23· ·other at this point, once we've established what
24· ·I think are the most critical elements, which
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·1· ·are major shadow impact and survival of the
·2· ·landscape buffer, and specifically the
·3· ·preservation of the more important trees that
·4· ·aren't even on the proponent's site, that,
·5· ·combined with having established essentially a
·6· ·20-foot buffer at the highest point of that
·7· ·elevation on the Stedman Street side,
·8· ·essentially it's presenting an elevation of a
·9· ·three-story building to the Stedman Street
10· ·neighbors with all of the inherent impact that
11· ·three-story buildings have.
12· · · · · · · So at this point, I think I'm still -13· ·apparently there are still some questions about
14· ·species of trees, because I thought Kate's point
15· ·about are the plants suit -- are they tolerant of
16· ·less sunlight.· That remains a really good
17· ·question.· But where we stand as far as the
18· ·analysis that I've requested and have reviewed,
19· ·I have a high degree of confidence that the trees
20· ·-- that mitigating impact on the tree if they're
21· ·following the tree protection plan, and you've
22· ·seen the proposed excavation -- it's not really
23· ·the foundation system as much as the excavation
24· ·system -- I have a high degree of confidence in
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·1· ·the ability of those trees to survive.
·2· · · · · · · So I think that that's where I'm at on
·3· ·the Stedman Street elevations.· It's similar on
·4· ·Manchester Road.· And I think it's kind of
·5· ·obvious the reason that I've mainly talked about
·6· ·Stedman Street is there is a significantly
·7· ·greater distance in the -- from the Manchester
·8· ·neighbors, typically, than the Babcock Street.
·9· ·They're also -- the slope isn't as great back
10· ·there, so the shadow impact isn't as important
11· ·or as significant on that end of the site.
12· · · · · · · I think that -- I mean, that is a
13· ·pretty quick summary.· I do want to say a couple
14· ·of other things about elements that I think
15· ·haven't been addressed yet to this point.· They
16· ·do come at the end of my report, and I'll just
17· ·quickly run through those.
18· · · · · · · Some of them are pretty obvious.· The
19· ·unit plans that have been submitted are
20· ·conceptual.· They're just block diagrams.· We
21· ·need to see real plans, including proposed
22· ·locations of all accessible units, in particular
23· ·the group two units.· I still -- Peter did report
24· ·that the mechanical equipment, he has looked at
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·1· ·that.· I still -- I may be wrong, but I think I
·2· ·just need to be shown that.· I still think there
·3· ·is some chance that you could see mechanical
·4· ·equipment from the park across the street on
·5· ·Babcock.· I don't really know that.
·6· · · · · · · I think in our last working session on
·7· ·the 9th, I did suggest that the developer
·8· ·consider a pit for the transformer, and I'm
·9· ·quite sure that this building will require a
10· ·transformer.· Right now, I think it's sited to
11· ·the right of the facade of the building as you're
12· ·facing it.· My suggestion was to look at a pit so
13· ·that it would not be such an eyesore at the front
14· ·of the building.
15· · · · · · · I don't believe -- unless it happened
16· ·since the plans, I saw on the 9th that the bike
17· ·storage has been shown on the plans.· I made a
18· ·recommendation to go beyond Brookline's
19· ·requirements.· Many communities have far more
20· ·stringent requirements for bicycles.
21· · · · · · · And I would reiterate a point that I
22· ·have before.· It's a normal part of design
23· ·development, and construction document phases
24· ·has continued to look at minimizing floor to
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·1· ·floor height.· I don't think there's any real
·2· ·inherent advantage to making the building any
·3· ·taller than it really needs to be, given the
·4· ·amount of analysis on impact that we've all gone
·5· ·through.
·6· · · · · · · There are provision -- I'd look for
·7· ·provision of details.· There's several specific
·8· ·elevation components, including the garage
·9· ·doors, the louvers that we've talked about, and,
10· ·in general, more material call-outs on the
11· ·elevation.· I already -12· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Wait.· More material
13· ·call-outs?
14· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· Right, just indications
15· ·of what the materials are -16· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Okay.· I've got it.
17· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER: -- on the building.

I

18· ·promised I wouldn't talk about the loading zone
19· ·anymore.· And I did -- a final suggestion was
20· ·consider combining some of the smallest units
21· ·together to provide more family apartments.
22· ·This would improve parking ratios, but more
23· ·importantly, provide more family units to give
24· ·more children access to Brookline's public
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·1· ·school system.
·2· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· You might want to talk to
·3· ·the selectmen about that.
·4· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· This is just an
·5· ·architect talking.
·6· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Any questions?
·7· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Would you recommend any
·8· ·lighting plan be submitted for -·9· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· Yes.· Thank you.· Good
10· ·question.
11· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Anything else, Kate?
12· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· No.
13· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Mark?
14· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Yes.· Cliff, you cite in
15· ·your report addressing the concern of the
16· ·neighborhood with regard to the end wall and
17· ·more coherent pedestrian experience, likely
18· ·lessening the number of -- infrequency of cars
19· ·crossing the sidewalk along Babcock to access
20· ·the new use.· I don't understand.· Could you
21· ·explain that?
22· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· Oh, that's only -- the
23· ·current situation on this site has more parking
24· ·spaces than what the building is proposing.· So
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·1· ·that's all I meant.
·2· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· By taking away more
·3· ·parking spaces.· Okay.
·4· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· Now there are more cars
·5· ·crossing that sidewalk than there will be when
·6· ·this building is built.
·7· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· All right.· I do
·8· ·understand.· Thank you.
·9· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· If this building is
10· ·built.
11· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Obviously, you've
12· ·suggested a construction management plan.
13· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· Absolutely.
14· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· I know that's part of the
15· ·process, but I do take note of that.
16· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· I would, by the way,
17· ·concur with both the building inspector, the
18· ·commissioner, and the fire department that
19· ·submission of a 241 plan is critical,
20· ·particularly given how close this building is to
21· ·an existing occupied building and the neighbors,
22· ·and that is being much more stringently enforced
23· ·in many communities.
24· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Anything else, Mark?
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·1· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· Can I add one more thing
·2· ·that I just thought of?· I think the -- and the
·3· ·proponent may know the answer to this already,
·4· ·and it is connected with the fire protection.

I

·5· ·don't know -- I'm not sure I've noticed on the
·6· ·civil plans where the nearest fire hydrant is
·7· ·either.
·8· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· I think it's right in
·9· ·front of the property.
10· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· You do, okay, because
11· ·that will come up.
12· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Yes.· There is one in
13· ·front of the property.
14· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· All right.· Fine.
15· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Anything else?
16· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· No.
17· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I have one more thing.
18· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Sure.
19· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Do you have any
20· ·suggestions as to where the bike storage should
21· ·go, given the existing plans?
22· · · · · · · MR. BOEHMER:· There's one big dead
23· ·corner in the ground floor plan where the two
24· ·mechanized parking structures kind of create an
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·1· ·area that can't be accessed from the interior.
·2· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· Actually, to speak to
·3· ·that point, one thing I didn't identify during
·4· ·our walkthrough of the current plans is that
·5· ·immediately to the right of the garage doors,
·6· ·there's kind of a dead spot in the garage that is
·7· ·not functional for access with cars, and we've
·8· ·proposed wall mounted bike storage along that
·9· ·wall, which is easily accessed through the main
10· ·entry vestibule by pedestrians so they can go
11· ·in, drop their bike off, then go back to the
12· ·elevator and go up to their unit or take the
13· ·stairs.
14· · · · · · · So that's at least provided for.· We
15· ·needed to earmark those other spaces in the rear
16· ·of the garage for mechanical and service uses,
17· ·and if we can open those back up and find a way
18· ·to access them for bike storage, we would do
19· ·that.
20· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· That's it.· Applicant,
21· ·response?
22· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· None.
23· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· None, okay.· Thank you.
24· ·We are now going to take testimony from the
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·1· ·public.· Again, I would ask that you start by
·2· ·giving us your name, give us your address, speak
·3· ·into the microphone loudly and clearly.· Listen
·4· ·to what your predecessors have to say.· If you
·5· ·agree with them, let us know, and give us any new
·6· ·information that you have, and please focus on
·7· ·the topics of this evening's hearing.
·8· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· Thank you.· My name is Guy
·9· ·Staff, and I live at 123 Stedman Street, and I
10· ·want to thank the board and others that have been
11· ·working on this for the amount of effort and
12· ·attention that's been paid to a number of things
13· ·we've talked about tonight.· I suspect some of my
14· ·neighbors will have some things to say, so I'm
15· ·going to just focus on one thing related to the
16· ·conversation about exhaust.
17· · · · · · · And there's a temptation to say, well,
18· ·there's 42 cars there now, so 36 has got to be
19· ·better, right?· And in a sense, it is, but one of
20· ·the things that I want to call to the board's
21· ·attention or remind you of, because you've been
22· ·on the site, is the 42 cars currently vent
23· ·directly into the sky.
24· · · · · · · The condition in the proposed building
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·1· ·would be that they would vent up against the
·2· ·ceiling, and then I had -- this was the first I'd
·3· ·heard about the mechanical movement of air in
·4· ·the garage space, and perhaps I missed it in the
·5· ·documents.· But that surface area or the exhaust
·6· ·area is going to go from the entire lot up to the
·7· ·sky to these smaller vent units.
·8· · · · · · · So I would encourage the board to take
·9· ·a good look at that and get the ratios between
10· ·what the sky area is relative to these vents,
11· ·because I think that that could result in some
12· ·concentration of exhaust for neighbors at 120
13· ·and the neighbors on Babcock, as well as on
14· ·Stedman Street.· So that's my comment for this
15· ·evening.· Thank you.
16· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.
17· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· That actually reminds
18· ·me of something.· I was wondering if the
19· ·developer would be agreeable to put up "no
20· ·idling" signs in the garage to remind people of
21· ·the bylaw and reduce exhaust.
22· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· No problem, yes.
23· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Thank you.
24· · · · · · · MR. HILL:· Good evening, Mr. Chair and
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·1· ·members of the board.· My name is Dan Hill.· For
·2· ·the record, I'm the attorney for the Stedman
·3· ·Street abutters.
·4· · · · · · · I was hoping that we could put that
·5· ·auto turn slide back up here.· Peter, is that
·6· ·possible?· Thank you.
·7· · · · · · · A lot of our attention tonight was
·8· ·paid to the progress we've made, how far this has
·9· ·come along, where we started, and where we are
10· ·today.· And I think there's some value in that,
11· ·but I want to make it clear that just because a
12· ·plan came in with an unrealistic density, an
13· ·unrealistic proposal with height and setbacks
14· ·doesn't mean that the developer should get
15· ·credit for proposing something that's now
16· ·somewhat reasonable.
17· · · · · · · And so I think it's a mistake to spend
18· ·too much time, you know, looking at where we've
19· ·come instead of looking at where we are today,
20· ·and what are the current flaws with the current
21· ·proposal, and what can be done to mitigate those
22· ·or improve it.
23· · · · · · · In our opinion, the board should
24· ·really look at the baseline of what's allowed
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·1· ·under current zoning and then look at this 40B
·2· ·proposal and see how it deviates.· Under current
·3· ·zoning, this is the M1.5 district.· You have a
·4· ·side setback requirement of 37.6 feet.· This
·5· ·project provides 11 feet.· You have a rear
·6· ·setback of 30 feet.· This project provides 15
·7· ·feet.· And I believe the height cap is 45 feet in
·8· ·the 1.5 district.· This is a 55-foot building.
·9· · · · · · · So despite all of this great progress
10· ·that's been made over the last six or eight
11· ·months, the project still is quite in variation
12· ·from what's allowed under current zoning.· And
13· ·there may be a compromise that might work on the
14· ·property, and we're getting closer to that, but
15· ·we're still not there.· If you look at this bump16· ·out, the board had made a charge asking for a 2017· ·foot rear yard setback, which, you know, is
18· ·reasonable, but the developer came back with 20
19· ·feet here, but 15 feet here in this bump-out.
20· ·Why can't this be a straight line of 20 feet?
21· · · · · · · I think you heard tonight that none of
22· ·these parking spaces are for compact cars.· So
23· ·why not make some of these compact, and then push
24· ·this bump-out five feet closer towards Babcock
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·1· ·Street?· There seems to be enough room to do
·2· ·that.· I haven't -- you know, we haven't hired an
·3· ·engineering to look at this.· I just posed this
·4· ·question to Mr. Boehmer at the beginning of the
·5· ·meeting.· I think it's a fair question, and I
·6· ·think we should present that to the developer
·7· ·and ask why can't we just make this 20 feet.
·8· · · · · · · This building still encroaches in the
·9· ·tree protection zone, as shown on the McPhail
10· ·plan that was provided by the developer.· It's
11· ·not that much.· It seems to be like maybe five or
12· ·ten more feet can get this whole project out of
13· ·that tree protection zone for the trees that are
14· ·on the Stedman Street side.
15· · · · · · · There is one glaring omission, though,
16· ·in the developer's presentation materials, and
17· ·that is the tree that's on the side yard.· That
18· ·tree is -- I don't have the number in front of
19· ·me.
20· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· It's 9931.
21· · · · · · · MR. HILL:· Obviously, my clients have
22· ·memorized it.· That tree has a 42-foot tree
23· ·protection zone.· The tree is practically on the
24· ·property line.· And I think the reason it was
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·1· ·omitted from the developer's presentation
·2· ·materials is because the developer can't do
·3· ·anything about it.· They can't possibly move
·4· ·that side of the building outside of that zone
·5· ·without losing a big chunk of their building.
·6· · · · · · · They were able to mitigate a lot of
·7· ·the tree protection zone issues along the rear,
·8· ·and for that, we're appreciative, but there's
·9· ·still a little bit left to do, so just do it.
10· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Mr. Hill, whose
11· ·property is 9931 on?
12· · · · · · · MR. HILL:· That's a property that
13· ·fronts on Manchester, I believe.
14· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Is it on an abutter's
15· ·property or -16· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· I consulted with Tom
17· ·Brady about tree 9931, and he said it was
18· ·directly on the property line, which means it
19· ·belongs to both the abutter and the applicant,
20· ·which means it cannot be removed unless there is
21· ·an agreement, and it should be in a tree
22· ·protection zone.
23· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Okay.
24· · · · · · · MR. HILL:· Yeah.· We had that
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·1· ·surveyed, and our survey shows that I think just
·2· ·on the abutters' side, but close enough.· The
·3· ·point is if it's on the property line or the
·4· ·abutters', it needs to be protected.
·5· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Right.· One other
·6· ·thing.· Between all of the yes, this tree was
·7· ·included, no, it's not, I really don't know
·8· ·which trees are on the abutters' property and
·9· ·which aren't, and therefore entitled to be in a
10· ·tree protection zone.· Is there some way we can
11· ·get definitive answers on that?
12· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· We have a tree survey.
13· ·So there was a very careful survey done, and
14· ·there were trees included in that.· I'm sorry.
15· ·Maybe I'm not understanding your question.
16· · · · · · · MR. HILL:· We attached a survey to our
17· ·letters.
18· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Yeah, but as I recall,
19· ·the developer's arborist was saying no.· You
20· ·know, you say seven are there, but it's only
21· ·five, and was that resolved?
22· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Can I just interject for
23· ·a second?· I am the arborist on -24· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· And what's your name?
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·1· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· My name is Howard Gaffin.
·2· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· You've got to stand up
·3· ·and speak into the microphone.· Mr. Hill, will
·4· ·you see the mike -·5· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· No.· You need to come
·6· ·up.
·7· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Hang on.· Mr. Hill, are
·8· ·you all right with this?
·9· · · · · · · MR. HILL:· Yeah.
10· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I can finish speaking,
11· ·and then I can address all the stuff he brought
12· ·up.
13· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Whose arborist are you?
14· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I'm my own arborist.
15· · · · · · · MR. HILL:· He's the applicant's
16· ·arborist, right?
17· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I'm an independent
18· ·arborist, and I'm working for the Babcock place.
19· ·When he's done speaking, I will respond to all
20· ·this.
21· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· That sounds perfect.
22· · · · · · · MR. HILL:· So there were some trees
23· ·that were not included in the applicant's
24· ·materials.· We don't know why.· He'll probably
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·1· ·explain that.· But one big tree was that one that
·2· ·was on the side.· The abutter is here, and it's
·3· ·her tree, and that tree protection zone extends
·4· ·about 40 feet into the project site, clearly
·5· ·within the footprint of the building.
·6· · · · · · · The project eliminated a loading zone,
·7· ·but that loading zone was not replaced, and you
·8· ·heard a lot of commentary tonight about that.
·9· ·The project still provides just a fraction of
10· ·the parking spaces required in the TPO district,
11· ·which already relaxes the parking required in
12· ·the Town of Brookline from two per unit to a much
13· ·lower percentage.· This project provides roughly
14· ·58 percent of the required parking in the TPOD
15· ·zone.
16· · · · · · · The project is still unacceptably
17· ·close to side and rear property lines.· It will
18· ·cast shadows in the rear yards of the Stedman
19· ·Street abutters all morning, at least nine
20· ·months out of the year.· And the project is still
21· ·unacceptably close to the property lines,
22· ·putting the garages and mechanical equipment
23· ·unacceptably close to the Stedman Street
24· ·abutters, with the attendant noise and air
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·1· ·quality impacts that that brings with it.
·2· · · · · · · Going back to trees for a second,
·3· ·we're still excavating several feet in the TPZ,
·4· ·as we just stated.· The plan needs to still be
·5· ·updated to reflect the 208-square-foot
·6· ·difference.· The plans that were at least posted
·7· ·on the website were from December, so we're not
·8· ·sure quite yet how that affects these tree
·9· ·protection zones and the property line trees.
10· · · · · · · The arborist stated that they're using
11· ·-- or, actually, I guess the architect said that
12· ·they were using a conservative buffer for the
13· ·tree protection zone.· We disagree with that.· We
14· ·think the conservative buffer was 1.5 feet for
15· ·every inch of diameter.· That was explained in
16· ·our arborist report that we filed with the board
17· ·last week.
18· · · · · · · With respect to the loading zone, we
19· ·actually think that Cliff's suggestion makes
20· ·sense.· We agree with Cliff, and we agree with
21· ·the zoning board's peer reviewer, who also said
22· ·that a loading zone is important.
23· · · · · · · You know, if a project is not going to
24· ·provide what's required for parking, it should
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·1· ·at least provide an adequate loading area,
·2· ·because people who aren't going to have cars· are
·3· ·going to have more deliveries.· It just stands to
·4· ·reason.· You should have a good loading area, and
·5· ·you should have adequate bike storage.
·6· · · · · · · We talked about parking.· You know,
·7· ·one obvious solution here is to take the fifth
·8· ·floor off.· If you remove the fifth floor, you
·9· ·can improve your parking ratios, and you won't
10· ·have as much of a crunch.
11· · · · · · · With respect to noise and air quality,
12· ·those issues haven't been studied yet, and we
13· ·remain concerned about the noise and air quality
14· ·impacts.· We just heard just now that the
15· ·mechanical systems will be, I guess, in the
16· ·corners, probably this dead zone here and this
17· ·dead zone up here.· You know, what kind of impact
18· ·is that going to have on the Stedman Street
19· ·abutters on this side of the property line?
20· · · · · · · The ventilation from the garage, we're
21· ·not sure yet.· We haven't seen details.· We don't
22· ·know where these louvered openings are going to
23· ·be.· We don't know where the fans are going to
24· ·be.· I thought I heard tonight from the architect
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·1· ·that they're going to be on the side walls along
·2· ·the perimeter of the building.
·3· · · · · · · I also heard from Mr. Stadig the
·4· ·suggestion that perhaps exhaust fumes can be
·5· ·ventilated up and through the roof.· That sounds
·6· ·great.· You know, we'll take that idea.· That's a
·7· ·lot better than having fans blowing noxious air
·8· ·towards abutters.· But that should be reviewed.
·9· ·We don't feel that that's an appropriate topic
10· ·to pass to conditions and post-permit review.
11· · · · · · · We talked about the shadows.· There's
12· ·no way around.· Now, there was a suggestion made
13· ·earlier tonight that, well, any building on the
14· ·site is going to cast shadows, right, and I think
15· ·-- actually, I think Ms. Poverman made that
16· ·point.· That's true.
17· · · · · · · The building there today probably
18· ·casts a shadow, but you can mitigate it.· And
19· ·again, if this project complied with zoning and
20· ·had a 30-foot rear yard and had 45 -- that was 45
21· ·feet in height, it wouldn't cast the same shadow
22· ·as this proposed building will.
23· · · · · · · Does that mean this project has to
24· ·comply with zoning?· No, of course not.· It's a
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·1· ·40B project.· But you can still mitigate it and
·2· ·make the shadows less than what they're
·3· ·proposing.
·4· · · · · · · So in my sum -- and you're going to
·5· ·hear from more people, but my conclusion is
·6· ·we're getting there.· It's close, but not quite
·7· ·good enough.· And the zoning board has
·8· ·consistently during this process given the
·9· ·applicant charges -- I think that's a great idea
10· ·-- and here's a charge to the zoning board.
11· ·Zoning board, you should impose conditions on
12· ·your approval of this project that require this
13· ·project to stay completely out of the tree
14· ·protection zone, have a minimum 20-foot rear
15· ·yard setback, and eliminate that fifth floor so
16· ·that it reduces the stress on the parking and
17· ·everything else associated with this project.
18· ·Thank you.
19· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.· Does anybody
20· ·else want to speak?
21· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I think that we'd said
22· ·that the arborist would speak.
23· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· No.· The arborist is
24· ·going to respond at the end.· He's your arborist;
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·1· ·is he not?· So he'll speak at the end.
·2· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· · Would you like me to
·3· ·respond to that stuff now?
·4· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Yes.
·5· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· No.
·6· · · · · · · MS. STAFF:· Hi.· My name is Carrie
·7· ·Staff.· I live at 123 Stedman Street.
·8· · · · · · · First of all, I just wanted to say
·9· ·that we certainly appreciate all of the changes
10· ·that the project team has made thus far.· The
11· ·front setback was brought in line with the
12· ·neighboring buildings.· The rear setback has
13· ·been partially improved, enough to protect the
14· ·trees.· The fifth floor in the rear has been
15· ·recessed, which will help in shadows.· And we
16· ·appreciate the fact that you have included some
17· ·tree protection zones, although I would add one
18· ·particular tree that belongs to an abutter is
19· ·not included.
20· · · · · · · A couple of thoughts on the fifth
21· ·floor.· I'm not certain that the site line
22· ·calculations, the image that shows sort of the
23· ·dotted line looking up into the air from the
24· ·first floor and the second floor will be
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·1· ·completely accurate.· And my home is on the
·2· ·entire second floor of our building.
·3· · · · · · · Generally, when you move around the
·4· ·house and you're looking out the windows, you're
·5· ·not -- your head is not angled up like this.
·6· ·Your head is not looking -- you're not looking up
·7· ·at the sky.· You're looking directly out.· And I
·8· ·don't know what the views will be of the rooftop
·9· ·equipment as well.
10· · · · · · · I believe that there still remains a
11· ·significant visual impact of that fifth floor.
12· ·Although Cliff believes the building does
13· ·integrate with the Babcock streetscape, I can't
14· ·understand how five floors integrates with a
15· ·residential building -- residential home that's
16· ·two and a half stories and an apartment building
17· ·that's three and a half.· I think that's still
18· ·incongruous.
19· · · · · · · Only a portion of the rear setback has
20· ·been increased, and I believe only in areas that
21· ·are required legally by the applicant.· That's
22· ·great.· I'm happy that that has happened.
23· ·However, a 46-foot section is still under 16
24· ·feet.
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·1· · · · · · · About half of that will have no
·2· ·screening whatsoever for either the Stedman
·3· ·Street residents or the new residents of Babcock
·4· ·Place because there are three very large trees
·5· ·on the project site that I have to assume are all
·6· ·being removed, and they'll be replaced with much
·7· ·smaller trees.· And as Tom Brady has said, they
·8· ·still question the viability of those trees and
·9· ·plantings in that area.
10· · · · · · · The tree protection zones that in the
11· ·other ends of the rear setback, I believe will
12· ·preclude planting in those areas as well.

I

13· ·would hope that the tree protection zones would
14· ·remain in place until the entire project is
15· ·completed.· I don't know the depth that's
16· ·required for those particular trees.
17· · · · · · · There was one diagram that showed at
18· ·least six-foot width for the typical tree that
19· ·needs to be done.· Again, I don't know the exact
20· ·amount of space, but you could see from the
21· ·excavations that were done, the tree pits, that
22· ·I believe -- I don't know the depth of how far
23· ·they were dug, but it only looked maybe six
24· ·inches or so, and there are still significant
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·1· ·trees -- roots in those areas.· So I'd be curious
·2· ·to know how the landscape plan will integrate
·3· ·with the tree protection zones.
·4· · · · · · · What else?· So you've all been on
·5· ·site.· You all came for the site visit at the
·6· ·beginning, and I believe you peered around the
·7· ·back of the fence at the rear of the project and
·8· ·hopefully looked down into our yards and into
·9· ·our gardens.· And I would just ask that you
10· ·consider the shadow impact on our gardens, which
11· ·we've cultivated over periods of 20-plus years
12· ·and invested quite a bit of money and sweat
13· ·equity into creating an environment that works
14· ·in the current growing conditions.
15· · · · · · · So I would just ask you to consider
16· ·the impact, not only of the shadows, but the sort
17· ·of quality of life impact of a 45-foot rear wall
18· ·on a 13-foot hill.· This is the 40-foot in this
19· ·section especially that's closer to the project,
20· ·which would sit only 16 feet away.· So I hope
21· ·you'll consider the impact on our homes and our
22· ·yards.
23· · · · · · · I would also just ask -- it appeared
24· ·to me that the summer -- the drawings that Peter

1-617-542-0039

DTI Court Reporting Solution - Boston
www.deposition.com

YVer1f

PUBLIC HEARING· ·- 01/29/2018

Page 187

·1· ·showed of the perspectives from around the sides
·2· ·of the building that included all the trees, and
·3· ·you were asking about the accuracy of those
·4· ·representations.
·5· · · · · · · I know there are a number of trees on
·6· ·the north side of the property and some very tall
·7· ·ones on the rear of the site that will all be
·8· ·removed because they are on that project site.
·9· ·So my understanding as I took a look at those as
10· ·they flew by, or as Peter showed them, I believe
11· ·some of that tree canopy will be removed and
12· ·won't be there.
13· · · · · · · The winter perspectives looked more
14· ·accurate, because I could see the tree trunks,
15· ·and it did appear that they were all ones that
16· ·are on abutting properties, but I'm not certain
17· ·about the canopy of the trees when they were
18· ·leafed out.
19· · · · · · · As for the public safety concerns, I
20· ·think those have been adequately questioned and
21· ·discussed.· One thing I would just add is that
22· ·the police can't enforce parking in the traffic
23· ·lane on a regular basis.
24· · · · · · · I know that there was -- there were,
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·1· ·when Devotion School was still open, quite a bit
·2· ·of double parking on Stedman Street, which
·3· ·blocked fire trucks, it created safety problems
·4· ·for pedestrians to and from the school, and some
·5· ·parents discussed this with the town and with
·6· ·the police department, and they were told that
·7· ·that can't be enforced on a regular basis.· They
·8· ·can't come out and ticket daily.· They certainly
·9· ·can't be there 24/7 to watch all of the taxis,
10· ·Ubers, delivery trucks, and all of the things
11· ·that can't be accommodated in the building -- or
12· ·in the driveway.
13· · · · · · · I would also ask you to consider the
14· ·amount of time that it's going to take to wheel
15· ·out four dumpsters from the rear of the building
16· ·through the garage to -- whether it's the
17· ·driveway or the street, the amount of time that
18· ·it will take for the sanitation worker to bring
19· ·it all out, hook each one up and dump them, and
20· ·then return each one back to the trash room.
21· · · · · · · So I think that's an important impact,
22· ·whether it's in the driveway and restricting
23· ·access to and from the driveway, and certainly,
24· ·even more so, if it's going to happen in a public
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·1· ·way.
·2· · · · · · · Let me see what else.· So I think
·3· ·everything else has been covered fairly well.
·4· ·In closing, I would just ask that Sam Slater and
·5· ·his team extend this public hearing until some
·6· ·of the outstanding details that Dan and all of
·7· ·you have heard about tonight until those are
·8· ·submitted and so that the public can continue to
·9· ·submit testimony on them.
10· · · · · · · I ask you to consider the current
11· ·proposal as it compares to the charge you gave to
12· ·the applicant at the last hearing.· I ask you to
13· ·consider the volume of the tree loss on the site
14· ·and the viability of the landscape plan, not
15· ·only for quality of life issues of people living
16· ·around the building, but also for its carbon
17· ·impact and its impact on the town's carbon
18· ·reduction plan.
19· · · · · · · Let's see.· This project can be
20· ·further improved, and I believe you have the
21· ·leeway provided within the 40B regulations to
22· ·insist that it is further and more significantly
23· ·improved for the current residents in the
24· ·neighborhood and the new residents in Babcock
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·1· ·Place.· I believe Brookline can do better than
·2· ·what we are seeing here tonight.· Thank you.
·3· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.
·4· · · · · · · MS. ROBERTS:· Hi there.· My name is
·5· ·Susan Roberts.· I live at 69 Green Street, around
·6· ·the corner from the project.· I'm a town meeting
·7· ·member of Precinct 2, and I've been the one, as
·8· ·you may know, who has organized a few meetings
·9· ·now with Sam Slater to meet with us town meeting
10· ·members.
11· · · · · · · And we've discussed a lot of points,
12· ·and Sam has been very good about telling us how
13· ·he wants to accommodate as many views as
14· ·possible.· He understands the need for the
15· ·project to have gotten smaller.· We did actually
16· ·meet with him in October, and that resulted in I
17· ·guess it was the November plans, and then the
18· ·December plans were really not that much
19· ·different.
20· · · · · · · But I did want to echo a point that Dan
21· ·Hill raised, which was the starting point of all
22· ·of this and why there seems to be a mentality
23· ·that the applicant has come a long way from what
24· ·was proposed in the beginning.
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·1· · · · · · · And actually, I want to make sure that
·2· ·people understand that that should not be our
·3· ·measuring rod, if you will, our ruler, because
·4· ·Sam has told us that what he did in applying
·5· ·initially in January of last year really was a
·6· ·placeholder to get something in the town to be
·7· ·considered and so forth, and he had always known
·8· ·that it was going to be changed.· The
·9· ·architectural look was going to be changed.· It
10· ·was definitely going to be a smaller plan.· So I
11· ·would like us to sort of have that frame of
12· ·reference rather than having the frame of
13· ·reference as what was initially submitted.
14· · · · · · · Here's where we are now, and we still
15· ·do have a fifth floor, even after almost
16· ·everybody on the board has said the fifth floor
17· ·really needs to go.· And if the fifth floor does
18· ·go, it would help so many problems, as Dan has
19· ·said, but not -- the least of which is the
20· ·parking issue and loading issues.
21· · · · · · · And related to that, I want to make
22· ·sure that you also know what's been going on in
23· ·North Brookline with respect to the I-90 project
24· ·that the state is proposing.· Right now, there is
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·1· ·a bridge that is being proposed from this new
·2· ·interchange of what they're going to do over on
·3· ·the Mass. Turnpike interchange.· They're going
·4· ·to build a bridge at Malvern Street, which is at
·5· ·Packard Corner, basically where the Star Market
·6· ·is.
·7· · · · · · · And that is going to allow what
·8· ·potentially is 20,000 cars into our North
·9· ·Brookline area into that neighborhood, Babcock
10· ·Street being right there, and also being
11· ·impacted by many, many cars.· And that's what's
12· ·going on right now, as well as the town's own
13· ·consideration of what's going on on Babcock
14· ·Street is, as I said, this other state project
15· ·that currently has potentially 20,000 cars
16· ·coming into our neighborhood.
17· · · · · · · That's what's being discussed, and
18· ·that's what's being projected.· And I don't know
19· ·that anybody's traffic analysis has taken into
20· ·effect what the current plan is for that, but I
21· ·think that's important, especially as Carrie
22· ·just mentioned.· If there is going to be double
23· ·parking, if there is going to be loading going on
24· ·and so forth, the more people in that project,
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·1· ·the more implications there will be.
·2· · · · · · · The fifth floor is not necessary.· And
·3· ·I must as well respectfully note that despite
·4· ·what Cliff said about the additional shadows on
·5· ·that little pocket park -- it's more than just a
·6· ·pocket park.· Actually, I go there every day.
·7· ·It's a beautiful and lovely park that I wouldn't
·8· ·want to see impacted by a taller building.
·9· · · · · · · Cliff seemed to say the taller
10· ·building in an urban setting is supposed to
11· ·somehow add some definition.· Okay, we can have
12· ·more shadows.· But this setting is not an urban
13· ·setting.· It is not an urban setting, it just
14· ·isn't.· If you've been there, you know.· It's
15· ·lovely, it's quiet.· The buildings fit where
16· ·they are.
17· · · · · · · This building coming to the sidewalk
18· ·with five floors next to the courtyard building
19· ·-- I don't know if the picture was shown earlier
20· ·tonight.· I wasn't able to come at 7:00, so I
21· ·missed any presentation again of what the
22· ·elevation looks like with regard to the fifth
23· ·floor versus 120 Babcock to the left.· It looms
24· ·over that building.· It is a much more imposing
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·1· ·structure.
·2· · · · · · · And I don't think there is any
·3· ·elevation that we've seen which shows that
·4· ·elevation as compared with the other houses and
·5· ·the park across the street.· I don't think we've
·6· ·seen that.· Maybe I'm wrong, and Peter can
·7· ·correct.
·8· · · · · · · But in any case, I really feel like
·9· ·the board has given its charge.· We haven't come
10· ·back with that.· I think there well could be a
11· ·willingness by the developer to get rid of that
12· ·fifth floor, and I think that would solve a lot
13· ·of problems.· Thank you.
14· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.
15· · · · · · · MS. COX:· My name is Abby Cox.· I live
16· ·on 18 Osborne Road, and I'm a town meeting member
17· ·for Precinct 8.· I agree with some of the
18· ·comments that were made earlier, and so I'll
19· ·keep that brief.
20· · · · · · · Like Carrie, I have a difficult time
21· ·understanding how this is going to blend
22· ·harmoniously with the streetscape.· I think it's
23· ·wonderful to have mixed multi-family, single24· ·family dwellings in our town.· There are many
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·1· ·wonderful multi-family buildings on Babcock.
·2· ·This one seems to be larger.· I would like to see
·3· ·it reduced in size.
·4· · · · · · · Secondly, as Susan was talking about,
·5· ·the triangle park is a green space for all of
·6· ·those multi-family dwellings.· They don't have
·7· ·yards, and that is a triangle, that grassy area
·8· ·that's frequently used by people who live in
·9· ·those buildings.· I would point out that it will
10· ·be the green space for this building as well.
11· ·And so I hope the developer will think about
12· ·that, about what's going to be good for the
13· ·residents of that building in terms of having a
14· ·green space available.
15· · · · · · · But finally, I've been traveling
16· ·Babcock Street for four decades, and it's always
17· ·been a very pleasant walk or a pleasant drive.
18· ·There's only one area before I approach Coolidge
19· ·Corner where I have any nervousness as a driver,
20· ·and it is at that triangle, because that's where
21· ·people are turning left onto Freeman Street.
22· ·Often people are coming from Manchester.· That's
23· ·the one area of Babcock where things seem to back
24· ·up.
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·1· · · · · · · And the idea that there might be a
·2· ·truck parked right at that spot right before
·3· ·where people are turning and obstructing vision
·4· ·is unsettling.· I'm not sure as a driver how
·5· ·that's going to go, and particularly with a
·6· ·re-paved road where traffic will be going
·7· ·faster.· And so I hope that people -- a loading
·8· ·zone could be included or something that will
·9· ·keep those trucks from parking right in that
10· ·area that might obstruct vision for people
11· ·turning the road or cars backing up at that area
12· ·of Babcock.· Thank you.
13· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.
14· · · · · · · MS. KATES:· Hello.· My name is Beth
15· ·Kates.· I live at 105 Centre Street, and I'm a
16· ·town meeting member from Precinct 9, and I'd
17· ·like to add to what Susan and Abby said.
18· · · · · · · I went to two meetings last week, town
19· ·meetings, one of which was on Monday, it was the
20· ·transportation board meeting, and I realize that
21· ·proposed traffic changes are not necessarily -22· ·the committee is not necessarily able to
23· ·consider them, but the transportation board
24· ·passed Option Number 5 for a complete
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·1· ·streetscape for Babcock Street, which
·2· ·significantly narrows some of the travel lanes
·3· ·and plays around with the parking and creates a
·4· ·dedicated bike lane with, you know, a certain
·5· ·number of feet on either side as a buffer, and as
·6· ·well as assured travel lane for bikes in the
·7· ·other direction.
·8· · · · · · · And the second meeting I went to -- so
·9· ·that will change the whole configuration of
10· ·Babcock Street and change the -- create a lot
11· ·more safety issues for it, a lot more things to
12· ·pay attention to and a lot of difficulties along
13· ·the whole street.
14· · · · · · · In addition, I went to a meeting of
15· ·the DOT that Susan Roberts referenced on
16· ·Thursday.· And to add to what she had to say,
17· ·that bridge at Malvern Street, there's -18· ·presumably, we hope there's going to be a
19· ·transportation hub at West Station, which will
20· ·include trains and buses.· Now, all of the
21· ·Harvard Development on the other side of the new
22· ·Mass. Pike, as well as into Cambridge and
23· ·Genzyme, they're all going to want to get
24· ·shuttles and buses into Longwood, into BU, into
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·1· ·all of this area of town.
·2· · · · · · · And if they do approve a vehicular
·3· ·bridge at Malvern Street, it will send traffic
·4· ·down into Packard's Corner, down Babcock, down
·5· ·St. Paul, down Pleasant.· But they are talking
·6· ·about MBTA buses going down Babcock Street all
·7· ·the way through to Longwood.· And large
·8· ·vehicles, as well as Harvard shuttles, Longwood
·9· ·shuttles, and Genzyme shuttles, all of these
10· ·kind of things could significantly change the
11· ·safety aspects of Babcock Street.· And this
12· ·development will not impact it in a positive
13· ·way.· Thank you.
14· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.
15· · · · · · · MS. MANASEVIT:· Jodie Manasevit, 119
16· ·Stedman Street.· I had a bunch of remarks
17· ·prepared, but I would like to respond to some of
18· ·the things that some of the people here have
19· ·asked about or commented on.
20· · · · · · · I wonder, Mr. Geller, why if it's
21· ·reasonable to consider, where the parking spaces
22· ·that are going to be displaced for 120 Babcock,
23· ·if it's reasonable to consider what's going to
24· ·happen to them, then why is it not reasonable to
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·1· ·also consider what's going to happen to all of
·2· ·the trash that is now currently collected for
·3· ·120 Babcock that is stored in the southwest
·4· ·corner of the parking lot.
·5· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I think my answer is the
·6· ·same for both.
·7· · · · · · · MS. MANASEVIT:· I would like to
·8· ·respond to something Mr. Boehmer said, which is
·9· ·that now that all of these things have been
10· ·amended, that the Stedman Street abutters will
11· ·only be experiencing a three-story building.· So
12· ·I would like to remind people that, as something
13· ·that has been discussed before, however tall the
14· ·building is, it's an extra story for us because
15· ·we're a story lower.
16· · · · · · · So in terms of Mr. Boehmer's comment
17· ·that we're only going to be a three-story
18· ·building because the fifth story is set back, if
19· ·it's three stories that is visible, then it's
20· ·actually a four-story building to us because
21· ·we're so much lower.· And the amount of windows
22· ·that we'll be seeing from those three stories is
23· ·somewhere in the vicinity of 50 windows which
24· ·will be looking down on us.
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·1· · · · · · · In terms of Mr. Zuroff's question
·2· ·about how realistic the trees that are presented
·3· ·in their plans are, I would like to just say two
·4· ·example -- they're not realistic.· So one
·5· ·example happens to be from my yard.
·6· · · · · · · So there was a picture of the view
·7· ·from Stedman Street up to the site.· On the left·8· ·hand side of my property, there's a Japanese
·9· ·maple, and there is no way that that Japanese
10· ·maple is 40 feet tall and screens the building up
11· ·on Babcock Street.· It's a dwarf Japanese maple.
12· ·It's probably, I don't know, maybe 20 or 25 feet
13· ·tall, at the most.· It's demonstrated in that
14· ·picture as being this hugely screening tree.
15· · · · · · · The other example is one of the winter
16· ·views of the trees along the northern part along
17· ·the -- right from Babcock Street moving west.
18· ·There's a whole stand of mature 40 -- I don't
19· ·know, 40- or 50-foot trees that are shown in that
20· ·picture.· And those trees are actually all going
21· ·to be removed and replaced by shrubs.· So I just
22· ·wanted to make that clear.
23· · · · · · · In terms of the units that will be -24· ·it would be nice if it's the larger units that
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·1· ·are reserved for the affordable housing, as
·2· ·those are the units with families with children
·3· ·who will benefit from Devotion School.· This
·4· ·current plan reduces the large units, with one
·5· ·less three-bedroom unit and three less two·6· ·bedroom units.· So it's that many less units that
·7· ·will go to affordable housing, which seems -- or
·8· ·is supposed to be the whole point of this whole
·9· ·production.
10· · · · · · · In terms of the setbacks and
11· ·protecting of the trees, I agree with everything
12· ·that Carrie said, and I just want to restate the
13· ·importance of that 40-foot length that's jutting
14· ·out closer to Stedman Street.· So that sticking
15· ·out portion is about 40 feet long, and that
16· ·happens to be exactly the place where the
17· ·applicant's beautiful 70-foot tall, 100-year-old
18· ·oak tree that's 70 feet wide will be lost.
19· · · · · · · And that is the only screen that
20· ·exists at the moment for that length of that
21· ·jutting out portion, which is quite unfortunate.
22· ·So there will be a 40-foot length where there are
23· ·no trees on their property and there are no trees
24· ·on our property.
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·1· · · · · · · And in terms of the tree protection
·2· ·plan, of course we're extremely grateful for the
·3· ·tree protection plan, but as Ms. Poverman has
·4· ·said, this stuff happens.· If one of our trees is
·5· ·damaged or killed, they're irreplaceable.· There
·6· ·is no way -- or I won't say that there's no way
·7· ·or that it's impossible, but it would be very
·8· ·difficult to replace a 50-foot tree on that
·9· ·hill.· I don't know how you could get it in
10· ·there, how you could plant it, how it could
11· ·survive.· It's just -- anyway, so those trees are
12· ·irreplaceable.
13· · · · · · · In terms of the landscape plan, I
14· ·think it's important to change the way that
15· ·you're thinking about the landscape plan,
16· ·because the landscape plan does not affect the
17· ·Stedman Street abutters.· The landscape plan is
18· ·mostly shrubs, which don't screen anything on
19· ·our side of the fence.· They might screen the
20· ·first-floor windows of the applicant's building.
21· · · · · · · The vegetative screen is the trees
22· ·that exist.· It's not the trees that they're
23· ·going to plant.· And the first and second
24· ·iterations of the landscape plan -- the first
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·1· ·one had almost all trees that required full sun,
·2· ·the second plan had maybe half of the things
·3· ·needed full sun.· The third one now is better.
·4· ·It's absolutely better.· There are more trees
·5· ·that will do full sun -- I mean, I'm sorry, full
·6· ·sun or part sun.
·7· · · · · · · Actually, I'm sorry.· I take that
·8· ·back.· There are only -- first of all, there are
·9· ·only two trees that are recommended that will
10· ·ever get to be 50 feet tall and be a screen under
11· ·the best of circumstances, and those are the
12· ·Columnar European Beech and the Western Red
13· ·Cedar.· Those both can get to a height of 50 or
14· ·60 feet.· They require full sun.
15· · · · · · · All of the rest of the suggestions say
16· ·part sun, part shade.· So as any gardener knows,
17· ·full sun means more than six hours a day.· Part
18· ·sun, part shade means anywhere from three to six
19· ·hours of sun a day.
20· · · · · · · This 15-foot setback is going to be in
21· ·full shade all day long.· All day they will be in
22· ·-- from the east, it will be in shade from the
23· ·building.· From the west, it will be in shade
24· ·from the fence and from our trees.· So the idea
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·1· ·that there is going to be some kind of productive
·2· ·vegetative planting there is unrealistic.· And I
·3· ·think it's important to acknowledge that.
·4· · · · · · · And I think that that's -- you'll be
·5· ·happy to know that's all I have to say -- no.
·6· ·Actually, the one last comment is that -- which
·7· ·is obvious, that this building is too big.
·8· ·Everybody knows it.· There's 250 signatures on a
·9· ·petition asking for a smaller building, and
10· ·there's 150 letters on your website citing
11· ·reasons why this building is too big and needs to
12· ·be smaller.· Thank you.
13· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.
14· · · · · · · MS. FOX:· Hi.· Greta Fox, 125 Stedman
15· ·Street, the proud owner of tree number 9931.
16· ·I'll be brief because the arborist -- I'm
17· ·hanging in here.· I'm dying to see what he has to
18· ·say.
19· · · · · · · There's another tree that is also
20· ·still invisible on our property.· It is a pear
21· ·tree that we planted 20 years ago in memory of my
22· ·adopted children's late birth mother.· It's not
23· ·going to survive that kind of shade.· I just have
24· ·a few comments, because a lot of what I had
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·1· ·prepared to say has already been said, but I
·2· ·wanted to bring that up.
·3· · · · · · · In terms of fire safety, code, shmode.
·4· ·Can we just apply logic?· How on earth without
·5· ·any fire escapes would you get humans out of the
·6· ·upper floors of a burning building when you
·7· ·can't even get near it with a ladder?· On New
·8· ·Year's Eve, I watched 135 Babcock Street burn
·9· ·because the caliber of workmen that the
10· ·developer employs is of the caliber who thought
11· ·that using a blowtorch to defrost a pipe was a
12· ·good idea.· So pardon me if I have a low level of
13· ·confidence that things are going to really be
14· ·done correctly.
15· · · · · · · I think we can put code aside and just
16· ·apply logic.· The fire department needs to have
17· ·access on all four sides of a building that is
18· ·four or five stories high with humans inhabiting
19· ·it.· The building is too big, too tall, too
20· ·wide.· As Jodie said, everybody knows it.· There
21· ·is no need why we have to roll over and cave and
22· ·accept something that is unacceptable, and I am
23· ·asking -24· · · · · · · First of all, I would like an answer
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·1· ·to the question of when is the noise pollution
·2· ·going to be addressed.· I'd actually like that
·3· ·answer now.· And I would also like to know
·4· ·whether this board is going to protect our
·5· ·neighborhood and our community and our
·6· ·environment from an unacceptably large and
·7· ·unsafe building plan.· Thank you, and could you
·8· ·please answer the question?
·9· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Are you looking for a
10· ·waiver from our noise ordinance?
11· · · · · · · MR. ?:· No.
12· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· They have to comply with
13· ·our noise ordinance.
14· · · · · · · MS. FOX:· How does that work?· Please
15· ·answer.
16· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Want to explain what Mr.
17· ·Bennett will -18· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Yeah.· So Mr. Bennett
19· ·will actually be running tests at different
20· ·junctures, and if something doesn't meet certain
21· ·decibel levels, it has to be changed.
22· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Right.· They must comply
23· ·with the noise ordinance that exists for the
24· ·town.
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·1· · · · · · · MS. PIERCY:· Hi.· My name is Jane
·2· ·Piercy.· I live at 8 Still Street.· I'm a town
·3· ·meeting member from Precinct 2.· I will be brief.
·4· · · · · · · I agree that, as everyone has said,
·5· ·this building is too large for the lot.· My big
·6· ·concern, and what I'm hearing tonight, is the
·7· ·safety and the loading zone issue.· If the
·8· ·building were not shoe-horned into this lot,
·9· ·there would be room for a loading zone.· So I
10· ·would urge the board to require adequate room
11· ·for a loading zone so all of these delivery
12· ·trucks could be safely housed there and not
13· ·threaten the number of children that will be
14· ·returning to Devotion next fall.
15· · · · · · · I also don't think that I heard
16· ·anything in your transportation studies.
17· ·They're all talking about last January.· Last
18· ·January, we did not have all these children
19· ·walking to Devotion or all these parents driving
20· ·their children to Devotion.· So those are really
21· ·my two points.· Thank you.
22· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.
23· · · · · · · MR. ANDERSON:· John Anderson, 119
24· ·Stedman Street.· I'd like to make just a very
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·1· ·brief and theatrical presentation, if I may.
·2· · · · · · · Chairman Geller, 15 feet, 50 windows
·3· ·from you to me.· That's my point.
·4· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.
·5· · · · · · · MR. EGOZY:· Hi.· My name is Eran Egozy.
·6· ·I live on 34 Manchester Road.· All the points I
·7· ·was going to make were already very well made
·8· ·from the people before me.
·9· · · · · · · So I just want to reiterate one thing,
10· ·which is I think we all know that this building
11· ·is far too large and has too many units.· So we
12· ·started at 60, and now we're at 45, which is
13· ·great progress.· And it took, I think by my
14· ·count, six months to get there.
15· · · · · · · So all we need to do is continue this
16· ·process for another six months and get to 30
17· ·units, which I think might be -- I mean, 18 would
18· ·be great, actually.· I think 18 is about the
19· ·right size.· Okay, fine, so it's a 40B, so we
20· ·allow a little more.· Maybe it should be 30
21· ·units.
22· · · · · · · You know, the developer and his team,
23· ·they have their spreadsheet with economic model.
24· ·They know the number of -- we don't know the
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·1· ·number, but they know the number of units that
·2· ·they need to break even on this project, and it's
·3· ·far lower than 45, right?· They wouldn't have
·4· ·proposed 45 if they were going to lose money on
·5· ·this.
·6· · · · · · · So that number exists somewhere over
·7· ·here, the number which is -- the minimal number
·8· ·of units where they can still make a reasonable
·9· ·profit.· And I'm venturing a guess that it's far
10· ·lower than 45 units.· And so I would just ask -11· ·I think this process is actually going great,
12· ·the fact that we have managed to take something
13· ·that's completely ridiculous and just get it to
14· ·a point where it's slightly ridiculous.
15· · · · · · · So let's keep going and figure out how
16· ·to make this project so that it actually works
17· ·for the neighborhood, it doesn't ruin the
18· ·neighborhood.· I'm a biker.· I have kids who are
19· ·going to go to Devotion when it's finally fixed
20· ·up for next year.· I want them to be safe.· I do
21· ·not want vans constantly parked on Babcock
22· ·Street obscuring and blocking the way.
23· · · · · · · Twenty thousand cars -- in about four
24· ·or five years, there's going to be 20,000
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·1· ·additional cars every day traveling on Babcock
·2· ·Street.· And with this particular corner being
·3· ·occupied probably half the time with vehicles
·4· ·that are delivering goods, it's going to be a
·5· ·disaster, right?· We all know it, it's going to
·6· ·be a disaster.· So let's keep this process going
·7· ·so that we get to a reasonable number of units.
·8· ·Thanks.
·9· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.· We're going
10· ·to take five minutes so Kate can stretch her
11· ·legs.
12
13· · · · · · · (Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.)
14
15· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I just want to make sure.
16· ·Is there anybody else who wants to offer public
17· ·testimony?· No.· Okay.· Kate, do you have
18· ·questions that need to be asked at some point?
19· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Yes, I do.
20· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Yes, you do.· Okay.· Let's
21· ·hear first from the applicant's arborist, and
22· ·then we can work through your list.
23· · · · · · · MR. BARTASH:· I think our landscape
24· ·architect after the arborist.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Sure.
·2· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Hey, folks.· I'm really
·3· ·tired.· I'm usually in bed.
·4· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Who are you, tired man?
·5· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I'm sorry.· I'm Howard
·6· ·Gaffin.· I'm the arborist representing the
·7· ·Babcock Place project.
·8· · · · · · · I don't know if you want me to tell you
·9· ·much about myself.· I've been in the business for
10· ·almost 40 years.· I'm a board-certified master
11· ·arborist, a registered consulting arborist, and
12· ·I've been a Mass. certified arborist since 1981,
13· ·so I've been doing it a long time.· I don't want
14· ·to waste a lot of people's time here, so really
15· ·what I'd just like you to do is take a look at
16· ·this map and ask me some questions, okay?
17· · · · · · · One of the things I'm going to talk
18· ·about right now is tree 9931.· You can see it up
19· ·there on the right corner of the screen.· If you
20· ·see the dotted lines, those are the tree
21· ·protection zones that are asked for by Mr.
22· ·Duntemore in his report.· Those are the dotted
23· ·lines.· The green circles represent the proposed
24· ·areas that I am asking for for the tree
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·1· ·protection zone.· So let's go to tree 9931 up on
·2· ·the far right.· I did not provide a protection
·3· ·zone.· Do you need a pointer?
·4· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Oh, thank you.
·5· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Far right, 259931.
·6· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· It didn't have a circle
·7· ·around it.
·8· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· It's to the north.
·9· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Right.· It doesn't have a
10· ·green circle around it because I did not provide
11· ·a protection zone for that tree.· Why?· There's
12· ·an existing building eight feet away from the
13· ·trunk with a foundation.· Unless you're telling
14· ·me that there are roots that are going down five
15· ·feet under that foundation and out to that ring
16· ·that you see on there, I'm sorry, that's just not
17· ·feasible, possible.· It makes no sense.
18· · · · · · · Another thing I want to just reiterate
19· ·on these protection zones is that they're really
20· ·-- what's the word I'm looking for.· They're
21· ·theoretical.· If you put a tree in a field with
22· ·all the soil all the same, you may get a round
23· ·circle like that of roots.· But, in fact, tree
24· ·roots are opportunistic.· They go where there's
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·1· ·water, they go where there's soil, they go where
·2· ·there's air.
·3· · · · · · · All to the right-hand side of that is
·4· ·asphalt currently.· There are some roots under
·5· ·there, as you saw, when we dug out the pits.

I

·6· ·could go -- I'm not going to go into each of
·7· ·those pictures, but I will show you something
·8· ·here.· So does anybody have any questions about
·9· ·9931?
10· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I do.
11· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Go ahead.
12· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Excuse me.· My question
13· ·first.
14· · · · · · · MS. GAFFIN:· Yes, ma'am.
15· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· So are you saying that
16· ·there is no danger in the construction process
17· ·at all to 9931?
18· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Not in my opinion.· As a
19· ·matter of fact, the proposed foundation you can
20· ·see is another ten or twelve feet beyond the
21· ·existing foundation there.· In fact, you would
22· ·be creating root area for that tree.
23· · · · · · · My concern is somewhat there may be a
24· ·lot of roots coming up into that foundation.· So
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·1· ·perhaps when you were excavating around there,
·2· ·you would have to take extra care to perhaps
·3· ·leave part of that foundation, or even just
·4· ·scrape off part of it to let roots expand into
·5· ·the new area that will be exposed.· So in my
·6· ·opinion, you will be doing that tree a favor.
·7· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Okay.· What if a
·8· ·construction truck runs into it because it's not
·9· ·being protected the same way as the other trees?
10· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Well, you know, what if
11· ·lighting hits it?· What if -12· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· That's not relevant.
13· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Well, I don't know how to
14· ·answer that, ma'am.· I mean, if that happens,
15· ·then there are legal repercussions, I imagine.
16· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Right.· The tree
17· ·protection zones, in part, are set up -- in the
18· ·plan are set up to protect the trees from all
19· ·sorts of construction damage.· Is that not
20· ·correct?
21· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Correct.
22· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Right.· So why would
23· ·9931 not be entitled to the same protections?
24· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Well, I certainly can add
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·1· ·a protection zone onto that, but it would be far
·2· ·less than the one that is being asked for.· The
·3· ·protection zone is trying to -- two things.· One
·4· ·is you want to protect the roots that are there.
·5· ·That's the main thing.· Again, I don't believe
·6· ·there are any roots there.
·7· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· But you don't know, do
·8· ·you?
·9· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Well, ma'am, I don't know
10· ·for sure, and the only way I could tell for sure
11· ·would be to spend thousands of dollars on a
12· ·tomograph device that is sonar, it's radar.· But
13· ·in my experience, roots don't grow under
14· ·foundations of houses.
15· · · · · · · MS. FOX:· Didn't you just say they can
16· ·grow into the foundation of that?
17· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· No, I did not.· Well, they
18· ·may abut it, yes -19· · · · · · · MS. FOX:· So basically -20· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· -- but they're not going
21· ·to -- there's no water.· There's no nutrients.
22· ·There's no reason for a root to go in there.
23· · · · · · · MS. FOX:· So you're saying on the one
24· ·hand, we don't need a protection zone, and on the
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·1· ·other hand, we have to be really careful
·2· ·excavating.· So which is it?
·3· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I'm sorry.· I'm unclear
·4· ·how -- I'm not sure -·5· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Ma'am, let him finish,
·6· ·and then we can take questions.
·7· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I'm not sure.· No, I'll
·8· ·take the question.· Yes, again, I did not provide
·9· ·a protection zone for that tree.· That's my
10· ·fault.· I simply, because of that existing
11· ·building, knew there were no roots there.· If I'm
12· ·going to supply a protection zone for that, it's
13· ·going to be for any future roots that may move
14· ·into the area.· And I can certainly provide that
15· ·on a plan.
16· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Thank you.
17· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Anything else?
18· · · · · · · MR. ANDERSON:· So if -19· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Identify yourself, sir.
20· · · · · · · MR. ANDERSON:· John Anderson, 119
21· ·Stedman Street.· Just a practical question about
22· ·the opportunistic roots.
23· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Sure.
24· · · · · · · MR. ANDERSON:· So here's -- this plane
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·1· ·is a wall, and here's 9931, and it shoots its
·2· ·roots over, and then it sends them down.· And
·3· ·since water naturally runs down the sides of
·4· ·foundations, it follows water, and it actually
·5· ·goes down and underneath that foundation because
·6· ·it's an 80-foot tree, right, and so it's going to
·7· ·have roots that are somewhere between 40 and 60
·8· ·feet deep in its own right.
·9· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I'm sorry.
10· · · · · · · MR. ANDERSON:· Yeah.· Well, you're
11· ·laughing.
12· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I'm sorry, sir.· That was
13· ·uncalled for.
14· · · · · · · MR. ANDERSON:· Okay.· So how deep do
15· ·the roots go on these tall, old trees?
16· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· First off, they're not 80
17· ·feet tall.· They might be 50.· Second, they're
18· ·not very old either.· They might be 40 or 50
19· ·years old.
20· · · · · · · MR. ANDERSON:· Okay.
21· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· As far as -- again, where
22· ·the roots go, besides water, there's also a need
23· ·for oxygen and -- in other words, for oxygen.
24· ·And just like us to be able to deplete the carbon
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·1· ·dioxide that they produce.
·2· · · · · · · Most roots that are going to do any
·3· ·water or nutrient absorption are in the top 18
·4· ·inches of the soil.· That's where the humus is,
·5· ·and that's where the microorganisms are, all the
·6· ·bacteria, all the soil the organisms required
·7· ·for that tree to grow.· That's where the
·8· ·nutrients are.· Sometimes roots will go deeper
·9· ·for water or for mechanical support.
10· · · · · · · MR. ANDERSON:· Yes.
11· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· It's going to depend on
12· ·the soil.
13· · · · · · · MR. ANDERSON:· And the tree, the type
14· ·of tree.
15· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Yes, but more
16· ·importantly, the soil.· If you have a place -17· · · · · · · MR. ANDERSON:· It doesn't go more than
18· ·ten feet in the ground to get under the
19· ·foundation?
20· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Rarely.· No.· Well,
21· ·again, in my opinion, there is no way there are
22· ·any roots under that foundation.
23· · · · · · · MR. ANDERSON:· That's exciting, and my
24· ·view on the report.
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·1· · · · · · · MS. FOX:· Would the canopy have to be
·2· ·trimmed considering how close it is?
·3· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· On that tree, no.· It
·4· ·actually grows -- it leans towards your
·5· ·property, and it's already, you know, growing up
·6· ·against an existing building, and the footprint
·7· ·for the new building will be ten to twelve feet
·8· ·beyond that, so it will be given more room for
·9· ·space.
10· · · · · · · MS. FOX:· And what do you recommend
11· ·for the protection zone specifically?
12· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Well, I will probably
13· ·follow right along.· Since they're going to be
14· ·using the trenching type of foundation -- of
15· ·excavation, it would -- probably that red line
16· ·would continue, as you can see its relationship
17· ·to the black and yellow proposed building
18· ·footprints.· You can follow that yellow line,
19· ·follow the red -- can you see the red area, where
20· ·I'm calling the tree protection zone?
21· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· The red screen?
22· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Yes.· That would just be
23· ·continued, taking a right all the way around,
24· ·correct.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Questions, other
·2· ·questions?· Can you speak to survival of trees
·3· ·within the conditions, particularly in the rear
·4· ·area where there is a range, I think, from 21
·5· ·feet down to 16 feet at the -·6· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Okay.· Yeah.· You're
·7· ·talking about -- let's see if I can get this
·8· ·moved.
·9· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· You see a portion of it
10· ·there.
11· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Yeah, I know.· I'm just
12· ·going to bring it up for you.· Let's go down
13· ·here.· So you're talking about the area where it
14· ·bumps out?
15· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I'm talking about that
16· ·full length.
17· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Excuse me?
18· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I'm talking about that
19· ·full length in the rear yard.
20· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Correct.
21· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I don't need this.· So the
22· ·question is -- the question that was raised is
23· ·given the conditions of light, will -- I'm going
24· ·to put it into the smallest example.· Will trees
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·1· ·of an appreciable nature that offer screening
·2· ·survive, whether they are existing trees or
·3· ·whether they are newly-planted trees to add to a
·4· ·screen?
·5· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Okay.· I wish I could just
·6· ·answer it yes or no, but I can't.· The trees that
·7· ·are closer to this corner of the building, most
·8· ·notably tree 9907, is a large silver maple tree.
·9· ·It leans -- I would say 90 percent of the canopy
10· ·of that tree is over onto the Babcock Street
11· ·property.
12· · · · · · · Because it's on the corner and the way
13· ·that the sun -- north is up towards the ceiling.
14· ·As was shown in the shadow shots, the sun is
15· ·coming from the south and rising in the east.· So
16· ·that particular corner will lose some sunlight,
17· ·but not a whole lot, in my opinion.· These trees
18· ·are also deciduous trees, and they are much more
19· ·able to respond to changing light situations
20· ·than, say, a pine tree or a more sun -- excuse
21· ·me, sun-loving tree.· I've got to get some water.
22· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Sure.· It's not just
23· ·trees that are being -24· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Also, another point I
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·1· ·want to make here again is that's all asphalt in
·2· ·that root zone right now, okay, in that red area.
·3· ·That is asphalt.· We're telling -- we're
·4· ·proposing to remove the asphalt, replace it with
·5· ·organic matter and wood chips, and create a far
·6· ·better environment for the roots that may be
·7· ·there.· And there are some there, small, not
·8· ·consequential, but what you're going to do is
·9· ·just improve the root area, in my opinion,
10· ·rather than making anything worse.
11· · · · · · · You will have a change in drainage
12· ·patterns, which I cannot speculate as to how
13· ·that will affect us at this point, and you will
14· ·have a change in light pattern, which I believe
15· ·these trees will survive easily.· It will take
16· ·time, time for them to adjust, a few years.· But
17· ·I believe that the root area that you're
18· ·creating for them is far better than what's
19· ·there now and will be an improvement.· So it's
20· ·sort of a tradeoff, in my opinion.
21· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· My name is Guy Staff.

I

22· ·just wanted to ask you a question.· So a minute
23· ·ago, you were saying that the top 18 inches are
24· ·the most important part of roots?
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·1· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Correct.
·2· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· In the removal of asphalt,
·3· ·it's not like you can just go in and just
·4· ·carefully lift up the asphalt.
·5· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Oh, yes, it is.· We
·6· ·absolutely -- I could show you pictures of
·7· ·exactly what we did.
·8· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· So you're saying that that
·9· ·entire pad of asphalt can be pulled off -10· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Oh, yeah.
11· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· -- without heavy
12· ·equipment?
13· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Piece of cake.
14· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· How would you -15· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Let me show you.
16· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· How would you remove it
17· ·for that large a piece of asphalt?· I'm just
18· ·curious.
19· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Well, the same way I -20· ·you know, you would start at the edge.· There's a
21· ·fence there right now.· You come in with a cutoff
22· ·saw, slice right down maybe a four-foot section
23· ·the whole way -24· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· Of the asphalt?
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·1· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Yes.· A mini excavator
·2· ·peels back the asphalt.· Right below that,
·3· ·you'll find -- what we found there was a small
·4· ·gravel layer, and what we also found on there
·5· ·were there were a lot of fine roots growing in
·6· ·that area because that is -- you know, you can
·7· ·sometimes find roots under asphalt, but it's
·8· ·usually just the fine roots near the top where
·9· ·there may be a little bit of an air space, not a
10· ·lot, and it's going to depend on how thick the
11· ·asphalt is and if it has cracks and
12· ·vulnerabilities and water is getting in there in
13· ·some other direction.
14· · · · · · · But to answer your question, at that
15· ·point, that's exactly what you do.· A mini
16· ·excavator standing -- working backwards, you
17· ·peel that asphalt back, just like you're peeling
18· ·off a layer.· Then when you're done with that, we
19· ·would replace that with about two or three
20· ·inches of top soil, then a six-inch layer of wood
21· ·chips, and monitor it.
22· · · · · · · Of course, there would be a fence -23· ·you know, you keep asking about keeping
24· ·construction trucks away from there.· There's a
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·1· ·fence, a solid fence, all around that area.· So
·2· ·if someone drives into it or crashes through the
·3· ·fence, well -- again, that is a liability issue
·4· ·I'm not aware of, but the tree protection zone
·5· ·will provide physical barriers.· Does that
·6· ·answer your question?
·7· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· It does.· I'm just having a
·8· ·hard time picturing somebody operating heavy
·9· ·equipment carefully peeling that asphalt back -10· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Oh, my friend.· What are
11· ·you -- weren't you a little kid?· Didn't you go
12· ·and watch -13· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· All right, all right, all
14· ·right.
15· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· I was a little kid, and
16· ·I've watched very closely the construction down
17· ·our street at the Devotion School, which has
18· ·been mentioned a few times, and I've observed
19· ·firsthand construction work that is not done
20· ·carefully.· So all I'm saying is -- what I'm
21· ·hearing is this would require a very delicate -22· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Finesse, absolutely.
23· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Okay.· Okay.· So just -24· ·not that I want to get an answer to my question,
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·1· ·but generally -·2· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I'm sorry.· I still
·3· ·haven't answered it.
·4· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· -- the concern -·5· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· The survivability.
·6· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Survivability, given the
·7· ·light that will be available and the amount of
·8· ·space.
·9· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· All right.· So I've
10· ·already talked about the existing trees, and
11· ·like I said, they are hardwood trees, deciduous.
12· ·They will adapt.· They may not grow.· They may
13· ·be stunted for a little while, but they will
14· ·adapt.
15· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Do you have a sense of an
16· ·average attrition rate?
17· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I would bet that -- with
18· ·what we're planning to do here and the amount of
19· ·care that's going to be taken here, I wouldn't
20· ·expect to lose any of these trees.
21· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Okay.
22· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I expect when we dig
23· ·there to find almost no roots, or if I do, they
24· ·would be far less than an inch in diameter, and
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·1· ·that's kind of a standard thickness that you -·2· ·if you see a root an inch or larger, you really
·3· ·want to avoid cutting it.· Anything smaller,
·4· ·really not a problem.
·5· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Questions?
·6· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· So what is your basis
·7· ·for saying that only five trees but not eight
·8· ·are threatened under these plans?· Somebody said
·9· ·it.
10· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Who said that?
11· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Well, one of your guys.
12· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Oh, when we -- the
13· ·original -- here.· I think it's on here.· The
14· ·original survey we got had some of these trees
15· ·located on the other people's property, the
16· ·abutters' property.· Tree 9930, tree 9928, and
17· ·tree 9923 were originally mentioned in the
18· ·original report from the abutters from a survey
19· ·I have been given.· The most recent one, those
20· ·three trees belong on the Babcock Street
21· ·property.
22· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Except for 9931, which
23· ·we have in -24· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Exactly, which we've
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·1· ·already discussed.· If you want to discuss it -·2· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Where's number 9908?
·3· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I'm sorry, 9908.· They
·4· ·wanted to know about that too.· Okay, yeah,
·5· ·right.· 9908 I omitted, and I'm not sure why.

I

·6· ·don't think I saw it on his initial report as a
·7· ·tree of concern, but there it is.· Again, the
·8· ·green is my protection zone requirements.· The
·9· ·dotted lines are the proposed requirements from
10· ·Natural Path, the abutters' arborist.
11· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· So one of the things
12· ·that concerns me, Jesse, is that let's say we
13· ·make conditions about the tree protection zones
14· ·specifying what trees are included or not and
15· ·having a basis for making that determination.
16· ·Right now, I think it's up in the air.· That's
17· ·approved by Tom Brady?
18· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Yeah.
19· · · · · · · MR. ENGLER:· I think we would be
20· ·comfortable deferring to the town -- to Mr.
21· ·Brady, who has now the benefit of the abutters'
22· ·arborist report, our arborist report, and it
23· ·gives a lot of information, and I think my client
24· ·would be comfortable with Mr. Brady being the
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·1· ·arbiter of the tree protection zone and that
·2· ·being the condition of a permit.
·3· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· That makes sense.
·4· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Other questions?
·5· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I need to see for a
·6· ·minute.
·7· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Take your time.
·8· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Okay.· I think I'm all
·9· ·set.
10· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.
11· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Thanks, folks.
12· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· Nelson Hammer.· I am a
13· ·co-owner of Hammer & Walsh Design, landscape
14· ·architects.· I'm the landscape architect for the
15· ·proponent.· I'd like to just make a couple of
16· ·comments relative to the survivability of the
17· ·existing tree -- or the proposed plants that
18· ·we've put into this plan.
19· · · · · · · I used arborvitae as one of the key
20· ·plants early in the design, and both from the
21· ·standpoint of members of the town and from
22· ·Howard, I changed that to other plants that were
23· ·universally considered to be more shade-tolerant
24· ·than arborvitae.· I've switched to species of
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·1· ·yew, hemlock, and fall cypress.
·2· · · · · · · Of all the plants, other than
·3· ·mushrooms, I would say yews are probably the
·4· ·most shade-tolerant plant you can buy, and it is
·5· ·the viridis yew that I have used more commonly
·6· ·than any other in the proposal, 21 of them.· So I
·7· ·am confident that if there is enough light for
·8· ·any plants to grow, the plants that we've
·9· ·proposed will do that.
10· · · · · · · One question I would like to ask
11· ·Howard is that one of the things that I would
12· ·recommend to keep the existing trees healthy is
13· ·to prune and thin them.· And by pruning and
14· ·thinning the crowns of those trees, it helps
15· ·prevent wind damage from the existing trees, but
16· ·it also allows more filtered light through the
17· ·tree canopy to whatever is below it, and what
18· ·would be below it would be the proposed plants
19· ·that we are hoping to put in the property that
20· ·we're developing.
21· · · · · · · So is that a fair statement, Howard,
22· ·that -- I think thinning and pruning of the
23· ·existing trees would be of great benefit to the
24· ·trees themselves and would offer the added
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·1· ·benefit of providing more light for proposed
·2· ·trees beneath them.· Thank you.
·3· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Just to be clear, when
·4· ·you say thinning and pruning trees, you're
·5· ·talking about thinning and pruning of those
·6· ·trees that are on the Babcock Street property
·7· ·that are to remain?
·8· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· No.· I'm talking -·9· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· You obviously can't thin
10· ·and prune other people's trees without their
11· ·permission.
12· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· Well, of course not
13· ·without their permission, but we would be
14· ·providing a service that would improve the
15· ·quality of their trees at no cost to them.
16· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I'm just going to quickly
17· ·interject there.· Pruning is a good idea, but
18· ·really, from what I've seen of those trees, they
19· ·are very much sticks with high crowns.· As you
20· ·guys noted, the only tree that really was
21· ·probably offering a lot of protection for you
22· ·guys is, unfortunately, the one on the Babcock
23· ·Street property.
24· · · · · · · However, you do have trees that are in
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·1· ·between that tree.· It's going to be hard to see
·2· ·-- tell exactly what the impact -- I know you're
·3· ·looking at me like I'm nuts.· But until it's gone
·4· ·and the trees are leafed out, you really -- it's
·5· ·hard to say exactly how much you're going to
·6· ·miss.· I'm not denying that there'll be some
·7· ·missed, but it's just hard to say.
·8· · · · · · · So anyways, as far as pruning goes,
·9· ·we'll probably need very little.· The only tree
10· ·that's going to need a substantial amount,
11· ·again, is 907, which is the silver maple, which
12· ·is leaning over, and that's more of a
13· ·construction issue than the plants.
14· · · · · · · Another thing you talked about, just
15· ·quickly, was the soil situation, as far as
16· ·growing plants under there.· As I stated, right
17· ·now, I don't believe there's a lot of roots
18· ·there.· We're going to be taking eight inches -19· ·six to eight inches of asphalt off, replacing
20· ·that with soil, and we'll be able to plant right
21· ·over that without a problem.
22· · · · · · · MS. FOX:· Trees?
23· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Yes, nothing -- you know,
24· ·nothing huge.
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·1· · · · · · · MS. FOX:· So you can plant a tree in
·2· ·six to eight inches of soil?
·3· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· No, no, no, six to eight
·4· ·inches of loam added on top of what's there.
·5· ·Now, from what I've dug, I saw a sandy loam
·6· ·underneath.· So how much it needs to be amended
·7· ·is going to depend on what we see when we dig out
·8· ·the asphalt.
·9· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· So I'd like to ask a
10· ·question -11· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Sure.
12· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· -- and it is to confirm an
13· ·understanding I have.· With the exception of the
14· ·street trees that the town has talked about, my
15· ·understanding is that every single other tree
16· ·on the current Babcock Place site will be
17· ·removed.
18· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· I imagine so, but I think
19· ·that's only like one or two, maybe three trees.
20· · · · · · · MS. ?:· No.
21· · · · · · · MR. GAFFIN:· Oh, it is?· Okay.· I'm
22· ·sorry.· I'm only concerned with the back.
23· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· Understood, but I just -24· ·I'm not finding it a service to have the trees
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·1· ·that we have that would be our only screen left
·2· ·pruned and cut back and reduced in scale at the
·3· ·time we need the most.· So I wouldn't find that a
·4· ·service.· I would just -·5· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· I'm not talking about
·6· ·reducing them.· I'm talking about thinning them,
·7· ·which would be a benefit to the tree.
·8· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· Understood, but in the
·9· ·short term, it is reducing the screen; is it not?
10· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· Not necessarily.
11· · · · · · · MR. STAFF:· Okay.
12· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· One other point I would
13· ·like to make.· A comment was made that none of
14· ·the proposed trees are going to be 50 feet in
15· ·height, and one of the main reasons for that is
16· ·that if they did, they would conflict with the
17· ·existing canopy of the trees that are on the
18· ·abutters' property.· So we couldn't specify
19· ·large trees.· We had to specify trees and tall
20· ·shrubs that would live within the visual bounds
21· ·that are available.
22· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Any questions, Kate,
23· ·Mark?
24· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· No.
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·1· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· No.
·2· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Anything else?· Ma'am?
·3· · · · · · · MS. ?:· Mr. Hammer, did you propose
·4· ·the fence to be on the property line?
·5· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· No, within the property
·6· ·line.
·7· · · · · · · MS. ?:· How far from the property
·8· ·line?· It wasn't clear.
·9· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· Far enough in so that the
10· ·foundation excavation would not be on the
11· ·abutters' property.
12· · · · · · · MS. ?:· And what's the depth of that
13· ·from -14· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· Probably two and a half
15· ·feet.
16· · · · · · · MS. ?:· Pardon?
17· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· Two and a half feet.
18· · · · · · · MS. ?:· Two and a half?
19· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· Um-hmm.
20· · · · · · · MS. ?:· Not below freezing?
21· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· Not for a six-foot high
22· ·fence, no.
23· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· As a non-arborist, my
24· ·concern would be that the fence -- part of the
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·1· ·fence that goes below the ground could affect
·2· ·the root and growth of the abutters' trees.
·3· · · · · · · MR. HAMMER:· The abutters' tree roots
·4· ·are going to be exposed using an air spade, and
·5· ·we're essentially going to put the footings for
·6· ·the fences where the tree roots aren't.
·7· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· I just want to say that,
·8· ·you know, there is going to be means and methods,
·9· ·construction plan, a lot of detail, and I just
10· ·don't want to have that conversation take place
11· ·without the person who is going to be reviewing
12· ·and approving it, which is Tom Brady.· So there
13· ·is room for finely-crafted conditions with a lot
14· ·of detail, if that satisfies you.
15· · · · · · · In about ten minutes, you're going to
16· ·have to continue this to January 30.
17· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Understood, understood,
18· ·because it will be.· Okay.· Is there anything
19· ·further, any further rebuttal, Mr. Allen, from
20· ·your team?
21· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· No.
22· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· No.· Okay.· Thank you.

I

23· ·want to thank everyone for their testimony.
24· · · · · · · As we've done toward the end of every
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·1· ·one of our hearings, it's time for the board to
·2· ·have a discussion, and in particular, I want to
·3· ·focus a number of things.· I want to focus on
·4· ·specific asks that if the board members have
·5· ·additional requirements, now is the time to
·6· ·direct those comments to the developer team.
·7· · · · · · · I think we ought to have a brief
·8· ·discussion in terms of where the project is and
·9· ·how it correlates with our charge, and then we
10· ·need to deal with some procedural issues, not
11· ·the least of which is we are expiring, if you
12· ·understand my meaning.· So we're going to have to
13· ·deal with that.· So who wants to kick off
14· ·discussion?
15· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Well, actually, at some
16· ·point, will we hear from Ms. Morelli as to
17· ·whether or not there are things outstanding that
18· ·she has asked for?
19· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Go ahead.
20· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Sure.· So I have made a
21· ·list of things that are required -- well, would
22· ·be helpful to have during this public hearing
23· ·entered as evidence.· Some of these things could
24· ·affect waivers; namely, the dimensions of the
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·1· ·parking stalls and lighting.· And so I'd really
·2· ·recommend getting those details in prior to a
·3· ·discussion on waivers.
·4· · · · · · · Some of the other things pertain to
·5· ·safety.· They might actually pertain to square
·6· ·footage.· We don't know if there's going to be
·7· ·ventilation to the roof, which would require
·8· ·some chases.· It could affect square footage.

I

·9· ·think we do need much more specificity on
10· ·mechanical ventilation and some other things
11· ·regarding the screening of the mechanicals on
12· ·the roof.· Where it would not affect height, it
13· ·still is mitigation, obviously.
14· · · · · · · And then a few other things that
15· ·really affect code issues.· Definitely the fire
16· ·suppression should be factored in now because
17· ·that, again, could affect some dimensional
18· ·issues regarding parking.
19· · · · · · · Other things.· It's not a necessity
20· ·right now, but I do recommend a tree survey with
21· ·trees that are going to be eliminated to be X'd
22· ·out.· I think that's just helpful.· It doesn't
23· ·have to be in a public hearing, but I actually do
24· ·recommend it during the public hearing.· That's
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·1· ·just my opinion.
·2· · · · · · · More details about like the fence and
·3· ·retaining wall.· I just want to be clear it's all
·4· ·represented on the drawings, and the heights are
·5· ·there.· So that's it for now.
·6· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Has this list been
·7· ·relayed to the development team?
·8· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Oh, always.
·9· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· So they know what is
10· ·outstanding.· Mr. Engler, are you up there to
11· ·respond?
12· · · · · · · MR. ENGLER:· Mr. Chairman, if I may,
13· ·maybe this will be useful, maybe it won't, in
14· ·framing some of your discussion, but we have not
15· ·heard anything tonight from any of the town
16· ·departments or its peer review consultants
17· ·relative to additional information that we would
18· ·not be comfortable being conditioned as part of
19· ·the permit.
20· · · · · · · I would suggest things like specifics
21· ·on the ventilation system in the garage.· That is
22· ·a detailed construction element that is produced
23· ·when the construction drawings are done.· And we
24· ·will be happy to do that, and we would not expect
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·1· ·to get a building permit until we have satisfied
·2· ·that condition with the town.· But to ask the
·3· ·developer to design something of that nature is
·4· ·highly unusual on 40B, and I have not seen those
·5· ·level of construction details on a mechanical
·6· ·garage system.
·7· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Yeah.· It wasn't to
·8· ·detail.· We weren't expecting construction
·9· ·drawings.· I think if you go back to Patrick
10· ·Maloney's letter, there was nothing provided.

A

11· ·little more detail, like even a concept of what
12· ·you're planning to do, I think, is probably
13· ·warranted.· So just going to Mr. Maloney's
14· ·letter, if you just want to revisit that.
15· · · · · · · MR. ENGLER:· Fair enough.· We'll look
16· ·at that, and if you're looking for a concept of
17· ·our approach, I think we could provide as much.
18· · · · · · · But back to my point.· The letters
19· ·that we've heard tonight from the various
20· ·departments, fire suppression, other code
21· ·issues, other details, all of those -- all that
22· ·information will be provided, and will be
23· ·provided to the satisfaction of the town.· And
24· ·that's customary to all the other 40B's that
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·1· ·have come before this board.· So we would be
·2· ·quite confident and comfortable providing that
·3· ·detail.· I don't think anything Maria has
·4· ·mentioned tonight is problematic.
·5· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· So I just -- I don't mean
·6· ·to interrupt you, Mr. Engler, but if -- Mr.
·7· ·Stadig, you actually brought up the fire
·8· ·suppression issue.· Do you recommend bringing
·9· ·that up now during the public hearing, where it
10· ·might affect dimensions on the plans?
11· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· We'll make sure it
12· ·doesn't.
13· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Excuse me.· I've asked
14· ·him.
15· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· You interrupted Geoff, so
16· ·I just figured I'd throw that in.
17· · · · · · · MR. STADIG:· All I'm saying is just
18· ·the way you may need to adjust the parking
19· ·equipment, the automated system, it will affect
20· ·the parking geometrics.· Whether or not that
21· ·will be an issue for variance later on to meet
22· ·parking requirements, that just needs to be
23· ·reviewed.· Whether or not you need to look at
24· ·that now or in the future, I think it can be
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·1· ·probably handled later on during the detail
·2· ·design.
·3· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Thank you.
·4· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Are you saying it might
·5· ·affect the number of parking spaces?
·6· · · · · · · MR. STADIG:· No.
·7· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Just the dimensions of
·8· ·the stalls?
·9· · · · · · · MR. STADIG:· Just the dimensions of
10· ·the stalls and whether -- how compliant that
11· ·would be with zoning requirements for the
12· ·spaces involved.
13· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· So some spaces might not
14· ·meet zoning and would need waivers?
15· · · · · · · MR. STADIG:· Possibly.
16· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Maria, can I ask you,
17· ·has that been something that's ever been waived
18· ·in a 40B?
19· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· So the commissioner does
20· ·not grant -- doesn't recommend blanket waivers
21· ·to entire sections.· So he does want specificity
22· ·regarding deltas, the number of spaces that
23· ·don't meet zoning, and that's coming from the
24· ·commissioner.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Allison, are you looking
·2· ·to speak?
·3· · · · · · · We need to continue this hearing
·4· ·officially from January 29 to January 30.
·5· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· At 7:00 p.m.?
·6· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· No, at 12:00.· So do you
·7· ·want to approve the continuance?
·8· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Are you asking me?
·9· · · · · · · MR. ENGLER:· We would approve the
10· ·continuance until the 30th.
11· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.· Anything
12· ·else, Geoff?
13· · · · · · · MR. ENGLER:· One other point, because
14· ·my client would be very unhappy with me if I did
15· ·not make this point on his behalf.
16· · · · · · · We've had a long public hearing
17· ·process.· Some of the delays have been because of
18· ·our failure to get information.· Other delays
19· ·have been on the municipality.· All of that
20· ·doesn't matter at this point.· But where we are,
21· ·I think, is a much better place than where we
22· ·were.
23· · · · · · · I would also say that my client is
24· ·passionate, but he's not unreasonable.· And the
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·1· ·time that we have taken between now and the
·2· ·previous hearing, I think by your own town's
·3· ·department, planning department would assert
·4· ·that, in my experience as well, a significant
·5· ·amount of detail, very expensive details, have
·6· ·been provided to the town upon the town's
·7· ·request, the peer review consultant's request,
·8· ·and others.· And Sam has gone to great lengths
·9· ·and great expense to answer all these questions.
10· · · · · · · It was his directive to his team to I
11· ·want to answer these questions and provide the
12· ·details, to go out to the parking lot, to rip up
13· ·asphalt, to do tests, to engage the surveyor
14· ·again, arborists, civil engineers, have the
15· ·traffic study, Peter's time, etcetera, etcetera.
16· · · · · · · So that's a long-winded way of saying
17· ·he's done everything he's comfortable doing, and
18· ·he's not changing the plans beyond what we've
19· ·shared tonight.· Not minor, minor details,
20· ·perhaps, but we're not changing the height of
21· ·the building.· We're not changing setbacks.
22· ·We're not doing any of that.
23· · · · · · · So we're very comfortable where we
24· ·are.· We think we can satisfy, as I've said, not
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·1· ·to be redundant, all of the town's departments,
·2· ·the letters they've written, the things they're
·3· ·asking for, the conditions we anticipate.

I

·4· ·don't know for certain, I haven't seen them, but
·5· ·I think based on what we've seen in the past from
·6· ·this board, we're comfortable.· But we're not
·7· ·taking the fifth floor off, and we're not, you
·8· ·know, moving the building around, and we're not
·9· ·putting in a loading zone and things of that
10· ·nature.
11· · · · · · · So I just want it on record to set the
12· ·expectation of this board relative to what it
13· ·can expect going forward, because we're
14· ·comfortable with where we are at this point in
15· ·time.· We know, obviously, that many in the
16· ·neighborhood are not satisfied, but as the
17· ·chairman indicated earlier -- and I'm not going
18· ·to lecture this board because you know it as well
19· ·as I do -- but there's a balancing test that you
20· ·need to apply.
21· · · · · · · Brookline is under ten percent, so the
22· ·presumed need is significant that you need the
23· ·affordable housing.· And we have heard nothing
24· ·to suggest that there is such an egregious issue
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·1· ·of health and safety or planning that would
·2· ·override the need as the plan is proposed.
·3· · · · · · · So I'll sit down now.· I just wanted to
·4· ·make sure that our position was communicated.
·5· ·Thank you.
·6· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· That makes our discussion
·7· ·more interesting.
·8· · · · · · · Okay.· We've had a significant amount
·9· ·of peer review, and I've said this at every other
10· ·40B that I've been involved with.· For me, the
11· ·issue really is about health and safety and the
12· ·balancing test that goes on under 40B.· And to
13· ·assist me in that analysis, I rely heavily on
14· ·peer review, because I need to.· They are our
15· ·experts.· Peer review, I've also said before is
16· ·obviously in -- well, strike "obviously."
17· · · · · · · It is in my mind lesser than a
18· ·consultant.· A consultant is free to take a de
19· ·novo look.· Peer review is somewhat limited
20· ·within their review.· But frankly, I don't think
21· ·that in the current case that diminishes the
22· ·work that our peer reviewers have undertaken.
23· · · · · · · And the question that each of us has
24· ·to ask is whether, based upon the testimony, the
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·1· ·peer review testimony, the other testimony that
·2· ·we've received, whether there are issues that
·3· ·pertain to health and safety that, one, would
·4· ·result in our denial of this comprehensive
·5· ·permit; secondly, getting over that hurdle,
·6· ·assuming that there is no smoking gun, so to
·7· ·speak.
·8· · · · · · · Then the question becomes are there
·9· ·specific issues that need to be addressed as
10· ·conditions.· And those things would range from
11· ·items we've discussed, such as a construction
12· ·management plan, which we've included in pretty
13· ·much every 40 -- which we have included in every
14· ·40B, to, in this case, clear conditions that
15· ·pertain to tree protection zones.
16· · · · · · · But they could also include,
17· ·notwithstanding Mr. Engler's comments, things
18· ·like if you think that there is a compelling
19· ·reason, based on health and safety standards and
20· ·the balancing test, for removal of the fifth
21· ·floor, then that's something you need to clearly
22· ·talk about, and you need to speak to the
23· ·developer about.
24· · · · · · · I have said from the beginning that my
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·1· ·issue is not with the fifth floor.· My issue was
·2· ·really about what the impact is.· So I don't
·3· ·object to the fifth floor.· I particularly don't
·4· ·object to the fifth floor that's been pushed
·5· ·forward.· So that is not an issue that I have.
·6· · · · · · · I also don't have an issue with the
·7· ·side yard setbacks, I've said that before as
·8· ·well, and I don't have an issue with the front
·9· ·yard setback, and I certainly don't have an
10· ·issue with the exception to that, which is
11· ·essentially that little bay that they have
12· ·running up the front.· And I actually think that
13· ·from an appearance standpoint breaks up the mass
14· ·and looks somewhat more attractive than if you
15· ·had a flat ball.
16· · · · · · · The issues with the rear yard, again,
17· ·the question pertains to issues like shadowing,
18· ·issues such as the survivability of trees we've
19· ·discussed, the issues of impacts that are
20· ·created by virtue of the distance to the rear
21· ·yard.· And we have substantial peer review, and
22· ·we, in particular, have Cliff Boehmer's report,
23· ·and he hasn't been fuzzy about it.
24· · · · · · · He has clearly said that he thinks
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·1· ·that notwithstanding the fact that the 46-foot
·2· ·bump-out is not a full 20-feet setback, as given
·3· ·in the ZBA's direction, that the more important
·4· ·standard is have they mitigated their concerns
·5· ·that were really behind the ask.· And his
·6· ·conclusion is yes, they've addressed that, that
·7· ·the 16 feet is adequate from a shadowing
·8· ·standpoint, from a light standpoint, from a site
·9· ·line standpoint.
10· · · · · · · I put a lot of credence in what our
11· ·peer reviewers tell us, particularly a peer
12· ·reviewer who we have used many times and have a
13· ·track record with.· So that's how I would kick it
14· ·off.
15· · · · · · · The other issues that are raised,
16· ·traffic, it's been reviewed.· The peer reviewer
17· ·has analyzed the report that's been provided.
18· ·He says that the methodology is accurate.· He
19· ·says that there is no issue with safety.· It's
20· ·not going to create significant traffic
21· ·problems, in his opinion.
22· · · · · · · We've reviewed parking.· Our parking
23· ·peer reviewer has said that it functions, it
24· ·works.· The addition of the angled entrance
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·1· ·works as a two-way entrance.· He's raised some -·2· ·they've all to some degree raised a question
·3· ·about loading and the process and where.
·4· · · · · · · But at the end of the day, their
·5· ·reports have indicated that they do not believe
·6· ·that there is a safety issue that remains.· If
·7· ·you heard them say that there is, please let me
·8· ·know what it is.· So I think that there are
·9· ·issues, but there are issues that would be
10· ·addressed through conditions.
11· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I agree with everything
12· ·you said.
13· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Boy, that is rare.
14· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I still have some
15· ·outstanding questions for the -16· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· And lots of them.
17· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· -- applicant.
18· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· And I want to be very
19· ·clear about conditions also.· As Mr. Engler
20· ·knows, it's not like we add three conditions to
21· ·one of these projects.· There will be somewhere
22· ·between 70 and 80 conditions on a project of
23· ·this type, and they'll be quite detailed.
24· ·Comment?
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·1· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Why do you keep looking
·2· ·at me?
·3· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· All right.· So let me say
·4· ·this.· We have had -- and Jesse, I agree with
·5· ·you.· We have had significant and comprehensive
·6· ·input from our peer reviewers, and that is what
·7· ·we have to rely on.· We hear the community.· We
·8· ·understand your concerns.
·9· · · · · · · I want to remind everybody here and
10· ·everybody who was here that we are also citizens
11· ·of Brookline.· We live here, and what we do here
12· ·has an implication for us as well as for you.· So
13· ·it's not that we take your concerns lightly, but
14· ·we listen to peer reviewers and experts in the
15· ·field to give us a basis for whether we admit or
16· ·deny what the applicant is giving us in terms of
17· ·justification for the requests.
18· · · · · · · I completely agree that the conditions
19· ·wherein my concerns lie, and we have a lot of
20· ·work to do with staff in terms of imposing them,
21· ·because we do have questions about air quality,
22· ·fire suppression, survival of trees, details
23· ·about fence retaining walls and so forth.
24· · · · · · · But Cliff has given us a direction

1-617-542-0039

DTI Court Reporting Solution - Boston
www.deposition.com

YVer1f

PUBLIC HEARING· ·- 01/29/2018

Page 252

·1· ·that the moving back of the fifth floor to a
·2· ·place where it's not really affecting the
·3· ·Stedman Street -- or Manchester Road abutters.
·4· ·I have to go with what he's saying, even though I
·5· ·once said I will not approve this with the fifth
·6· ·floor, but the fifth floor has been shrunken.

I

·7· ·appreciate the fact that the developer took off
·8· ·a number of units, reduced the parking.
·9· · · · · · · Frankly, I think the parking area is
10· ·not ideal, I don't like stackers, but if the
11· ·parking peer reviewers say that it's adequate, I
12· ·have to go on what they say, because I'm not
13· ·stacking my car, and I'm not driving through
14· ·this garage, but if they think it's adequate for
15· ·the public, then I'm in favor of supporting
16· ·that.
17· · · · · · · My concerns are like yours, public
18· ·safety, the safety of the residents, and the
19· ·safety of the neighborhood, and I haven't heard
20· ·anything that really says that this is not going
21· ·to be safe.· We do want to protect the trees.· We
22· ·want to protect the abutters.
23· · · · · · · Somewhere along the line, people
24· ·forgot that there's a big building next door
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·1· ·that gets deliveries and has garbage pickup, and
·2· ·somehow it gets done.· And I'll bet you that
·3· ·everyone that lives on this street or the
·4· ·abutting streets gets package deliveries without
·5· ·loading zones, and there are many buildings
·6· ·around there that don't have loading zones, and
·7· ·somehow business gets done.· And while it would
·8· ·be more ideal if there were not trucks parking on
·9· ·the street, it's reality.· That's the way it
10· ·happens.
11· · · · · · · And frankly, the idea that there's
12· ·20,000 cars going up and down Babcock Street,
13· ·which I don't think is physically possible, but
14· ·that's not part of our review.· That's something
15· ·that may or may not happen, and it can't bear on
16· ·our reasoning.
17· · · · · · · So to sum it up, because I'm tired
18· ·like you are, I think that the project -19· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· We have the whole day.
20· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· The project has been
21· ·significantly improved.· I'm sure that everyone
22· ·here who is not on the development team thinks it
23· ·could be improved more.· And I still think that
24· ·it is large, but 40B doesn't give us the latitude
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·1· ·to say "uh-uh."· 40B is about creating
·2· ·affordable housing, and this is creating
·3· ·affordable housing, and that trumps the zoning
·4· ·code, and that's the purpose of the statute.
·5· · · · · · · So I want to see the conditions.

I

·6· ·would like to work on the conditions, but
·7· ·overall, I'd say we're where we have to be at
·8· ·this point.
·9· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· One thing I do want to
10· ·say in addition to agreeing with Jesse, which I
11· ·guess it was just too shocking, is to
12· ·acknowledge the point that Ms. Cox made, which
13· ·is living in the area myself and being aware of
14· ·the triangle and the way that Babcock intersects
15· ·with the triangle and the possible problems
16· ·caused by a truck on the street impeding
17· ·visibility of other drivers and bicyclists.
18· ·That is a particularly bad area, but I -19· · · · · · · Mr. Ditto did not express any concerns
20· ·about that, so I don't have any basis of saying
21· ·that that would be sufficient to deny a
22· ·comprehensive permit.· I just want to express
23· ·that that is a concern I have.
24· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· And I think that -- at the
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·1· ·risk of alienating the developer, I just -- I
·2· ·would say this, that it's not that the ZBA
·3· ·wouldn't like to see a smaller building on this
·4· ·site.· We would.· Of course, we would.· Our
·5· ·charge is to issue a decision based on 40B, and
·6· ·we need to follow that charge.· So I just want to
·7· ·make that clear.
·8· · · · · · · Okay, so are there -- I just want to be
·9· ·-- I'm sorry for hitting people over the head.

I

10· ·want to be very clear.· Are there specific
11· ·further asks to the developer on the envelope of
12· ·this building?
13· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· On the envelope, no.
14· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Let me ask you a
15· ·question, though, Jesse.
16· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Sure.
17· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· In every other 40B -18· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Do I have to answer it?
19· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Huh?
20· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Do I have to answer?
21· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· No, you don't have to
22· ·answer it.· In every other 40B application that
23· ·I've sat on, we've had a list of waivers
24· ·presented to us that govern somewhat of our
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·1· ·decision.· We don't have those waivers now.
·2· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Right.· That's not -·3· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· I don't have the waivers.
·4· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· They have been submitted
·5· ·to the building commissioner.· They're not on
·6· ·the agenda for this evening.· Now, for something
·7· ·like this where it's a residential building, not
·8· ·mixed use, makes it mostly dimensional use.
·9· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· So does this hearing
10· ·continue for us to deal with waivers?
11· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· We're going to get there.
12· ·We're going to get there.
13· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Well, that's my question.
14· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· We have the luxury of a
15· ·lot of time.
16· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Are you answering me?
17· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I will.· So I'm going to
18· ·turn to Mr. Allen.
19· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· And I do have some
20· ·questions.
21· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· You still have questions?
22· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I still have questions.
23· ·I told you I had questions.
24· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· Having to do with the
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·1· ·permit itself?
·2· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Well, no, relating to
·3· ·the property and the developer, etcetera.

I

·4· ·told you I did.
·5· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· I know, but I thought we
·6· ·were past that.
·7· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I came back from
·8· ·stretching my legs.
·9· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Do you have a lot of
10· ·questions, Kate?
11· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· You know what, I'll let
12· ·it go.
13· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you.· Mr. Allen,
14· ·it's 12:15 on January 30.· So you know the
15· ·question I'm going to ask you, which is we've
16· ·handled, I think, a pretty fair amount this
17· ·evening.· We need an extension of the time.· And
18· ·I think that Maria has gone through a rough idea
19· ·of future time frames.
20· · · · · · · We have several things we need to
21· ·achieve, not the least of which is waivers.· And
22· ·absent our getting an extension of this hearing,
23· ·then we will close this hearing, and I can read
24· ·Judy's letter, but I'll give a quick summation
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·1· ·of what it means.· It means that we will take no
·2· ·more testimony from the developer, from the
·3· ·public, from anyone.· We are able to ask
·4· ·technical questions only, but other than that,
·5· ·it is purely for the board to review things.· So
·6· ·obviously, the ask would be for an extension.
·7· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· What was the dates, Maria,
·8· ·you were talking about?
·9· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· So I was just plotting
10· ·out -- now, keep in mind that we cannot meet the
11· ·week of the 12th, and we cannot meet the week of
12· ·the 19th or the 26th.· I really do advise your
13· ·team -- you know, I had plotted something out if
14· ·we could meet the 12th to -- if we could have met
15· ·the 12th for waivers, then we would have two
16· ·other separate hearings in March on conditions.
17· ·So I was looking at a March 21 extension.
18· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· Mark, can you do the
19· ·12th?
20· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· He'll be gone.
21· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· So Jesse, just to be
22· ·clear, we're talking now about closing
23· ·testimony.· We're not going to submit any more
24· ·plans, and we're just going to discuss waivers
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·1· ·and conditions?
·2· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· We're not going to
·3· ·discuss waivers.· We are going to discuss it.
·4· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· That's what I mean.
·5· ·You're going to discuss waivers and conditions.
·6· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· We wanted a lighting
·7· ·plan.· That was one of the things.
·8· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Hold on.· Folks, there's
·9· ·a bigger issue here.· I think the project team
10· ·needs to understand that if there's something
11· ·omitted in the waivers, they can't submit that
12· ·as evidence, if the building commissioner
13· ·objects to like a blanket waiver.· So I think
14· ·it's important for you to explain what the
15· ·implications are if the project team cannot
16· ·submit further evidence.· It's a headache.
17· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· It's more than a
18· ·headache.
19· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· That's why we submitted
20· ·the waivers in advance.
21· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· But you understand that
22· ·there may be questions that we have, and there
23· ·may be things that you want to participate in
24· ·that conversation about, which you would be
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·1· ·prevented from doing -·2· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· Um-hmm.
·3· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· -- by closing it.· I'm
·4· ·happy to read you what Judy Barrett's
·5· ·instructions are.
·6· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· No.· I think the last time
·7· ·-- why don't we continue it to that February 12
·8· ·date?
·9· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· I am not here.
10· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· He's away.
11· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· Oh, I thought you gave a
12· ·February 12 date.
13· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· No.· The problem is that
14· ·Mark is away from the 9th -15· · · · · · · MR. ZUROFF:· 9th to the 16th.
16· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· And I'm away from the
17· ·15th until the 27th.· That's frankly the
18· ·problem.
19· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· Okay.· So we're looking at
20· ·the middle of March, somewhere around there?
21· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· March 7 appears to be
22· ·your next date, Maria; is that correct?
23· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Well, if you don't want
24· ·to do waivers, February 7 --
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·1· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I'll do it.
·2· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· What is your schedule on
·3· ·February 7?
·4· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· I am out of town.
·5· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· Okay.· So the month of
·6· ·February is a wash.· I really do recommend three
·7· ·more hearings, just because this is the way it
·8· ·goes.
·9· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· Let's start -- I've never
10· ·seen it go three nights like that, so why don't
11· ·we just start -- we'll continue it to March 13.
12· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Yeah, I think -- let me
13· ·tell you what generally I've seen.· So
14· ·typically, what I've seen is you will have a
15· ·dedicated hearing to waivers because, you know,
16· ·you want Dan Bennett to come in, and he's going
17· ·to go over a few things, and then you're going to
18· ·have some response to a few things, and there'll
19· ·be some changes, and that's actually going to
20· ·take an evening.
21· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· I agree.
22· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· And then you will have a
23· ·dedicated hearing -- and again, this is based on
24· ·what I've see in the past.· You will have a
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·1· ·dedicated hearing to reviewing decision
·2· ·conditions.· And that's a pretty lengthy
·3· ·evening.· Again, you're going to have 75, 85
·4· ·conditions, so it's going to take a while.
·5· · · · · · · I think you can get through it in a
·6· ·single hearing, but it's going to be a late
·7· ·night.· I'm okay with it, but it's going to be a
·8· ·late night.· So those would be the two
·9· ·hearings you would certainly want -- from my
10· ·experience that you would want to extend the
11· ·hearing portion for.
12· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· Yeah.· So what I was
13· ·thinking, Jesse, if we continue to March 13, and
14· ·then we could work with Maria to get some dates
15· ·for the additional hearing so we're not doing it
16· ·on a Friday.
17· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· No.· I really -- you
18· ·know, we have to work with the -- this is project
19· ·managing.· We're going to specify the hearing
20· ·for waivers and a separate hearing for
21· ·conditions.· As you've outlined, this is your
22· ·hearing, and this is your decision, okay, and
23· ·you've outlined what you need.
24· · · · · · · We actually -- we were here for five
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·1· ·hours because we had to deal with the hearing,
·2· ·just everything being on one night because we
·3· ·might close.· So this is just being pragmatic.
·4· ·March 7 and March 14, March 7 for waivers, March
·5· ·14 for conditions.
·6· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Fine.· We'll extend until
·7· ·March 15.
·8· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· That works for me.
·9· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· Say that again.
10· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· We'll extend until March
11· ·15.· I appreciate the time everybody put in
12· ·tonight.· Thanks, Bob.
13· · · · · · · MS. POVERMAN:· So the 7th and the
14· ·14th?
15· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· The 7th and the 14th are
16· ·the two hearings.· So the 7th will be about
17· ·waivers.· The 14th will be about -18· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· 15th -- I'm sorry -19· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· No.· It's extended
20· ·through the 15th.
21· · · · · · · MS. MORELLI:· No.· I'm sorry.· It's the
22· ·14th.
23· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· I just want to thank
24· ·everyone.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· Is there going to be a time
·2· ·for like draft conditions to be put out?
·3· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· We're going to have to.
·4· ·If we are going to get it done on the 14th, it
·5· ·means that that draft has to go out, you know -·6· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· A couple of weeks before.
·7· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· -- a reasonable time in
·8· ·advance for it to -·9· · · · · · · MR. ALLEN:· Okay.
10· · · · · · · MR. GELLER:· Thank you, all.· This
11· ·hearing is continued until March 7, 7:00 p.m.
12
13· · · · · · · (Whereupon, the hearing was concluded
14· ·at 12:20 a.m.)
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
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·1· · · · · · · · C E R T I F I C A T E
·2· ·COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
·3· ·NORFOLK, ss.
·4
·5· · · · ·I, ARLENE R. BOYER, a Certified Court
·6· ·Reporter and Notary Public in and for the
·7· ·Commonwealth of Massachusetts, do hereby
·8· ·certify:
·9· · · · ·That the proceedings herein was recorded by
10· ·me and transcribed by me; and that such
11· ·transcript is a true record of the proceedings,
12· ·to the best of my knowledge, skill and ability.
13· · · · ·IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand
14· ·and notarial seal this 7th day of February 2018.
15
16
17
18· · · · · · · · · · · ·Arlene R. Boyer, CVR
19· · · · · · · · · · · ·Notary Public
20
21· · · · · · · · · · · ·My Commission Expires
22· · · · · · · · · · · ·December 14, 2018
23
24
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